ERILT
YIP'S CHEMICAL

- ANNIVERSARY

ERVIEBERL T
Yip's Chemical Holdings Limited

EAFﬁxﬁ%EﬂHEX_LZﬁﬁﬁ A
orporat e Cayman Islands with limited liability

Eﬁﬁﬁ 3 Stock Code:

2010

Annual Report FiR



EEVRE
Tt - % - FRELURRFNREODR -

BME<T -

(—) Y IRIRIRIE ;
(D) Y ShRRE
() PERBAES ;
() iy ES
(h) BYETER:
() BAHBEE -

1]]]:[\
P

Group Aspirations

We Focus, therefore We Excel. We are Committed to Achieve
Outstanding Returns for Employees and Shareholders.

We pledge to:

e relentlessly pursue advantages of economy of scale;

e continuously strengthen brand reputation;

e develop cutting-edge products through R & D;

e always ensure the highest product quality;

e unleash employees’ talent and potential;

e adopt the high standards in corporate social responsibility.
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Five Year Financial Summary

—2-25 —ZTS —ZTRE —Z2E)\F —EELE —E2ERE
mMA—BE mA—A% mA—-HBZ mA—AZ mA—-HBZ mA—AZ
-2 —ETHhF —E-EF —EENF —EEZNE —ETLF
+=A=+—-8 |+=p=+-8 =A=t+-8A | =A=t-A =A=t-A =A=1-A
1.4.2010 1.4.2009 1.4.2009 1.4.2008 1.4.2007 1.4.2006
to to to to to to
31.12.2010 31.12.2009 31.3.2010 31.3.2009 31.3.2008 31.3.2007
(9fER) (9f8R) (12188) (12188) (12188) (12188)
(9-montll) (9-month) (12-month) (12-month) (12-month) (12-month)
TFET FTET TR FERT TR FERT
8 Results HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R
Turnover 5,654,783 4,072,555 5,455,742 5,089,931 4,648,386 3,913,835
S BTRR
ﬁjﬁ%/efirje taxation 358,196 438,931 516,598 346,187 382,788 321,700
%)I(Eétion (41,357) (65,296) (82,008) (82,145) (63,354) (51,982)
g’:ﬁ{%ﬁ?@e year 316,839 373,635 434,590 264,042 319,434 269,718
FEA 3R
Attributable to
I\ =R
AR ompany 264,509 | 333082 378064 | 224228 275183 223,636
so B e 34
il?nl—r]cé%fglling interests 52,330 40,553 56,526 39,814 44,251 46,082
316,839 373,635 434,590 264,042 319,434 269,718
HEEEH Per share data
SREF (BAL)
Earnings per share (HK cents)
o ELZKBasic 48.0 62.0 70.3 41.9 56.7 46.6
o #5358 Diluted 47.6 61.9 69.2 41.6 55.9 46.1
SRS (BAL)*
Dividend per share (HK cents)* 22.0 22.0 32.0 25.0 25.0 20.0
* ZERRLEERKREEESRIRE 058l
* Dividend per share in 2007 included the special
dividend HK2.0 cents per share.
4% L= Financial ratios
TR E EERE
Return on average total assets 7.3%" 12.3%* 9.8% 7.0% 10.1% 10.8%
FHRREESBIHRE
Return on average shareholders' funds ~ 16.1%" 23.0%" 19.3% 13.7% 21.6% 22.4%
T RIS NIE A B RILER FLLE o
* Being annualized percentage derived from the
actual nine-month percentage on a pro-rata basis.
=2-2F —ZTNE —E-EF —EENF —EBENE —EBELE
+=ZA=+—-H |+=ZA=+-A =A=1+—-R | =Z=f=t—-8B =A=t-B =A=+-H
31.12.201_0 31.12.2009 31.3.2010 31.3.2009 31.3.2008 31.3.2007
FHET FTET TERT FTET TERT FTET
BERAE Assets and Liabilities HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEEEm
'I'ﬁ;)glmg\s{siits 5,127,557 3,969,231 4,480,868 3,239,781 3,203,077 2,263,205
aE8E
Total liabilities (2,534,602) . (1,713,561) (2,153,630) (1,213,905) (1,574,112) (1,029,518)
2,592,955 2,255,670 2,327,238 2,025,876 1,628,965 1,233,687
RATRRELER
Equity attributable to owners 2,297,147 2,028,090 2,085,979 1,830,396 1,448,777 1,103,808
of the Company
il?rﬁﬂc%%fglling interests 295,808 227,580 241,259 195,480 180,188 129,879
2,592,955 2,255,670 2,327,238 2,025,876 1,628,965 1,233,687
FRITEEEHRRES LR
Net bank borrowings 15% N/A 2% N/A 10% 14%

to shareholders' funds

M BRBE-ZEAF+-A=S+-BAEAZEEN  ULEFE HEZEEEEER  AEER - E-SFRPBFLABR=A=T—AAT=

B=1t—R  #SHEFRPZREEZBBFELR -

Note: All the figures of the above years/period are audited except for the nine-month period ended 31 December 2009. Since the Group changed its
financial year end from 31 March to 31 December in 2010, the unaudited figures for such corresponding period are provided for comparison.



BEHFHBER Five Year Financial Summary

EEHE(Tix) AN E R EEGER (Fx)
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5,500,000 514557742 350,000
5,089,931 82
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SRBNRDBREB DF NI
Analysis of Turnover and Segment Result
for the Past Five Years

& ¥ % Turnover

—E-ZF§ —ETHhEF —TZAF —ETN\F —TTAF ZETRF
mAE—BE MA—RBZE mE—RZE MA—RBZE mE—RZE MA—RBZE
i ZEENEF —B-BE ZEENEF —BENE ZEBEF
+=ZR=+—-H +=A=+t-A =A=+-A | =B=t+—-B =A=t-BA =ZA=t+-A
1.4.2010 1.4.2009 1.4.2009 1.4.2008 1.4.2007 1.4.2006
to to to to to to
31.12.2010 31.12.2009 31.3.2010 31.3.2009 31.3.2008 31.3.2007
(9f@R) (9f@Aa) (12188) (1218A8) (12188) (1218A8)
(9-month_) (9-month) (12-month) (12-month) (12-month) (12-month)
THT THET FTET FTET TET FTET
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3R 7|
AR 3,445,502 2,213,417 3,028,993 2,976,563 2,745,605 2,241,252
Solvents
iﬂ 1,947,839 1,618,319 2,088,019 1,852,881 1,666,336 1,442,874
Coatings
R 283,742 | 222,634 292,475 | 257,446 248,656 205,524
Lubricants
it 67,091 103,252 135,974 80,753 103,616 120,727
Others
RS
Elimination (89,391) (85,067) (89,719) (77,712) (115,827) (96,541)
“azE
Total 5,654,783 4,072,555 5,455,742 5,089,931 4,648,386 3,913,836

M. BRBE-ZEAF+-AZ+-BNEAZEEN  UEFE MEZBBCEEK - AEER - Z-ZFRMRFEBRA=A=+—BBRT=

A=+—8 8N EFRB R EEREIEFLE -

All the figures of the above years/period are audited except for the nine-month period ended 31 December 2009. Since the Group changed its

financial year end from 31 March to 31 December in 2010, the unaudited figures for such corresponding period are provided for comparison.




BN D HEEZ 2 TF DM Analysis of Turnover and Segment Result for the Past Five Years

BEME musn
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B DIEELE 2 TE DM Analysis of Turnover and Segment Result for the Past Five Years

5T E FSegment Result

225 —ETHhEF ZEThE —EEN\E —EZtE ZETRF
mA—-BE, mWH—AEZ MWHP-AE | WP—AE  MWHP—AE  MWP—AZ
=2—-2¥ ZEThE ZE-%F ZEThE ZEENF ZETLE
+=A=+—-A8 +=BA=t-B =A=t-8 | =ZA=t-A =A=t-A =A=t-*H
1.4.2010 1.4.2009 1.4.2009 1.4.2008 1.4.2007 1.4.2006
to to to to to to
31.12.2010 31.12.2009 31.3.2010 31.3.2009 31.3.2008 31.3.2007
(9fER) (918 R) (12188) (12188) (12188) (12188)
(9-month_) (9-month) (12-month) (12-month) (12-month) (12-month)
TF#T BT FTET BT TET BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
5 7
i 244,312 251,700 327,044 212,682 250,185 252,324
Solvents
ZH 109,836 | 192,838 181,534 | 128112 124,046 88,501
Coatings
NESN =R
Lubricants 5,799 (1,183) 7,568 (7,284) 9,493 (6,384)
Rty 4,979 10,963 14,039 6,101 9,461 13,952
Others
R 5
Elimination 4,099 (2,557) (7,402) (371) (473) RN
&)
%E—i 369,025 451,761 522,783 339,240 392,712 348,504

Mz : BRBE-ZTAFT-A=+—-BANERZEEN  ULFE HEZBEELEER - ARER - ZFLHRFFEBR=A=+—A%A+=
A=+—8 BIHEFRBZ REEXBIBIELE
All the figures of the above years/period are audited except for the nine-month period ended 31 December 2009. Since the Group changed its
financial year end from 31 March to 31 December in 2010, the unaudited figures for such corresponding period are provided for comparison.

Note:




EEBR D EERE 2 HF S Analysis of Turnover and Segment Result for the Past Five Years
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Chairman’s Statement — Review and Prospects
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FRESRE-EEENRE Chairman’s Statement — Review and Prospects

B Review

BT HRASX(KERENEE  £E@REB  In order to better match the Group’s reporting period with business
—E-EFHRFLEAERAES  BLEAEE  needs, the management has decided, starting in 2010, to change the
EEE AAREMAMOEE2EREMEIHKE  financial year from March year-end to December year-end, in line with
—E-ZFNAZE_E-ZFE+_A-HAEA the general practice in the Mainland. Accordingly, | am pleased to report
BN - BANEEERBWEENLELESB  to our shareholders the business performance for the nine-month
$%18536,000M8 A15,654,783,000/8 T o LbEXEHE  period from April 2010 to December 2010. During the reporting period,
BHAKIEEE » 2BI228%M39% » &  aggregate sales volume and revenue rose to 536,000 metric tons and
AT TEENES F ok o HK$5,654,783,000 respectively, representing a growth of 28% and 39%

respectively. These levels are both new record highs in the Group’s history.

i@ HRHE BREELAGRREH%E However, profit attributable to shareholders only reached HK$264,509,000,
264,509,000 7T MEFEREL T#21% * 1B representing a decline of 21% from the corresponding period a year ago.
2P EENREL TEH255%D BRMMBKZE - Nevertheless, this result is still an improvement from the 25% decline
HANEENEXETHRBEA - £EESEH  which we reported for the first half. During the period in question, turnover
ERBEEZEMN  YEAFRSAREFEBMIEE  continued to grow unabatedly, resulting in a corresponding increase in
MIEE  SEEENERAIAEEESNRERN  the demand for working capital. At the same time, the Group has decided
HEBENRE EEEBRT-—BEEFEEHRL to continue to proceed with its large and long-term capital investment
EBBRNSEXNIZIEE  FEBEMNBMKARR  programme to cater for future demand growth. However, the Group is
WERBZETORBRENKTE - FEBEEMMEE  firmly committed to its policy of fiscal prudency, enforced through close
LEREE149%MTAEKFR - BLESEEZE  monitoring of a vast array of internal financial tools, thus allowing the
B EBRRMRREAARESRI0EBIL - EEE  Group to maintain a healthy balance sheet. As at end 2010, the Group’
IR PERE > WERBMARNAHERIKE22 s gearing ratio, at 14.9%, is well within planned levels. Taking all these
AL o factors into consideration, the Board recommends a final dividend of
HK 10 cents per share. Together with the interim dividend, the total dividend
for the nine months ended December 2010 came to HK 22 cents per share.

CESR  EEEYESEY —EFEERHBE In retrospect, the Group faced an extremely difficult and challenging

BERBNEL RIBIE BREBRARS operating climate. The global economy remained weak, with recovery slow
SRERANSEERTIMIER - BONAE - in coming. In Europe, many countries remain troubled by the debt crisis.

ZERZERBHENEE - Z—FH @ #APE  Although China still experienced fairly healthy growth, governmental
BRHRSBENESTANEE  BHRBMAA  measures to curb inflation and prevent the economy from over-heating
BHEIR - FARRSEIBEL S HEEHE K have created temporary shock waves in the market. Moreover, a number
EENTEER MEZEBHMAEEMNBEAR  of provinces have also experienced large scale natural disasters. These
KELYHEBMPIROEBERTRRENEM  events have all adversely affected the Group’s businesses to varying
HE o R PEERRESBMEREY TEAN  degrees. However, the central government has acted quickly to reduce
Rt PEEE BRESHIOBEONMEE »  reliance on exports and to stimulate the growth of domestic demand, and
FEFMEHAET SRR LUEREEFE  the Group was able to read the market accurately and to take early action
BERENEE EEABRIFEEBRMBEIRT  to construct new plants at key strategic cities and locations to expand
B ARIPE  BREEEHMEWEHMMLE  capacity, build more comprehensive sales and distribution networks,
ERMY ENES BYFREMHENY  enhance investments in marketing and brand, and set a clear mid-term
K MATBEEHENRREIRMK - B8 goal of doubling its turnover over 5 years. Consequently, all the core
M VEERAFARZHTHEENTHIRE - Ak businesses have expanded sales rapidly, with their prime objectives to
EBERZROERILUBIZE » FEBFRIE/E  increase market penetration within the shortest possible time. During the
TSEHEAER BEMESUREEMNET  last two years, the Group's business expansion strategies have actually
NREREESNETERTENAENRY » B surpassed our expectations, with sales revenue growing by 39% over the
PIERRER FFRIMIAIBEEE39% o S A same period in the previous year. Not only is this result encouraging, it also
FEHEN FAEEABIRAL2013FE TR laid the foundation for the Group to reach HK$10 billion in turnover by
BEHEENTHEZETER - 2013, well ahead of its original mid-term goal.

Yip’s Chemical Holdings Limited 2010 Annual Report "
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Review (continued)

Profit attributable to shareholders was unable to keep pace with the
growth in turnover. Instead, it showed a 21% decline. One of the reasons
is the unusually favourable business conditions in the previous year, setting
a very high benchmark for this year. Another reason is the increased
front-end investments this year, both in terms of capital investments and
investments in brand and marketing. Moreover, extreme and unusual
volatilities in raw material prices have adversely impacted on the margins
of the Group’s core businesses, causing the net margins to decline to
unreasonably low levels. We believe that one of the greatest challenges,
and one with the greatest room for improvement, is to raise the net
operating margins. Accordingly, the consensus within the Group is that
our prime task for the year ahead is to reduce costs and to raise operating
margins. The Group is determined that through better coordination and
exploitation of synergies, effective measures can be taken to reduce
the impact of raw materials volatilities, thereby ensuring that the overall
margins will return to a reasonable level in two to three years.

Prospects

The rapid growth of the Group’s businesses in recent years was founded
upon the sustained high growth in China’s economy and the development
of the market for domestic demand. The Group is highly confident that
these trends will continue. Although China has trimmed its economic
growth target to 7% in the Twelve 5-year plan which will be implemented
this year, it also explicitly states that the development model will be revised
to accelerate the urbanization of the rural community which will enhance
the spending power of the vast rural population, and that strong domestic
demand growth is expected to provide the impetus for the sustained
growth of the economy. The Group is determined to ride on the continued
development in China’s economy and grow to become one of China’s top
chemicals companies. At the same time that we expect our turnover to
reach HK$10 billion by 2013, we would also keep our ears to the ground
and follow the market's lead and make early plans for future growth. We
expect that we will finish all the new capacity expansions by 2015, and
that by then our distribution network will be further enhanced, our brand
strength will be even stronger, and the Group will operate from an even
more robust platform. At the same time, the Group will remain vigilant
towards the recent political instability in the Middle East and in North
Africa, with a view to preparing plans to tackle the challenges presented
by the uncertainties which may arise.
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Prospects (continued)

On the other hand, the size of the China market and the opportunities
it offers to business makes it one of the most attractive markets in the
world. The pace of its development has also made this one of the most
competitive, where eventually only the fittest will survive. Apart from
continuing to expand and enhance our market leadership, capitalizing on
the advantage of economy of scale and continue our brand investments,
we are also establishing the Group’s Technology Centre in Shanghai. We
plan to develop the Technology Centre to become one of the foremost
centres for technological excellence within the next five years, and
expect it to continuously enhance the core competitiveness of the Group
and to develop advanced products, thus making significant long-term
contributions to the development of the Group's businesses. We will also
continue to invest in human resources development, and will try to recruit
talent to join the Group. We believe that opportunities will only benefit
those who are ready to take it, and the Group will always strive to be in
a position to take whatever opportunities which may come our way. This
year also marks the Group’s 40th Anniversary. As the anniversary year
starts to unfold, we have designed a 40th Anniversary logo, and at the
same time examined the factors which made the Group grow and become
successful. We have distilled these factors into three main themes, which
are: “respect for and cooperation with all stakeholders, thirst for talent,
and undivided focus on our businesses.” Henceforth, we will conduct
our business with even more humility, always highly valuing the trust that
others place upon us and honouring our commitments. We will respect
and care for our employees more, and share the fruits of our success
with them. We believe this to be the most important element of our
stakeholder relationship, and will guide our way into a more prosperous
future.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | wish to thank all our employees for their
efforts and their contributions, and all our business partners for their trust
and their support.

Ip Chi Shing
Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 March 2011
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Solvents

During the nine-month period under review, turnover reached
HK$3,445,502,000, representing a growth of 56% over the corresponding
period of the previous year. Gross margin has started to recover from
First Half's levels. At HK$244,312,000, operating profit showed a slight
decline of 3% from the same nine-month period a year ago, but it has
shown significant improvement over the 23% decline reported in the First
Half. During the review period, the business benefited from expansion of
production capacity, the continued development of the Group's position in
Eastern China, and the increased demand for mixed solvents coming from
the growth of the Group’s coatings business. These factors combined
to allow the total solvents business to increase by 28% in volume over
the same nine-month period a year ago. In particular, the raw solvents
volume grew to 382,000 metric tons, representing a 30% increase from
the same nine-month period a year ago. During the period under review,
raw material costs for the acetate solvents experienced unusual volatilities,
causing margins to decline. However, the pressures of raw material price
volatility on solvents margins have come under control, and the decline in
overall solvents margins has narrowed, thus enabling the operating profits
to be much closer than last year’s levels than at the half-year period.

The Group expects the solvents business to continue to grow. In view of
the vast opportunities presented by the sustained development of China’s
economy, solvents revenue could double within the next five years. To
cater for the forecast growth in sales, efforts are underway to upgrade
existing plants to add another 100,000 metric tons to the Group’s current
500,000 metric tons annual production capacity of raw solvents. At the
same time, the additional 300,000 metric tons expansion to the Taixing
plant is proceeding according to plan, with the first phase of 150,000
metric tons expecting to be due for commissioning before 2013, and
the remaining second phase due for completion before 2015. These
expansion plans will enlarge the Group’s overall raw solvent capacity to
900,000 metric tons per annum, further enhancing its scale economy and
competitive advantage. On mixed solvents, we continue to expect growth
to accompany the development of the Group’s coatings businesses.

Yip’s Chemical Holdings Limited 2010 Annual Report 15
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7% [E|F8 CEO's Statement — Business Review

Coatings

During the nine-month reporting period, the coatings business recorded
a turnover of HK$1,947,839,000, representing a 20% increase from
the same period a year ago. However, as a result of decline in gross
margin, operating profit only reached HK$109,836,000, representing a
43% decline from the corresponding nine-month period of the previous
year. During the period under review, inks, resins, industrial paints and
household paints all recorded higher growth rates than in the First
Half, with overall volume reaching 111,400 metric tons, representing
an increase of 17%, but unusual volatilities in raw material prices have
caused rising cost pressures, resulting in margins registering a significant
decline from the abnormally high levels of the corresponding period a year
ago. Although the Group has taken necessary steps to contain costs and
improve margins, such efforts were largely offset by continued increases
in the prices for raw materials in the second half. Such costs increases,
coupled with increased spending on capital expenditures and marketing
costs, have caused a decline in operating profits after the extraordinarily
large increases in the previous year.

Looking forward, faced with uncertainties in the political and economic
situation abroad, rises in oil prices coupled with inflationary pressures in
China, the coatings industry will still be facing costs pressures. Competition
will be expected to further intensify, and in face of such difficult operating
conditions, the market will be expected to further consolidate, with the
weaker players facing elimination. To combat rising cost pressures, we will
continue to contain costs through optimization of coatings formulations
and exploitation of synergies of centralized procurement. At the same
time, we will investigate the feasibility of more vertical integration, such as
through investing in own-production of certain raw materials in order to
enhance our long-term competitiveness and raise margins.
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Coati NQgSs (Continued)

We are confident that, with years of cumulative competitive advantage,
our coatings businesses can take advantage of the opportunities presented
to us at this time to expand market share and to reach our target of
doubling our sales by 2014. As regards addition of production capacities,
the various projects such as the construction of new facilities on the two
hectares of land adjacent to the Zhongshan Inks Plant, the 6 hectares of
land adjacent to the Tongxiang Plant, and the new 22 hectares greenfield
site at Jinshan are all proceeding on schedule in order to cater for capacity
needs as the coatings businesses continue to expand.

On industrial coatings, offset printing inks for magazines, coatings for
electronic products, water-based and UV-cured varnishes will provide the
main impetus for growth. For household paints, the Bauhinia distribution
network has now expanded to over 1,500 single-branded stores, most
of which have by now been refurbished with the new Bauhinia signage.
Together with the planned expansion in the secondary and tertiary
towns, the coverage of the Bauhinia distribution network will be even
more comprehensive, which should put the Group in a good position
to capture the vast opportunities presented by the urbanization of the
rural and village areas. We will continue to invest in web-based and
media advertising, as well as Point-Of-Sale (POS) advertisements in the
construction materials markets in order to strengthen the brand presence
of Bauhinia Paints. Going forward, the Group maintains full confidence in
the continued growth and development of our overall coatings businesses.

Lubricants

During the period under review, the lubricants business recorded a
turnover of HK$283,742,000, which represented a growth of 27% from
the corresponding nine-month period a year ago. Operating profit reached
HK$5,799,000, which is a significant improvement over the loss position
of the corresponding nine-month period of the previous year. During this
period, both the specialty industrial lubricants and automotive lubricants
recorded encouraging growth. In particular, sales volume of automotive
anti-freeze grew by over threefold in the last three years. We expect that
through a more aggressive marketing and sales strategy and exploitation
of further synergies in our two lubricants subsidiaries, operating results
will continue to improve.

Wong Kam Yim
Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 29 March 2011
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Solvents

The solvents division produces environmentally friendly industrial organic
solvents, which can be grouped into two types: (1) raw solvents, including
ethyl acetate, normal butyl acetate, mixed butyl acetate and ethanol,
are widely used in industries such as coatings, tannery, medicine and
adhesives; (2) mixed solvents, commonly known as thinners, are mostly
used in the toys, electronics, printing and furniture industries.

As the Group's largest core business, solvents are produced and sold
through various subsidiaries. With a production capacity of 500,000
metric tons, it is currently the world’s largest producer of acetate solvents.

Economy of scale, stringent quality control, efficient operations and
strategic locations are all factors that contribute to the success of the
Group's solvents business.
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Coatings

The coatings division is involved in the production and marketing of
domestic architectural and industrial paints, inks, varnishes, and resins,
and serves an extensive range of industries, including construction, toys,
electronics, furniture, food and gift packaging, and printing.

Paints — Domestic Architectural Paints —

Brand name: “Bauhinia”

"Bauhinia” architectural paints include water-based
emulsion paints and solvent-based paints for wood
finishing. As one of the first batch of brands awarded
the "China Top Brand”, Bauhinia architectural paints
are well known for its superior quality. As the Group
will deploy more resources in promoting the brand,
Bauhinia architectural paints will continue its steady growth in future.
Besides, since the Bauhinia solvent-based paints for wood finishing is
already a market leader in China, the Group will focus on expanding its
share of the water-based decorative paints in future.

Paints - Industrial Paints -

Brand names: “Bauhinia”, “Adcoat”, “Pak Lam Choice”
"Bauhinia” industrial paints include paints for furniture, toys and electronic
casings. It has passed the stringent tests set by many world’s famous toy
and electronic brand manufacturers, and placed on their designated lists
of suppliers.

"Adcoat” is the brand name for a range of products for the electrical
and electronics industries. It includes a specialty insulating varnish and a
range of PCB printing inks for the electronics industry. "Adcoat” is the
first insulation varnish to have received the Underwriter Laboratories (UL)
approval in China.

“Pak Lam Choice” is digital electronic coatings used in digital products and
electronic appliances. The product range includes: UV series, PU series,
electroplating effect series etc. “Pak Lam Choice” specializes in high-
quality and special color effect coatings and is widely used by international
renowned electronic manufacturers.
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Coatings (Continued)

Inks — Brand names: “Bauhinia Variegata”

Since its establishment in 1998, the inks business has specialized in the
development of plastic printing inks and gravure inks and is the largest
supplier of ink products for the plastic shopping bags and food packaging
in China today. The business has three strategically well positioned
manufacturing sites in Southern, Eastern, and Northern China. In recent
years, the Group has introduced environmentally friendly products such as
benzene-free and ketone-free inks, alcohol-based inks and water-based
inks in response to market demands.

To further broaden the inks business profile, development of offset
printing inks commenced in 2006, and is expected to provide the Group's
inks business with further impetus for growth in the years ahead.

Specialty Varnishes — Brand name: “Golaxxo”

"Golaxxo” is a specialty glossy varnish for printing and post-printing
processes. It finds application in the finishes for books, cards and other
stationery, as well as in gift boxes and boxes for toys. Golaxxo is a leading
brand of blister packing varnishes, UV varnishes and paper laminating
glues in China.

Resins — Brand name: “Da Chang”

Resins is a key ingredient in coatings formulations. The resins division,
operating under the "Da Chang” brand, specializes in the production of
resins for paints manufacturing. The majority of the resins produced are
sold to third parties while a small portion of the resins produced is used
internally bu Group companies. The superior quality of Da Chang resins
enjoys a good reputation among customers in the paints industry.

Yip’s Chemical Holdings Limited 2010 Annual Report 23
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Egim Lubricants

[HhERERTIEMBH -[HEIEHEE Brands: "Hercules” automotive and industrial lubricants,
SERRHRME and "Pacoil” specialty lubricants

[T RERTEBRBEH [E5 /S5%8E4EE  The "Hercules” brand of lubricants includes a comprehensive range of
HEmmEl h+ AR hEE—RSI2RERT  automotive and industrial lubricants products, which features engine oils,
(EBHMER  BIERBMM - THK - F1FE  antifreeze fluid, brake fluid, greases, gear oil, automatic transmission fluid,
o EBRE - SR BB - WESR hydraulic oil, and turbine oil. “Hercules” successfully gained approval in
EBmEHE [ T IEBERERNERERS The National High Technology Research and Development Program (863
M2 R T2 (86352 ) WMBIEREREEE  Program), which aims at developing specialized methanol fuel engine oil.
PR B B B S VT R 3R -

(e e EEEm BITEMALEM  "Pacoil” brand of specialty lubricants serve industries such as metal
T BB -R"RE-MAX -BEF B8 H#- processing, plastics, automobiles, aeronautics, electronics, electrical
RE-BEREINITETE I EEETH  appliances, weaving and timber, as well as watches and clocks. In addition,
[ERAPY ITEARRERVERAMEMNIEE  the lubricants division is also a distributor for many leading global specialty

B MR - @Castrol-Optimol » Castrol-Tribol » lubricant brands such as Castrol-Optimol, Castrol-Tribol, Sumico and
Sumico * Milacron& ° Milacron.
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As the Group’s businesses continue to expand, we are always mindful
of and are constantly guided by the motto “What comes from the
community is to be used for the community”. The Group treats corporate
social responsibility as part of its mission, and sees it as a worthy, long-
term commitment. The Group seeks to proactively fulfill our corporate
social responsibilities and to incorporate the concept of sustainability
into its business practices and its daily operations, as well as to introduce
the concept to its employees and their families, its customers, business
partners as well as the public at large. The Group hopes that its efforts
can help to facilitate the sustainable development of society from the
economic, social and environmental perspectives, thus contributing
towards a more and more harmonious society.

Safety First

In early 2010, the Group established a “Group Health, Safety and
Environment Department” to better co-ordinate the Group’s HSE efforts
and to enhance the working environment in order to ensure that all our
employees are able to work in a healthy and safe environment. Soon after
its establishment, the department carried out safety checks on all of the
Group's plants. As at end 2010, the safety checks have covered all of the
Group's 17 plants, with improvements proposed to further enhance their

safety standards.
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HEgsEE Social Responsibility

B-ZZ\FHKR EEETRREEBEBELE  Since 2008, the Group has been concentrating its efforts on a flagship CSR
HEEEETH E—SHEBOETESEEM  programme to spearhead our CSR commitment. Following the donation
B2 EE#H_TTSN\FEBAMIELFEET  of the first mobile eye surgery centre to the Ningxia Hui Autonomous
NFEESES  OTHEEQEBEAREIBESE—  Region through the Asian Foundation for the Prevention of Blindness in
ABREBBERFMES  RRENABIHEIBE 2008, the Group further donated a second mobile eye surgery centre —
E_ARDREMFMEBIERE =9 EHBITIEH  “Vision Restoration Centre no.3” in August 2010 to the Jiangsu Province to
BEHNHANBHEAER - ZRBRERFMEIREE  restore the vision of cataract patients. The programme has proven to be a
BEERMNEE  BAZMARBBERFEMES  resounding success. To date, over 1,900 cataract patients in the poor rural
RIWBBBE—TNLEZRAMERNHAESRE  regions of the Mainland have been served by these two mobile surgery
BHAANEZEFEMRATIZEEAFM -4  centres and have their vision restored by undergoing cataract surgery and
BEOKRBEARERIHEE  EEEHN=Z——  artificial lenses implants. These two mobile eye surgery centres will be
FZRARREE-SRBBRFMEZTILEE - % followed by the third mobile eye surgery centre which the Group will be
FHELSEBN-Z—ZFHAAELRTHAA  donating to the Shandong Province in March 2011. This mobile surgery
BEEFEEFEREABKRASERIMBEEESS  centre in Shandong is actually the first centre covered under the “Ten-year
FE(RBBERFME+FE PN EEFM  Donation Plan” which the Group signed with the China Disabled Persons
Bo Hilt RARERELE+T_PHEBMIBELH  Association and the Asian Foundation for the Prevention of Blindness at
FMEAEARNMABDEMRITE  HBBIRWERK  Diaoyutai State Guesthouse in Beijing in May 2010. So in due course, there
EENREHEMNARNERESR  ZMMES  will be at least 12 mobile eye surgery centres donated by the Group in
RBZENHR  YEHFRALE  EHBE - different provinces, serving the underprivileged cataract patients who live in

rural areas of the Mainland, giving them the joy of seeing this colorful world

as well as, in many cases, restoring their ability to work and make a living.

BALEHESEINESTIRABRNEBEN  The Group is pleased that the concept of CSR is also embraced by its
BH > SFFEETEBEAETEEMHEYEIE  subsidiaries who have also been actively involved in many programmes for
FEHNHNEE  c EEETREEFTEZE—H  the underprivileged community in different regions. The Group’s Bauhinia
UETRAEREE  BRAGEBEACSE R Paints have always had the vision of bringing hopes to the people for a
RE+H BHIEBUST - BEZRBZHX  colorful life. In October 2010, Bauhinia Paints contributed to the renovation
EMLEETREREEZY KD OETEHIT  of the Shanghai QingCongQuan Autism Training Centre by sending
2 2RBEMINEEER . A—ERE  volunteers and donating coating materials to refurbish the centre and
BN/ MAEH —ERERANEES  allow the disadvantaged children to have a healthy and environmentally
RIE o friendly training centre to aid in their recovery and training.
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Economic Contribution

To keep up with the requirements of a rapidly growing business, the
Group currently employs around 4,800 employees, offering them
opportunities for training and career development. Over the years,
the Group has contributed, via its business activities, to the social and
economic development of the community in which it operates.

Environmental Protection

In the past year, the Group has actively participated in environmental
protection activities such as the “Tree Planting Challenge” organized by
“Friends of the Earth”. At the same time, the Group is also committed to
efforts to promote energy saving in offices, such as replacing the older
fluorescent tubes with more energy efficient T5 tubes. Up to now, 10% of
the Group office’s lighting in Hong Kong have already been converted to
T5 tubes. The Group also replaced all traditional halogen lamps in its Hong
Kong office to LED lightings to reduce electricity consumption as well as to
lower the temperature.

Apart form the Group, different subsidiaries have also incorporated
various elements of environmental friendliness and sustainability into
their operations, production and R&D. For instance, in order to meet the
increasing demands from consumers for cleaner and healthier products,
“Bauhinia Paints” launched a series of environmental products in 2010.
An example was a range of paints featuring extremely low VOC (volatile
organic compounds), as well as formulated without the hazardous

substances such as benzene, mercury and lead etc. Not only does it help to

promote cleaner and healthier living of its customers, it also contributes to
a cleaner environment.
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HE Awards

{FinanceAsia) — [2010FEEMREE FinanceAsia— Five Major Awards in “2010 Asia’s Best
BAF REFEHNZAXTHSE Managed Companies Poll —Hong Kong

EFAAREM AACFinanceAsia) SRS+ In April 2010, the Group was cited by FinanceAsia’s 10th Annual Poll of
FEEMNBEQAT-BBABIMNREZBREARNTAM  Asia's Top Companies in five categories, including:

FRIEEREHASE » DREBUTHS :

—[RERXRAERIEN ; —"Best Managed Companies” (Hong Kong) — ranked 9th;
—[BRECELEEFEIE N —"Best Corporate Social Responsibility” (Hong Kong) — ranked 8th;

— [BREREEBRIENN —"Best Investor Relations” (Hong Kong) — ranked 9th;
—[RELEERIEN ; —"Best Corporate Governance” (Hong Kong) — ranked 9th;
—[BEOEFEREREBER %12 —"Most Committed to a Strong Dividend Policy” (Hong Kong) — ranked 10th

SEECREE=-FAEEREGESKE KB This is the third consecutive year that the Group has been honoured in

EEECEES REEBERMESEERSFME  this regional poll, which is a testimony that the efforts by the Group in

FrEHHINEE h » B RESRAG - the areas of corporate governance, investor relations and corporate social
responsibility are well recognised by the investment community.

(EMEREER)HEFE —$SXEI2010F Corporate Governance Asia— “6th Corporate Governance
TEMERERKE ] Asia Recognition Awards 2010”
EENAE R ALERGCNOEE AR The Group won the “6th Corporate Governance Asia Recognition Awards
FERBE2010FEMEEERRE |« E@—H  2010” presented by Corporate Governance Asia in June 2010. The Group
WHEERSOESHKT  BREERERE is dedicated to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance,
RISMMEE - SO EMNERBETZMA to ensure transparency, accountability and integrity. To win this award,
AELEEARAFEEITTEARRE - YEHBE  the awarded companies must have implemented significant and specific
HECEERZENNBTEE - corporate governance-related reforms, and must have been involved in a
specific publicly-known activity directly related to improving the standards
of corporate governance during the past 12 months.

TREEHRER [“ZS—FTF#EHBH Hong Kong Productivity Council—*“2010 Hong Kong
LEIRE  HEEXERIE] Outstanding Corporate Citizenship Award — Certificate of
Merit-Enterprise Sector in Manufacturing Industry”
EBNAE+ - BYLEREBEENEERMERE  The Group was awarded the “Certificate of Merit — Enterprise Sector in
CEEIZZ-—ZSEFBHEHOENARE —RIEHX  Manufacturing Industry” of “2010 Hong Kong Outstanding Corporate
BREIZE] BEBEENRERR2NRE Citizenship Award” by Hong Kong Productivity Council in November
FTEEATREBBBEITOEMESEMN IR 2010. The purpose of this award by the Hong Kong Productivity Council
¥ O EL¥NERESBAHLEMERER s to recognise enterprises’ achievements in corporate social responsibility,
o EEAE s e BENAEFERE - especially those who are able to incorporate the essence of corporate
citizenship into their management philosophies and their operations, thus
promoting the enterprise’s sustainable development in the economic,
social as well as environmental areas.
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Awards (Continued)

The Asset— “Titanium Award for Corporate Governance,
Social Responsibility and Investor Relations”

In “The Asset Corporate Award 2010” organised by “The Asset”
magazine in December 2010, the Group garnered the “Titanium Award
for Corporate Governance, Social Responsibility and Investor Relations”.
The Group has been honoured by The Asset Corporate Awards for two
consecutive years. This year, in addition to highlighting our achievements
in corporate governance and investor relations, we also received
recognition for our efforts in corporate social responsibility.

Asiamoney — Number 3 ranking in the “Best for Shareholders’
Rights and Equitable Treatment”

The Group has ranked third in the “Best for Shareholders’ Rights and
Equitable Treatment” category in the Asiamoney Corporate Governance
Poll for Hong Kong in December 2010. Companies in this category are
selected on the basis of their efforts in protecting the rights of their
shareholders and in ensuring fair treatment of all shareholders. The award
is a recognition of the unrelenting efforts made by the Group to fulfill the
promises made to its shareholders, to respect their rights and to ensure
that they receive equitable treatment which they deserve.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources
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The Group will continue to implement prudent financial management
policy and strive to maintain a reasonable gearing ratio during expansion.
As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s gearing ratio (measured by net
bank borrowings as a percentage of equity attributable to owners of the
Company) was 14.9% (31 March 2010: 2.1%). The increase in gearing
ratio was mainly attributable to the Group’s additional bank borrowings
for its investments in new factories and production facilities to capture
new market and sales opportunity. The Group’s business expansion in
Eastern China also required longer credit period granted to customers
and increased receipts of banker’s acceptances (i.e. bills receivables) as
compared to the market practices in Southern China. The Group will
closely monitor its liquidity and adopt necessary measures to manage
lengthened cash collection cycle.

As at 31 December 2010, the gross bank borrowings of the Group
amounted to HK$1,237,261,000 (31 March 2010: HK$1,051,141,000).
Out of this amount, HK$945,428,000 (31 March 2010: HK$823,141,000)
were short-term loans and repayable within one year. Such loans were
denominated in three currencies, namely HK$616,226,000 in Hong Kong
Dollar, HK$315,828,000 in US Dollar and HK$13,374,000 in Renminbi (31
March 2010: HK$382,337,000 was denominated in Hong Kong Dollar,
HK$378,367,000 in US Dollar and HK$62,437,000 in Renminbi). Long-
term loans repayable after one year amounted to HK$291,833,000 (31
March 2010: HK$228,000,000) and they were all denominated in Hong
Kong Dollar. Both short-term and long-term loans carried interests at
floating or fixed rates.
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(Continued)

As at 31 December 2010, a total of 11 banks in Hong Kong, Macau and
PRC granted banking facilities totaling HK$2,819,013,000 (31 March 2010:
HK$2,413,621,000) to the Group and provided sufficient funds to meet
its present working capital and expansion. 69%, 20% and 11% of these
banking facilities were denominated in Hong Kong Dollar, Renminbi and
US Dollar respectively. The Group is in negotiation with several banks to
arrange 5 years bilateral long-term loans of about HK$1.5 billion for the
Group's expected growth and development in capital expenditure and
working capital requirement.

Since the borrowings of the Group carry interests at floating rate, some
of our funding costs are subject to interest rate fluctuation. Following the
launch of another round of quantitative easing measures by the United
States, continuous inflow of hot money to Hong Kong has maintained
the three months or shorter Hong Kong Dollar inter-bank interest rate at
a very low level and this helped the Group to reduce its borrowing costs.
With the expected increase in long-term bank loans and in view of the
current low interest rate, the Group will consider using interest rate swaps
to hedge against interest rate fluctuation of bank loans according to the
currency, amount and duration of the loans. Besides, the Group is exposed
to Renminbi exchange rate risk as the Group’s assets are mainly located
on the mainland China and most of its income is generated in Renminbi.
It is expected that economic development in China will remain strong
and Renminbi will appreciate at a steady pace. Thus, the management
considers that no hedging measure against Renminbi exchange rate
exposure is necessary at this stage but will closely monitor its fluctuations.
The Group will strike a balance between lowering borrowing cost and
minimising currency exposure by structuring an optimal combination of
Hong Kong Dollar, US Dollar or Renminbi bank loans.
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As at 31 December 2010, there were a total of 4,873 employees, of which
142 were from Hong Kong and Macau, and 4,731 were from Mainland
China.

The Group places a high degree of emphasis on the management of
human capital, from the identification of the talent pool, to providing
training and development and all the way to offering proper opportunities
for them to perform to their fullest potential. Through both in-house
and external training programs, on-the-job training, and participation
in subsidized educational courses, employees are able to improve their
performance and enhance their value to the Group. We offer excellent
opportunities for development of those employees who have the potential
and the commitment, regardless of their background, geographical region,
or educational levels. Through versatile experience in challenging roles, the
current leadership of the Group has come through the ranks to advance
to positions of management. In addition to promotion from within, the
Group seeks to attract talent from outside and also recruit top graduates
from the best tertiary institutions in Hong Kong, in the Mainland, and
abroad and provide them with training and development opportunities.
The Group has been running the Management Trainee program for some
years, and some of the former trainees have already advanced to positions
of leadership within the Group, either as General Manager of subsidiary
company or Head of functional department.

The Group offers a challenging work environment, and has a variety
of programs to encourage employees to strive for their best and to
upgrade their skills in order that the Group has sufficient talent to move
forward and to continue its business development. Based on references
to the market trend analysis, the Group seeks to provide reasonable
and competitive remuneration packages which include basic salary and
performance-based bonuses and stock options to attract and retain good
performers.
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EEELE
Mr. Wong Kam Yim

Executive Directors

Mr. Ip Chi Shing, aged 63, is the co-founder of the Group and the
chairman of the Group. Mr. Ip has 40 years of experience in the
manufacture of and trading in petrochemical products. He is the brother
of Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, deputy chairman of the Group and executive director
of the Company and the father of Mr. Ip Kwan, a member of the Group
Management Committee, who was appointed on 1 April 2010. In 2006,
Mr. Ip established “Ip Chi Shing Charitable Foundation Limited” with
the objectives of fostering education in China and providing care for the
underprivileged groups in Hong Kong.

Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, aged 52, joined the Group in 1977. Mr. Yip is the deputy
chairman of the Group and an executive director of the Company and
is also the chairman of a number of subsidiaries of the Group including
Yip's Ink and Chemicals (Group) Limited, Jiangmen Handsome Chemical
Development Limited, Jiangmen Thansome Solvents Production Limited,
Huizhou Shengda Chemical Co., Limited and Taixing Jinjiang Chemical
Industry Company Limited. He has over 30 years of experience in the
manufacture of and trading in petrochemical products. He is the brother
of Mr. Ip Chi Shing, executive director of the Company.

Mr. Wong Kam Yim, aged 50, has been the chief executive officer of
the Group since 2008. Mr. Wong was appointed as an executive director
of the Company in 2002. Mr. Wong graduated from the University of
Sheffield in the United Kingdom in 1987 with a Bachelor’s Degree in
Business Studies and obtained a Master Degree in Business Administration
from the University of Wales in the United Kingdom in 1988. He joined
the Group in 1996 and has over 20 years of experience in marketing and
management.
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Mr. Ho Sai Hou Mr. Ng Siu Ping

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Li Wai Man, Peter, aged 53, has been an executive director of the
Company and the chief operations officer of the Group since 2008. Mr.
Li joined the Group in 2004 as assistant director and since then has also
served as a director for a number of subsidiaries of the Group. He obtained
a Bachelor’s Degree in Mechanical Engineering from The University of
Hong Kong and a Master Degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Li has worked in a multi-national
petrochemical company for over 20 years and has extensive experience in
engineering, corporate planning, marketing and operations.

Mr. Ho Sai Hou, aged 44, joined the Group as the chief financial officer in
August 2010 and was appointed as an executive director of the Company
on 1 January 2011. Mr. Ho obtained a Bachelor of Social Sciences Degree
in Accounting from The University of Hong Kong and completed his EMBA
with The China Europe International Business School in 2007. Previously,
Mr. Ho had worked for several listed companies in Hong Kong as their
chief financial officer, executive director and company secretary. He is
a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He has over 22 years of experience in accounting,
finance, taxation and company secretarial work.

Mr. Ng Siu Ping, aged 52, has been an executive director of the Company
since 1992. Mr. Ng obtained a Higher Diploma in Accountancy from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) in 1980. Mr. Ng is currently responsible for the overall
management of the corporate governance of the Group. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He joined the Group in 1991 and has over 30 years of
experience in the field of auditing and accounting.
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BERLE
Mr. Tong Wui Tung

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Ting Hon Yam, aged 57, has been an executive director of
the Company since 1994. He is currently responsible for the overall
management of the Group’s business development in China. Mr. Ting
joined the Group in 1983 and has over 20 years of experience in the
petrochemical industry.

Mr. Young Man Kim, aged 63, has been an executive director of the
Company since 2002 and is also the head of corporate communications
department of the Group. Mr. Young received a Master’s degree in
Chemistry from the University of California, Berkeley in 1972 and a MBA
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong’s 3-Year MBA Programme in
1981. He has extensive experience in the petrochemical industry, and was
the Director for Hong Kong/Macau for Shell Hong Kong Limited from
1993 to 2000. He is also a member of the Executive Committee of the
Hong Kong Housing Society, a member of the Marketing Management
Committee of the Hong Kong Management Association, and the
chairperson of Friends of the Earth (Charity) Limited.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Tong Wui Tung, aged 61, was elected as an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 1993 and was re-designated as a
non-executive director of the Company in 2004. Mr. Tong is a partner of
the law firm, Messrs. Cheung, Tong & Rosa, legal advisers of the Group on
Hong Kong Law which receives usual professional fees in connection with
services rendered to the Group. Mr. Tong has been practising as a solicitor
in Hong Kong for over 30 years and is also an independent non-executive
director of Country Garden Holdings Company Limited, a company listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie  Mr. Li Chak Man

BSEHLE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Kong Chi, aged 53, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 1993. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Wong retired in 1993 after working in the merchant banking industry
for over 10 years. Mr. Wong does not hold any directorship in other listed
companies.

Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie, aged 65, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since 2004. Mr. Au-Yeung
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) in 1974. He is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Au-Yeung has extensive experience in
management, having held senior executive appointments in the tertiary
education field and the service industry for over 30 years. He is the
treasurer of a charitable organization which raises funds and advocates for
the well-being of children. He is also the Honorary Secretary of the Hong
Kong Anti Cancer Society. Mr. Au-Yeung does not hold any directorship in
other listed companies.

Mr. Li Chak Man, aged 63, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2004. Mr. Li graduated from Texas A&M
University with a Master Degree in Statistics in 1973. Mr. Li retired in
2004 after having worked in the petrochemical industry for over 25 years
accumulating extensive experience in logistics, procurement, management,
personnel and administration. He was a representative to the Association
of International Chemical Manufacturers in the 90’s to promote safety
distribution of hazardous chemicals. Mr. Li does not hold any directorship
in other listed companies.
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Mr. Ip Kwan

Independent Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Ku Yuen Fun, aged 59, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2008. Mr. Ku graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University)
and began his career at Shell Chemicals. Mr. Ku has extensive managerial
experience in the oil & petrochemical industries in the Greater China
region. He was a Director of Shell Hong Kong Limited, a Board Director
of the Business Environment Council and the Chairman of Tianjin
International Petroleum Storage and Transportation Company Limited. Mr.
Ku does not hold any directorship in other listed companies.

Management Executives

Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu, aged 46, joined the Group in 1987 and served
at various subsidiaries or departments of the Group. He is currently the
general manager of Yip's Ink & Chemicals (Group) Limited, a subsidiary
of the Group and has been appointed as a member of the Group
Management Committee since April 2005. Mr. Kwong obtained a Master
Degree in Business Administration from The Open University of Hong
Kong in 2003.

Mr. Ip Kwan, aged 28, has been the general manager of the Hong Kong
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing (Greater China) Company Limited (“Bauhinia
Paints"”), a subsidiary of the Group, since 1 January 2011. Mr. Ip joined the
Group as an assistant to director of the Group in 2007 and subsequently
served as the marketing director of Bauhinia Paints. Mr. Ip has also been
appointed as a member of the Group Management Committee since April
2010. He is the son of Mr. Ip Chi Shing, the chairman of the Group. He
graduated from the London School of Economics with a Bachelor’s Degree
in Government and Economics. Before he joined the Group, he worked in
the investment banking industry for 3 years.
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Mr. Leung Wing Ching, Isaac

HEEELE
Mr. Zhao Chu Bang

Management Executives (continued)

Mr. Fung Ping Kwong, aged 47, joined the Group in 2010 and was the
head of Group Human Resources. Mr. Fung obtained a Bachelor Degree
in Science (Economics) from The University of London, a Master Degree in
Business Administration from The University of Warwick and a Diploma in
Training Management jointly conferred by The Chinese University of Hong
Kong and The Institute of Personnel and Development, United Kingdom.
Mr. Fung has extensive experience in different human resources areas
including organizational development, management development, talent
management and employee relations. He worked in a number of multi-
national companies from insurance, petrochemical and pharmaceutical
industries. Before he joined the Group, he was the Group HR Director of
a Hong Kong listed company.

Mr. Leung Wing Ching, Isaac, aged 43, is the financial controller of
the Group. Mr. Leung is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Accountancy with
the City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Leung joined the Group in 1996
and has over 10 years of experience in the field of auditing, finance and
management.

Mr. Zhao Chu Bang, aged 49, is an experienced engineer. He joined
the Group in 1993 and has been the managing director of Jiangmen
Handsome Chemical Development Limited since 2005. He graduated from
the South China University of Technology in 1983. Mr. Zhao has over 20
years of experience in the chemical industry and has extensive experience
in management.
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BWXHREE  BEN+=m% - R—AAZEMA  Mr. Wong Man Chun, aged 42, joined a company in the special lubricants
BHEEBBITE YR —NANZFEEFEAKE  industry in 1990 and was the China marketing and business manager in
TIEREREE - BEER—AAFEERIIA 1992, In 1995, he established a company named “Pacific Oil & Chemical
PERMBRAT ] BZSZTRERAKREE  Company Limited”, a subsidiary of the Group since 2005, and has since
ZHBLATR > WIEFESHELEE B - HEE  been the managing director of that company. He is responsible for the
EERAXEHRRREEIE- China business development and management work.

ERBEE  BEN+AE - A—NNATEMA  Mr. Huang Guang De, aged 46, joined the Group in 1994, has been the
AEBIR-_SSTAAFEEEAEBAE  general manager of Dachang Polymers (Huizhou) Ltd. (formerly known as
RXEBB(EMBRLAG(FIBEBAKEITE  Hui Yang Da Chang Industrial Limited) since 2006. Mr. Huang graduated
BRARB) 2BEEBE - FERE—NNTLFEEHE  from the Department of Chemistry, Zheng Zhou University in 1984, is
NEBMAEBLEZR BEEARABEELEBEFR  a patent agent authorized by the State Intellectual Property Office of
RIEBAREMNTEZZEEERAKE » I$8ZEE  the People’s Republic of China and a member of the Safety Production
BEINADESREESHABEMEREEZLR  Expert's Group of Huizhou City, holds a Certificate of Senior Management
EEASTIHTEEITMEY - HEZEHEIE  Consultant from American International Training Association, and has
GEReTE o A BT TIPS  FFEFTFI{E IR completed a course in business administration and a course in project
11 BELREE - management at Tsing Hua University. Before joining the Group, he has
worked in government departments, research institutes and chemical
factories with extensive experience in management.

BB MME BE-+ 1\ WRZZTFNAE=H  Ms. Yau Ching Man, aged 28, has been the general manager of the Best
EEAAEEEWBLARESEEMARAR  Lubricant Blending Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, since
ST o I MAN—SERFEEENEBKRE  February 2009. Ms. Yau graduated from The University of Hong Kong with
WEBRTERTRES T2 FAEMAKREB  a Bachelor's Degree in Computer Engineering in 2005 and then joined
BITHEBRIBE - HAR-ZEZLEMAZEL  the Group as the executive management trainee. She was the marketing

R BEBRA RIEEMIEIARE - manager of the Best Lubricant Blending Limited in 2007.
RWIEE > RFME W=—ZE—FF+tH—  Mr. Zhang Xin Hong, aged 44, has been appointed as the acting

AEZTAEEENBEATEERMILIAMRAT  general manager of Hang Cheung Petrochemical Limited, a subsidiary
CZEIPEKIR o HA1990FE R NEMAE o of the Group, since 1 July 2010. Mr. Zhang graduated from the Lanzhou
WA1993EMAREB AL EAMELTITEEIES  University in 1990. He joined the Group in 1993 and has over 10 years of
HEEETZ2FK8 - experience in the management of the petrochemical industry.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
nine-month period ended 31 December 2010. The financial period covers
the period from 1 April to 31 December 2010.

Change in Financial Year End Date

The board of Directors (the “Board”) has resolved to change the financial
year end date of the Company from 31 March to 31 December. The reason
for such a change is to make the financial year end date of the Company
consistent with the financial year end date for the Group’s subsidiaries in
the People’s Republic of China.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal subsidiaries
are engaged in the manufacture of and trading in solvents, coatings and
lubricants.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for the nine-
month period ended 31 December 2010 are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 65 and note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively. An interim dividend of
HK12.0 cents per share was paid to the shareholders during the nine-month
period. The Directors propose a final dividend of HK10.0 cents per share
totalling not less than HK$55,000,000 and the retention of the remaining
profit in reserves.

Share Capital

Details of and movements in the issued share capital of the Company during
the nine-month period are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the nine-month period are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 68 of
the consolidated financial statements.

The Company's reserves available for distribution represent the share
premium, special reserve and retained profits. Under Chapter 22 of the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company
is available for distribution or paying dividends to shareholders subject to
the provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided
that immediately following the distribution or dividend, the Company is
able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, dividends can be
distributed out of the share premium and retained profits of the Company,
which amounted to HK$760,497,000 as at 31 December 2010 (31 March
2010: HK$719,891,000).

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group

during the nine-month period are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2010 are
set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors and Service Contracts

The Directors during the nine-month period and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ip Chi Shing, Chairman
Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, Deputy Chairman
Mr. Wong Kam Yim
Mr. Li Wai Man, Peter
Mr. Ho Sai Hou
(appointed on 1 January 2011)
Mr. Ng Siu Ping
Mr. Ting Hon Yam
Mr. Young Man Kim
Ms. Ip Fung Kuen, Deputy Chairman (retired on 1 April 2010)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Tong Wui Tung

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Kong Chi

Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie
Mr. Li Chak Man

Mr. Ku Yuen Fun

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Wong Kam Yim, Mr. Li Wai Man, Peter and Mr. Young Man Kim, being
executive Directors, and Mr. Li Chak Man, being independent non-executive
Director, will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election as Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company and in the case of Mr. Li Chak Man, for a specific term of three
years based on the Board resolution dated 3 September 2010 approving the
change of specific term of the non-executive Directors from two years to
three years. The term of Mr. Ho Sai Hou, whose appointment as an executive
Director was effective on 1 January 2011, will expire at the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting. All of them, being eligible, will offer
themselves for election by the shareholders of the Company. All remaining
Directors will continue in office. At the annual general meeting last year,
the non-executive Director, Mr. Tong Wui Tung, and the independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. Wong Kong Chi, Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie
and Mr. Ku Yuen Fun, were appointed for a specific term of two years.

No Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The fees of the non-executive and independent non-executive directors are
determined by the Board.



EERESTRAERESZ 2E
BmRARR

R-ZE-ZHF+Z/A=+—-H ESRAKAN
BEALTRAQNBRDINEZIRA(ERR
R MERGI([F5 R BRG] ) EXVER) R
@REEZ R BERBIEXVEETR FeTHE
KRBREBHERZAERD B (BT
(BERERBEREZRBERN 2 ZERER
BRBBAEARERAR)  OREFSRH
BRPIEISHFRBEF 2 B RMABIERE IR
B RORBLETRITAESETESRINE
EFHUHERRNAREZMOERIARWT

HEHEEIRESE Directors’ Report

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Securities

As at 31 December 2010, the interests of the Directors and their respective
associates in the shares of the Company (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which are required (a) to be
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of the Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have taken under such provision of the SFO); or (b) to be recorded in the
register to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

e Long positions
BRIRE
ZEAH
Percentage of
the issued
fAER Rk NRER share capital
Personal Family Corporate ay of the
BEpg Name of Director interests interests interests Total Company
EEREE Mr. Ip Chi Shing 169,223,932 2,000,000 (a) 10,000,000 (b) 181,223,932 32.77%
ErHEE Mr. Yip Tsz Hin 36,000,000 20,000,000 (c) - 56,000,000 10.13%
ESERE Mr. Wong Kam Yim 708,000 - - 708,000 0.13%
ZEREE Mr. Li Wai Man, Peter - - - - -
RETEE Mr. Ng Siu Ping 2,132,000 50,000 (c) - 2,182,000 0.39%
TEREL M. Ting Hon Yam 200,000 - - 200,000 0.04%
BREEE Mr. Young Man Kim 2,402,000 - - 2,402,000 043%
BERLE Mr. Tong Wui Tung - 700,000 () - 700,000 0.13%
HESLE Mr. Wong Kong Chi - 100,000 (f) - 100,000 0.02%
BREHLE Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie - - - - -
ZEREE Mr. Li Chak Man 150,000 (g) - - 150,000 0.03%
HEREE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 20,680 14,000 (h) - 34,680 0.01%

Ffi5 Notes:

HERDAEERAEECZETFRENZLIRHE -

HEROBE-—BESKEEESERIATE
N2 REAMRE  ESRALEEZESE
BITRRAEZREEAR0% (REASFHEAZ
REEELH100% R EARERAEEEZE
ERFBRERD 2ES -

BERONBEFHFEAECEFREERBLLE
o
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(@)  These shares are held by Madam Liang Bih Yu, the wife of Mr. Ip Chi Shing.
These shares are held by Ip Chi Shing Charitable Foundation Limited (the
“Foundation”), a charitable organisation. Mr. Ip Chi Shing controls 50%
(together with his wife control 100%) of the voting power at the general
meeting of the Foundation and he is therefore deemed to be interested in these
shares held by the Foundation.

These shares are held by Madam Yip Tso Ka Lai, Brenda, the wife of Mr. Yip Tsz
Hin.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Securities (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(d)  These shares are held by Madam Siu Oi Li, Maicy, the wife of Mr. Ng Siu Ping.

(e)  These shares are held by Madam Lau Mui Sum, the wife of Mr. Tong Wui
Tung.

(f) These shares are held by Madam Jim Siu Wai, the wife of Mr. Wong Kong Chi.

(g)  These shares are jointly held with Madam Cheng Yee Ha, the wife of Mr. Li Chak
Man.

(h)  These shares are held by Madam So Yim Ha, the wife of Mr. Ku Yuen Fun.

Details of the share options held by the Directors under the Company’s
existing share option scheme are shown in the next section headed “Share
options”.

Each of Mr. Ip Chi Shing, Mr. Yip Tsz Hin and Madam Liang Bih Yu, the
wife of Mr. Ip Chi Shing, holds one non-voting deferred share of Yip's H.C.
(Holding) Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above and certain nominee shares in subsidiaries
held by directors in trust for the Company or its subsidiaries, as at 31
December 2010, none of the Directors, chief executives nor their associates
held any interests or short positions in the securities of the Company or any
of its associated corporations as defined in the SFO.

Share Options

On 3 September 2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
"Existing Scheme”) which will expire on 2 September 2012 in order to
comply with the terms of Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange. Particulars of the Existing Scheme are set
out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the nine-month period ended 31 December 2010, movements in
the number of options which have been granted to certain directors and
employees under the Company’s Existing Scheme are as follows:
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BRE@E Share Options (continued)
BRERE
Number of share options
RAfEA
RIfEA BER
R-B-2% BERE PS5 R-Z-%F
mA—H (i Lapsed/ +Z=A=+—H
LESH Exercised cancelled i RAT
18 Outstanding during the during the Outstanding
KA Exercise as at nine-month nine-month as at
Date of grant price 1.4.2010 period period 31.12.2010
T
HK$
=
Directors:
EEMEE “2ZNE+ARA
Mr. Ip Chi Shing 5 October 2009 4536 200,000 200,000 - -
ERRRLE ZEZ-E+-ATIA
Mr. Wong Kam Yim 14 November 2002 1.190 500,000 500,000 - -
—EENERATLA
17 May 2004 1.590 300,000 - - 300,000
“ZTRFTASTIEA
24 October 2005 2.004 200,000 - - 200,000
“ZZLFMA=A
3 A£nl 2007 4.050 200,000 - - 200,000
31 October 2008 1.950 100,000 - - 100,000
“2ZNETARA
5 October 2009 4536 200,000 - - 200,000
FRREE “EEMERATLA
Mr. Li Wai Man, Peter 17 May 2004 1.590 100,000 B - 100,000
“EERFTASTHEA
24 October 2005 2.004 200,000 B - 200,000
ZZLEMAZA
3 A£r|| 2007 4.050 200,000 - - 200,000
31 October 2008 1.950 100,000 B - 100,000
“EZNETAAA
5 October 2009 4.536 200,000 B - 200,000
REBTEE —EE-E+-A+M0A
Mr. Ng Siu Ping 14 November 2002 1.190 200,000 200,000 - -
“ZEMERA+EA
17 May 2004 1.590 300,000 - - 300,000
“EERFTASTMEA
24 October 2005 2.004 200,000 - - 200,000
“ZZtEMAZH
3 A£nl 2007 4.050 200,000 - - 200,000
31 October 2008 1.950 100,000 - - 100,000
“EENE+AEA
5 October 2009 4.536 200,000 - - 200,000
TEREE A = =
Mr. Ting Hon Yam 31 October 2008 1.950 100,000 - - 100,000
“EENF+AEA
5 October 2009 4.536 200,000 - - 200,000
4,000,000 900,000 - 3,100,000
BT “ER-E+-A+M0A
Employees 14 November 2002 1.190 100,000 100,000 - -
“EENERA+tA
17 Mﬁ/ 2004 1.590 375,000 375,000 - -
“EERE+AZTHA
24 October 2005 2.004 842,000 536,000 - 306,000
“ZRLENAZA
3 April 2007 4.050 3,354,000 2,366,000 26,000 962,000
“EEN\FtA=1-H
31 October 2008 1.950 1,676,000 1,086,000 - 590,000
“EENETARA
5 October 2009 4536 5,464,000 3,540,000 - 1,924,000
11,811,000 8,003,000 26,000 3,782,000

15,811,000
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8,903,000

26,000

6,882,000
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Share Options (continued)

No option was granted to Directors or employees during the nine-month
period. In respect of the options exercised during the period, weighted
average closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before the
dates on which the options were exercised was HK$7.883.

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the nine-month period
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors, or their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities
of the Company, or had exercised any such right during the nine-month
period.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2010, the register of substantial shareholders (other
than the Directors or chief executives of the Company disclosed above)
maintained under Section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than the
interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors, the following
shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests in the issued
share capital of the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

¥e Long positions
R-Z— $
+=B=+-
Eﬁﬁﬁ$
ZBEDLH
Percentage
of the issued
FERRER sl & E share capital
Name of 5% Number of of the Company
substantial shareholder Capacity shares held as at 31.12.2010
EREL L BEREEBA
Ms. Ip Fung Kuen Beneficial Owner 58,500,000 10.58%
FMR LLC RE L (M)
Investment Manager (Note) 32,134,000 5.81%

ME:REZFRBEFS IMCLUCGRRAES
32,134,000 A XA MR 2 EHE > MHEF
Fidelity Management & Research Company#
%30,734,0008% - Fidelity Management Trust
CompanyE&Pyramis Global Advisors LLCR] # &
1,400,0008% °

Note: Under SFO, FMR LLC was deemed to be interested in 32,134,000 shares of the
Company, of which 30,734,000 shares were held by Fidelity Management &
Research Company and 1,400,000 shares were held by Fidelity Management
Trust Company and Pyramis Global Advisors LLC.
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Substantial Shareholders (continued)

Save as disclosed, as at 31 December 2010, no person, other than the
interests disclosed above in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Securities”, had notified the Company of an
interest or short position in the shares of the Company that was required to
be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Purchase, Sale orRedemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

During the nine-month period ended 31 December 2010, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

Major Suppliers and Customers

During the nine-month period ended 31 December 2010, the aggregate
sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for less
than 30% of the Group’s total turnover.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 30.5% of the Group’s total purchases and
the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
approximately 13.2% of the Group’s total purchases.

As at 31 December 2010, none of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five
largest suppliers.

Corporate Governance

Report on the Company’s corporate governance are set out in “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 51 to 62.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, throughout the nine-month period
ended 31 December 2010 and at the date of this report, there is sufficient
public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s total issued shares
capital as required under the Rules Governing the Listing Securities on the
Stock Exchange.
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Donations

During the nine-month period ended 31 December 2010, the Group made
charitable and other donations amounting to about HK$3,500,000.

Connected Transactions and Directors’ Interests
in Contracts

During the nine-month period ended 31 December 2010, the Group paid
rent of HK$720,000 and HK$450,000 to Goldex Investments Limited and
Galsheer Investments Limited respectively in which Mr. Ip Chi Shing and Mr.
Yip Tsz Hin, the Directors, have beneficial interests respectively.

Other than disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director and
a controlling shareholder of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the nine-month period or at any
time during the nine-month period.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to listing
shareholders.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
IP CHI SHING
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 29 March 2011
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Statement of Compliance

Throughout the nine-month period ended 31 December 2010, the Company
has complied with all code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code") of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance so as to achieve the Group’s objectives of maximizing values
for its employees, customers, suppliers, business partners and shareholders,
and safeguarding their interests.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. After making specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed that
they have fully complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the nine-month period ended 31 December 2010.
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The Board

The Board's principal duties are setting policies, monitoring the execution
of such policies, and providing supervision and assistance to the overall
management of the Group.

Composition of the Board

In the nine-month period ended 31 December 2010, the Board comprised a
total of twelve Directors, including seven executive, one non-executive and
four independent non-executive Directors. On 1 January 2011, Mr. Ho Sai
Hou, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, was appointed as executive
Director. All non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors
are appointed for a specific term of two years before 2011 and from 2011
onward three years, subject to re-election.

Biographic details of the Directors are set out in the section of Directors’ and
Management Executives’ Profiles on pages 34 to 41. Mr. Ip Chi Shing is the
brother of Mr. Yip Tsz Hin. Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not
otherwise related to each other.

The Company has also received annual confirmations from all four
Independent Non-executive Directors in respect of their independence as set
out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. One of the Independent Non-executive
Directors possesses the appropriate professional accounting qualifications
and related financial management experience.

The Board regularly reviews its composition and membership to ensure that
it possesses the necessary skills, experience and diversity to discharge its
responsibilities effectively. Currently, the Board assumes the responsibilities
of nomination and appointment of new Directors.



54

BEERRSE Corporate Governance Report

EESw)

EEEENF
EEE-Z-ZE+-A=1t—-HLthBEAH
B BEFERTT N \RNESEERAREME
# o RESNEHSRZHERABYHEINT

The Board (Continued)

Operation of the Board

During the nine-month period ended 31 December 2010, eight *Regular
and Other Board meetings were held by the Board. The attendance of
each Director at these meetings is shown in the table below:

HITES: Executive Directors:

EXgEHAER EZgHMER
HE=R HE=R
Regular Board Other Board
Meetings Attendance Meetings Attendance
HEERTE Mr. Ip Chi Shing 4/4 2/4
HrEfAk Mr. Yip Tsz Hin 3/4 2/4
HeELE Mr. Wong Kam Yim 4/4 3/4
ZREREE Mr. Li Wai Man, Peter 4/4 4/4
RBFHRAE Mr. Ng Siu Ping 4/4 4/4
TIEREAE Mr. Ting Hon Yam 4/4 2/4
BRI E Mr. Young Man Kim 4/4 2/4

BYFHITES ! Independent Non-executive Directors:
ESEERER ESZHMWER
HER HER
Regular Board Other Board
Meetings Attendance Meetings Attendance
HERLE Mr. Wong Kong Chi 4/4 0/4
ERRSE F Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie 4/4 1/4
TEREE Mr. Li Chak Man 4/4 1/4
HRSTE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 4/4 1/4
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The Board (Continued)

EEgE®E) Operation of the Board (Continued)
FEHITES : Non-executive Director:
EESEHRER EEgHMER
Regular Board Other Board
Meetings Attendance Meetings Attendance
EERE A Mr. Tong Wui Tung 4/4 1/4
* AATRNEBHBARLEITORAEESERS * Four Regular Board meetings were held during the nine-month period which
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involve the active participation, either in person or through other electronic
means of communications, by all the attending Directors. Besides the Regular
Board meetings, Other Board meetings were convened from time to time
during the period to approve routine business or discuss matters that require
the Board’s timely attention.

The Company has adopted procedures for the Directors to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses.
New Directors are offered a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
upon appointment.

The roles of executive Director and Company Secretary, held by Mr. Ng Siu
Ping, ensure that the Directors have ready access to all necessary information
and that all Board procedures are followed. Mr. Ng is also responsible
for offering opportunities of continuing professional development to all
Directors to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to help ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Directors and officers liability and company reimbursement insurance
coverage has also been arranged.
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Delegation by the Board

TEERIM|E Corporate Governance Report

The Board, as the highest governing body, is responsible for leading and controlling the businesses of the Group. The Executive
Committee of the Board is responsible for setting long term strategy and monitoring its subsequent implementation. The Board
has delegated its principal executive responsibilities to the Group Management Committee.

The Board

A formal schedule of matters reserved for the Board is maintained and is subject to regular review. The more important matters include:

setting of long term objectives and strategies

approving preliminary announcements of results

approving annual budgets

approving major capital expenditure, acquisitions and
disposals

establishing risk management policies

approving connected transactions

declaring and recommending payment of dividends
appointing new directors

establishing Board committees

reviewing and monitoring of internal control and risk
management

approving major policies and guidelines

_J

Board Executive Committee (“BEC")

BEC members

Mr. Ip Chi Shing (Chairman)

Mr. Yip Tsz Hin

Mr. Wong Kam Yim (the Chief Executive Officer, “CEOQ")*
Mr. Li Wai Man, Peter (the Chief Operations Officer, “COO")*
Mr. Ho Sai Hou (the Chief Financial Officer, “CFO")*

Mr. Ng Siu Ping
Mr. Ting Hon Yam
Mr. Young Man Kim

Core management team (“CMT")

BEC comprised all executive Directors, three of whom are also members of CMT. Each of the CMT members has clearly defined
responsibilities and accountability and they act as a bridge between BEC and the Group Management Committee. Chairman of the
Board, who also acts as chairman of BEC, is responsible for leading and ensuring the proper functioning of the Board and BEC, and has
separate and distinct role against that of the CEO.

Duties and responsibilities

Since the BEC members have in-depth knowledge about the business operations of the Group, BEC works and makes decisions at the
frontline and performs the duties on behalf of the Board. The Board specified some of the matters reserved for the Board and delegated
BEC the power to decide on such matters with the same power as that of the Board. These matters are laid down in the terms of
reference of BEC and the principal items include: setting and approving Group policy and strategic plan, monitoring implementation
of the Group policy and strategic plan, approving important matters of the Group and controlling management and operations of the
Group.

\

Group Management Committee (“GMC")

GMC members

Ex officio members: CMT

Mr. Wong Kam Yim (the CEO)

Mr. Li Wai Man, Peter (the COO)

Mr. Ho Sai Hou (the CFO, appointed on 1 January 2011)
Mr. Ng Siu Ping (vacated on 1 January 2011)

Appointed members:

Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu

Mr. Ip Kwan

Mr. Fung Ping Kwong (appointed on 1 January 2011)

Mr. Huang Guan Song (resigned on 1 July 2010)

Mr. Zhao Chu Bang (vacated on 1 January 2011)

Mr. Leung Wing Ching, Isaac (vacated on 1 January 2011)
Mr. Chan Chuen Sang, Raymond (vacated on 1 January 2011)

In order to shorten the decision making process and improve effectiveness, the structure of GMC was re-organised and some of the
members were changed on January 2011.

Duties and responsibilities

The GMC operates under a clearly defined set of Terms of Reference and normally meets on a monthly basis.

Other than the matters reserved for the Board, GMC has the power to manage all the business operations of the Group, the
major items being: assisting the Board in setting policy and strategy, implementing the policy and strategic plan set by the Board,
monitoring and supervising the business of the sub-groups, monitoring and supervising the Group support functions or corporate
services and co-ordinating the operations of the sub-groups in order to achieve the best returns for the Group.

J
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Remuneration Committee and Remuneration
of Directors and Senior Management

The Remuneration Committee, consisting of one Non-executive Director
and four Independent Non-executive Directors, is chaired by Mr. Au-Yeung
Tsan Pong, Davie and was formed in June 2005. Major roles and functions
of the Remuneration Committee include:

e making recommendation to the Board on the Group policy and
structure for the remuneration of Directors and senior management

e determining the remuneration packages of all executive Directors and
senior management

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is available on the
Company’s website and from the Company Secretary upon request.

During the nine-month period ended 31 December 2010, the Remuneration
Committee held two formal meetings and the attendance of each member
is shown in the table below:

HER
RE Member Attendance
ECIE SR AET ) Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie (chairman) 22
EREEEE Mr. Wong Kong Chi 2/2
FERSE Mr. Li Chak Man 212
FEERR ST A Mr. Tong Wui Tung 2/2
HERBEE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 12

REZEERL  FHEEESTHLN LT AR
ZHISEHMKT - EMEEAEBRITESRS
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B - M EES ST B2 E /MR ARE LA
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KRB - WEAMEESRIEZRFW

ESHESBRRAEERDARANBAREHKM
XNREZZHE - EBE-ZF-FF+-A=
T-RLEANMEAMBEX ST AAREESNHE
FHIINRE M IREMEET -

In these meetings, the Remuneration Committee approved the remuneration
package of the Group’s executive Directors and senior management effective
1 April 2010 after considering market remuneration levels of comparable
listed companies. During that period, the Remuneration Committee also
reviewed the principles and policies of the remuneration structure of the
Group's executive Directors and senior management with reference to an
external consulting report, and submitted recommendations to BEC for
further discussion.

Directors’ emoluments consisted of payments to Directors in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.
The amounts paid to each Director of the Company for the nine-month
period ended 31 December 2010 are shown in Note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Accountability and Audit

Directors’ and Auditors’ responsibilities

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Group and their announcements to shareholders and
commit to the presentation of a balanced, clear and comprehensive
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects. The Board
is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt
upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Auditors’ reporting responsibilities are stated in the Auditors’ Report
on pages 63 to 64.

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was formed in November 1998 and comprises one
Non-executive Director and four Independent Non-executive Directors and
is chaired by Mr. Wong Kong Chi. Major duties of the Audit Committee
include:

®  reviewing financial information of the Group

e overseeing the Group’s financial reporting system and internal control
procedures

®  monitoring of the relationship between the Group and its external
auditors

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available on the Company’s
website and from the Company Secretary upon request.

The Audit Committee met four times during the nine-month period ended
31 December 2010 and the attendance of each member at these meetings

ZHEREEHIIWT ¢ is shown in the table below:

HER
RE Member Attendance
BEREESLEER) Mr. Wong Kong Chi (chairman) 4/4
BB E Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie 4/4
FEREE Mr. Li Chak Man 4/4
FEERR ST A Mr. Tong Wui Tung 4/4
HESSE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 4/4
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Accountability and Audit (continued)

The Audit Committee (Continued)

In these meetings, the Audit Committee:

®  reviewed the results for the year ended 31 March 2010 and the interim
results for the six months ended 30 September 2010 of the Group
before their approval by the Board and in doing so, the committee
focused on material deviations of the Group’s performance from past
year’s results, major areas of judgement, selection and application of
accounting policies and compliance with regulatory requirements

e received reports from the internal audit department, discussed material
findings with the head of internal audit, reviewed the adequacy of
resources of the internal audit department and approved the internal
audit plan

e discussed the audit plan with the Group’s external auditors and
assessed its independence with reference to its policies for maintaining
independence and reviewed the extent of non-audit services
provided

®  approved the audit fees paid to the Group’s external auditors
An audit committee meeting was held on 22 March 2011 to review the

Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for the nine-month
period ended 31 December 2010.
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Accountability and Audit (continued)

Internal Control

The Board has delegated to management the responsibilities of designing
and implementing an appropriate system of internal controls to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting,
effectiveness and efficiency of operations and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations.

The internal audit department was set up in 1997 to monitor independently
the implementation of the internal control procedures, compliance with
group policies and to make recommendations on the effectiveness of the
internal control system. The head of internal audit reports directly to the
Chief Operations Officer and the Audit Committee.

During the nine-month period ended 31 December 2010, the Board has
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control
of the Group following the guidance note on the Group’s Internal Control
System revised in 2008 and 2010. The revised guidance note requires the
active and frequent participation by the general manager of each sub-
group in identifying risks affecting its business and implementing measures
to reduce such risks, as well as the active monitoring by the management
committee of each sub-group on the progress of the improvement in
internal control procedures. The GMC and the CMT of the Company are
also involved proactively in the process of risks identification and ensuring
the implementation of risk reduction action plan.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the nine-month period ended 31 December 2010, the fee paid/payable
to the Group’s external auditors, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set
out as follows:

B EAHe

FriRfit = RS Services rendered Fee paid/payable

FET

HK$'000

FIZR Audit services 3,710
IEFEZR Non-audit services

IR AR T Taxation services 336

FRF RS Interim review 609

BZNES Audit of provident fund 17
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Investor Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

To enhance its relationship with the public, shareholders and investors, as
well as to maintain a high level of transparency of company information, the
Group actively maintains an open environment for better communication
with all of our stakeholders.

The Group’s Corporate Communications Department acts as a bridge
between the Group and the public, and is responsible for communicating
and meeting with institutional investors and securities analysts. During
the nine-month period ended 31 December 2010, it has held more than
80 meetings with local and overseas investors and analysts. The Group
has participated in investment conferences in Hong Kong, Shanghai
and Singapore. The department has also facilitated investors to visit our
production plants to promote a better understanding of the Group.

In addition, every year the Group announces our operational results, the
latest financial information as well as our business development plans to
the public, to our investors, to the media and to our shareholders in press
conferences and investor meetings, as well as holding an annual general
meeting to communicate with our shareholders.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF YIP'S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yip's Chemical
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 65 to 154, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2010,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the period from 1 April 2010 to 31 December 2010, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors of the Company, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2010 and
of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the period from 1 April 2010 to
31 December 2010 in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2011
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—E-ZFENA-HEZZ—ZTFE+=H=1—H For the period from 1 April 2010 to 31 December 2010

—E-EF —EThE
mMA—HAZE MA—AZE
—E-EF —E-ZF
+=A=+—H =A=+-—H
1.4.2010 1.4.2009
to to
31.12.2010 31.3.2010
g FET FET
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
2EE Turnover 6 5,654,783 5,455,742
SHERA Cost of sales (4,718,268) (4,175,282)
e Gross profit 936,515 1,280,460
Halg A Other income 56,668 59,190
Hitnl R REE Other gains and losses 8 44,048 778
HERKHER Selling and distribution expenses (256,764) (294,752)
THEH Administrative expenses (409,536) (519,903)
FEEA Interest expense 9 (12,735) (9,175)
FRELATE R Profit before taxation 10 358,196 516,598
Big Taxation 11 (41,357) (82,008)
ERFEAF Profit for the period/year 316,839 434,590
Hin2mEWE () Other comprehensive income (expense)
HfEZ2|MEEM Exchange differences arising
EECERELRE on translation 107,101 4,098
ReREHZ AR EEE Fair value change on cash flow hedges (2,007) (283)
A FEEERGE Total comprehensive income
for the period/year 421,933 438,405
N EEAFI L DR Profit for the period/year attributable to:
RN Owners of the Company 264,509 378,064
IR Non-controlling interests 52,330 56,526
316,839 434,590
AHFEEZERE Total comprehensive income
L1958 - attributable to:
P NG Owners of the Company 356,472 381,403
IR R Non-controlling interests 65,461 57,002
421,933 438,405
BRER Earnings per share 13
— &K — Basic HK48.0 cents HK70.3 cents
—#E — Diluted HK47.6 cents HK69.2 cents
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R=ZZ—ZF+=HA=+—H At 31 December 2010

R=Z-ZF RNZT-TH RIZTNF
+ZB=t—-H =A=1+-H mA—A
31.12.2010 31.3.2010 1.4.2009
Mzt TET TBT TBx
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(GE) (BE%)
(Restated) (Restated)
FRBEE Non-current assets
W MERSZE Property, plant and equipment 14 983,340 885,848 787,421
HENLAE Prepaid lease payments 15 119,922 97,533 100,136
[EES Goodwill 16 71,462 71,462 71,462
BREE Intangible assets 17 25,178 21,060 25,258
ARHERE Available-for-sale investment 18 22,200 12,387 12,360
BENE BER Deposits paid for acquisition of
BGHER property, plant and equipment 28,225 28,234 13,613
HittERBEE Other non-current asset 19 4,600 4,600 4,600
1,254,927 1,121,124 1,014,850
mEEE Current assets
7E Inventories 20 765,643 800,867 386,859
FEWRT K BN SR 1 Trade and bills receivables 21 1,976,265 1,358,645 832,991
Hit MR R A 08 Other debtors and prepayments 21 232,305 191,503 111,932
LA E Prepaid lease payments 15 2,926 2,411 2,297
fTEERMTIA Derivative financial instruments - - 4,868
SERITIERN Short-term bank deposits 22
-R=EAREIH — with original maturity within
three months 13,155 52,456 290,313
-ZR=BR%KIH ~ with original maturity more than
three months 336,599 387,666 156,456
BITHEBRRE Bank balances and cash 22 545,737 566,196 439,215
3,872,630 3,359,744 2,224,931
mEAR Current liabilities
ERERRRETER Creditors and accrued charges 23 1,185,201 1,016,825 606,090
e Taxation payable 94,310 78,096 75,360
FERS I 2 R FF AR Dividend payable to a non-controlling
BREZBRE shareholder of a subsidiary 3,496 - 8,427
fTESmMIA Derivative finandial instruments 24 7,777 730 -
RITIEE - —FREIH Bank borrowings — amount due
within one year 25 944,369 823,024 449,322
RITEX Bank overdrafts 1,059 17 142
2,236,212 1,918,792 1,139,341
nEEESE Net current assets 1,636,418 1,440,952 1,085,590
HEERTHAR Total assets less current liabilities 2,891,345 2,562,076 2,100,440
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R=B-2%F R-FE-BF R-ZENF

+=A=t-B =A=t-8  mA-A
31.12.2010 31.3.2010 1.4.2009
Wizt TET T TBT
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(BE7) (BEH)
(Restated) (Restated)
FRBAR Non-current liabilities
RITEE — —FEHEH Bank borrowings - amount due
after one year 25 291,833 228,000 67,389
EREFIARRE Deferred tax liabilities 26 6,557 6,838 7,175
298,390 234,838 74,564
2,592,955 2,327,238 2,025,876
B2 e G Capital and reserves
& Share capital 27 55,304 54,413 53,576
ffE Reserves 2,241,843 2,031,566 1,776,820
FOAFRREGES Equity attributable to owners of
the Company 2,297,147 2,085,979 1,830,396
IR Non-controlling interests 295,808 241,259 195,480
2,592,955 2,327,238 2,025,876
FESHEEISMEEAUBMESH-E——  The consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 154 were approved
EZA-+hAEEESHERSETRE > A and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2011 and
UTRE®ES are signed on its behalf by:
2 2 DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
HERK HETE Mr. Ip Chi Shing Mr. Yip Tsz Hin
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

—E-ZFNB-RAE=ZT-ZTF+=-A=+—8 For

the period from 1 April 2010 to 31 December 2010

BERRATRR 2 BR
Attributable to owners of the Company
BRE  AIAR EhER $2R
i ik ] s
Ba  RfEE Share Non  HABE  ENBE  iRBE (ol RER Nor
Share Share option ~ dtributable  Hedging  Translation legal  redemption  Retaned A contioling it
aptd pemim rene reene  rene  msene ene reenepofs Tl intrests Totel
TAn fEn TR TR TR TR TR TR AL TEm TR T
HKF000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS000  HKF000  HK§'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
AZEEAEMA-A A1 Api 2009 53576 527403 37% 67715 - 81 15,408 535 894260 1,8303% 195480 2,025,876
RfEmEL2 Bichange diferences
EigR aising on transation - - - - - 3551 - - - 3551 547 4,098
Reftng Fair value change on cash
DAEEL flow hedges - - - - o) - - - - (21) m (83)
RERHA Bt for e e - - . . - - - ST MO S5 45
REERE Total comprehensive income
Wit GE) 85t (evpense) or the year - - - - oy 3 - -0 WA TN 43845
M Sub-total 53576 527403 37% 67715 212 286425 15,408 5365 12234 2MT799 22480 2464281
REREEAGR  Shares ssued at premium upon
YIREZEE exercie ofshare options 8 B9 2683) - - - - - I )] AT
REARER Bxpenses incured in connection
EL2ER with s of shaes - 28) - - - - - - - ) . )
TUARBZERERE  Recogniton of equitysetlled
2R shiare-gased payments - - 6,141 - - - - - - 6,141 - 6,141
HBRER Shre optons canceled and
ERERARA transfer to retaned profts - - (76) - - - - - T - - -
iRz EE Sharesrepurchased at premium
(WEE2710)) (note 27(0) (1) - - - - - - 51 - - - -
i Tensfer - - - - - - 3745 - B - - -
BfRE Dividends paid - - - - - - - - (156,003)  (156,093) - (156,093)
BARBATRER  Divdends paid to non-contrling
REHE shareholders of subsidiares - - - - - - - - - - Mmoo mw)
HoE-BE=A=1-R A1 March 2010 54413 553,290 121 67,715 21 26425 19,153 5416 1112562 2085919 41259 2327238
RfgmEL2 Bichange differencesarsing
EiBR on translation - - - - - 93,468 - - - 93468 13,633 107,101
Befgn, Fair value change on cash
DREEL flow hedges - - - - (150 - - - - (150 G) o
KB Profit for he period - - - - - - - SS9 264509 S2B0 316839
KBEE Totd comprehensive ncome
Wi (%) & (expense) for the period - - - - (1505 93468 - B Y I Y V) N .Y YR 1 ¢
gt Subtotal 54413 553,290 21 67,715 (177 359893 19,153 5416 137101 2442451 306720 27491
REREEAGR  Shares ssued at premium upon
BT exercie ofshare options 891 3454 (4,145) - - - - - -3 1)
REARER Expenses incurred in connection
BB with issUe of shares - ) - - - - - - - ) - )
REBRER Share options cancelled and
EEEREN transfer to retaned profts - - (12 - - - - - 1 - - -
HHIEAEZ xchange differences reeased
EiEE Upon deregistraton of
subsidiaries - - - - - (31.239) - - 31,38 - - -
& Tensler - - - - - - 36% - (6% - - -
BfRE Diidends pa - - - - - - - - (176564)  (176564) - (176564)
BARBAGHER  Dividends paid o non-controling
RRHE shreholders of subsiaries - - - - - - - - - - (1091 (10912)
HoE-2E At 31 December 2010
tZA=1-B 55,304 587,804 3,060 67,715 (1717) 328655 0789 5416 128121 2207147 295808 2592955

A2 IKFEBERORTBERENHB QSR
RN ARERABRERUTREZES ()
WUEFEBERMBEREEEF -

REERAUDIKZEEFBERTBUINMBE AR
REA BT R EEERBAZERF

The non-distributable reserve represents capitalisation of retained profits of
certain subsidiaries of Mainland China for capital re-investment in these
subsidiaries and funds shall be used to (i) make up prior year losses or (ii)
expand production operations.

The legal reserve is non-distributable and represents the transfer of profits
of a subsidiary outside Hong Kong pursuant to the legal requirements in the
relevant place of registration.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

—E-ZEMB-AZE=F—ZFF+=H=+1+—8 For the period from 1 April 2010 to 31 December 2010

—E-EF —EThE
mA—-RE mA—AE
—E-EF —E-ZF
+t=A=+—H ZA=+—8H
1.4.2010 1.4.2009
to to
31.12.2010 31.3.2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
(BE5)
(Restated)
REXB2HER Cash flows from operating activities
RREL AR T Profit before taxation 358,196 516,598
BT Adjustments for:
B EEHH Amortisation of intangible assets 4,318 4,522
FEAT T b FE SN Release of prepaid lease payments 2,178 2,684
M- BRERZEZITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 56,408 67,787
M- BERSZEZ Impairment loss of property,

B plant and equipment 120 991

TEERMTAAARBE#L Fair value change on derivative financial

instruments 5,954 384
FEEMA Interest expense 12,735 9,175
HE FHENE BER Loss on disposal/written-off of property,

REzEE plant and equipment 2,631 3,208
FIEWA Interest income (10,701) (11,000)
RIRARAEE Allowance for bad and doubtful debts - 3,894
Y B B VEERBREE 2 3R Amounts recovered from doubtful debts (733) (498)
WEARQTRS %’ﬁ% Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

ZERER on inter-company balances (8,884) (461)
DR L HEREREN Equity-settled share-based

R EZH payment expense - 6,141
AEHERENREWRA Dividend income from available-for-sale

investment - (6,742)

RETEEESEBA 2K Operating cash flows before movements

¥BEER in working capital 422,222 596,683
BERD, (M) Decrease (increase) in inventories 64,766 (412,416)
FEUR BR 7R 2 B U = 15 48 A Increase in trade and bills receivables (540,061) (526,640)
Hith e BRFR R FEAS FIG AN Increase in other debtors and prepayments (33,350) (73,936)
FETBRF R FEST B A5 N Increase in creditors and accrued charges 116,456 408,257
EEMEEZ Cash generated from (used in)

BEWA ( operations 30,033 (8,052)
FAEBFE ﬁi Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (312) (2,957)
FATREI R 2 DEFEH Enterprise Income Tax in Mainland China paid (28,153) (76,651)
REEBMEEZF Net cash from (used in) operating

BeBA () activities 1,568 (87,660)
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FAHREMBE Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

—E-EF —EThE
mMA—AZ% mMAE—HZE
—E-EF —E-EF
+=—A=+—8 =B=+—H
1.4.2010 1.4.2009
to to
31.12.2010 31.3.2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REEBAEEZRER Cash flows from investing activities
FERZR=EA R Placement of short-term bank deposits with
EHISRITIERK maturity more than three months (239,871) (387,062)
RIZR=(E A ZEIH Withdrawal of short-term bank deposits with
ZIEHARITIER maturity more than three months 309,588 156,456
BEYXE - BERRZE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (91,644) (165,126)
WY - BERRETE Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment (28,225) (28,234)
FEfT Lt ARSI Addition to prepaid lease payments (20,203) -
ERRIE Interest received 10,701 11,000
A HERE MR EIRA Dividend received from available-for-sale investment 6,742 1,680
FZRERAHEERE Additional investment in available-
for-sale investment (8,845) -
WIS EE Acquisition of intangible assets (4,786) (298)
HEDE - BRERRE Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
Pl 2 7R18 and equipment 1,865 9,980
REEBFEEZFRETH  Net cash used in investing activities (64,678) (401,604)
RIEXBAMEEZRER Cash flows from financing activities
EERTER Bank loans raised 1,214,388 1,025,355
BITRIFTERE Proceeds from issue of shares 31,288 24,160
EBRITER Repayment of bank loans (1,067,198) (492,765)
ZRRE Dividends paid (176,564) (156,093)
FFIE Interest paid (12,735) (9,175)
SZAME D B EER Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders of
RERBRE subsidiaries (7,416) (19,650)
HEETESRIAETRE Net settlement of derivative financial instruments (988) 4,931
BITRHER Share issue expenses (28) (28)
RMEXKMEEZFRS Net cash (used in) from
(ZdH) A financing activities (19,253) 376,735
HeRREEHFHD Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (82,363) (112,529)
B/ OB RS RAEEE  Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the
period/year 618,535 729,386
EXSHMELE TS Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 21,661 1,678
B/ FEREZRERRS Cash and cash equivalents at end
%5 of the period/year 557,833 618,535
HERBEEREEHIWT Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents
IRITEBRRES Bank balances and cash 545,737 566,196
REEAREHZ Short-term bank deposits with original maturity
EHASRITIERK within three months 13,155 52,456
IRITEX Bank overdrafts (1,059) (117)
557,833 618,535




fm © B 55 ¥k &5 Bid 51

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—E-ZEMB-AZE=F—ZFF+=H=+1+—8 For the period from 1 April 2010 to 31 December 2010
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General

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands with its
shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information
to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars while the functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
("RMB"). The reason for selecting Hong Kong dollars as its presentation
currency is because the Company is a public company with the shares
listed on the Stock Exchange, where most of its investors are located
in Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the manufacture of and trading in solvents,
coatings and lubricants.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements

During the current financial period, the reporting period end date
of the Group was changed from 31 March to 31 December because
the directors of the Company considered that as a substantial part
of its business is carried out in Mainland China and the financial
year end of all companies in Mainland China is on 31 December, the
change in financial year end will make the financial year end date
of the Company consistent with the financial year end date of the
Group's subsidiaries in Mainland China. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements for the current period cover the nine-month
period ended 31 December 2010. The corresponding comparative
amounts shown for the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity, consolidated
statement of cash flows and related notes cover a twelve-month
period from 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010 and therefore may not be
comparable with amounts shown for the current period.
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LRE BT ER & M 5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Application of New And Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS"s)

In the current period, the Group has applied the following new
and revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS"s), HKFRSs,
amendments and interpretations (“INT”s) (hereinafter collectively
referred to as “new and revised HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") which are or
have become effective.

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Group cash-settled share-based payment transactions
HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) Business combinations

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) Consolidated and separate financial statements

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of rights issues

HKAS 39 (Amendments) Eligible hedged items

HKFRSs (Amendments) Amendments to HKFRS 5 as part of Improvements to
HKFRSs issued in 2008

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009

HK(IFRIC)* = INT 17 Distributions of non-cash assets to owners

HK-INT5 Presentation of financial statements — classification by
the borrower of a term loan that contains a
repayment on demand clause

* IFRIC represents the IFRS Interpretations Committee
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LRE B IR & M EE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application of New And Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"S) (Continued)

Except as described below, the adoption of those new and revised
HKFRSs has had no material effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the current or prior accounting periods.

The Group applies HKFRS 3 (Revised) “Business Combinations”
prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date
is on or after 1 April 2010. The requirements in HKAS 27 (Revised)
“Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements” in relation to
accounting for changes in ownership interests in a subsidiary after
control is obtained and for loss of control of a subsidiary are also
applied prospectively by the Group on or after 1 April 2010.

As there was no transaction during the current period in which HKFRS
3 (Revised) and HKAS 27 (Revised) are applicable, the application
of HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS 27 (Revised) and the consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs had no effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the current or prior accounting
periods. Inaddition, HKAS 27 (Revised) requires the total comprehensive
income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance for the period
beginning from 1 April 2010. Such amendments did not have effect
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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LRE BT ER & BT 5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Application Of New And Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"S) (Continued)

Results of the Group in future periods may be affected by future
transactions for which HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS 27 (Revised) and the
consequential amendments to the other HKFRSs are applicable.

As part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009, HKAS 17 “Leases”
has been amended in relation to the classification of leasehold land.
Before the amendments to HKAS 17, lessees were required to classify
leasehold land as operating leases and presented as prepaid lease
payments in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
amendment has removed such requirement. Instead, the amendment
requires the classification of leasehold land to be based on the general
principles set out in HKAS 17, that are based on the extent to which
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of a leased asset lie with the
lessor or the lessee.

In accordance with the transitional provisions of HKAS 17 “Leases”,
the Group reassessed the classification of land elements of unexpired
leases at 1 April 2010 based on information that existed at the
inception of these leases. Leasehold land which qualifies for finance
lease classification has been reclassified from prepaid lease payments
to property, plant, and equipment retrospectively. This resulted in
prepaid lease payments with the carrying amount of HK$11,878,000
and HK$11,567,000 as at 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2010 respectively
being reclassified to property, plant and equipment.



HEAIREEITBEBUMBRE 3.

ZRIFER @

R-ZE—ZEF+-A=+—H He@mE
HESFERAKRMEEH1,334,000%8 5T 2
LS HHEAYE  BERR
- ERAEASTENRI7TRETEATE
FENPERRBEEE 2B

RSN HAR DY AREN =SB
=A=+-AZMBRRTENT :

LRE B IR & 5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application Of New And Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"S) (Continued)

As at 31 December 2010, leasehold land that qualifies for finance
lease classification with the carrying amount of HK$11,334,000 has
been included in property, plant and equipment. The application of
the amendments to HKAS 17 has had no impact on the reported
profit or loss for the current period and prior year.

The effect of changes in accounting policy described above on the
financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2010 is as follows:

R-Z—ZF R-ZB—FF

=ZA=+-A8 =ZA=+-8

(ERR#R5) (BE35)

As at As at

31.3.2010 R 31.3.2010

(originally stated) Adjustments (restated)

FHET FHExT THET

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ME - MEKLE Property, plant and equipment 874,281 11,567 885,848
A TiiEE Prepaid lease payments 111,511 (11,567) 99,944
985,792 - 985,792

PREHEREDEAEER-ZTNEF
MA— R ZHBARRZENT -

The effect of changes in accounting policy described above on the
financial position of the Group as at 1 April 2009 is as follows:

R=BBLE R=ZBBhE
mA—A mMA—H

(RIRERB) (BE5)

As at As at

1.4.2009 FE 1.4.2009

(originally stated) Adjustments (restated)

FET FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

WE -~ BERSEE Property, plant and equipment 775,543 11,878 787,421
S LiEE Prepaid lease payments 114,311 (11,878) 102,433
889,854 — 889,854
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Application Of New And Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"S) (Continued)

As disclosed above, the changes in accounting policy only have impact
on the classification of property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments in the consolidated statement of financial position of
the Group. Accordingly, only notes 14 and 15 of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments respectively were restated.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued but
are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010'
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets?
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of underlying assets*

HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009)  Related party disclosures®

HK(IFRIC) - INT 14
(Amendments)
HK(FRIC)—INT 19 Extinguishing finandial liabilities with equity instruments®

Prepayments of a minimum funding requirement®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 or 1
January 2011, as appropriate.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010.
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LRE B IR & M EE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Application Of New And Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"S) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (as issued in November 2009)
introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets. HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (as revised in
November 2010) adds requirements for financial liabilities and for
derecognition.

. Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” are subsequently measured at either amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. The Directors anticipate
that the application of HKFRS 9 will affect the classification and
measurement of the Group’s available-for-sale investment and
may affect the classification and measurement of other financial
assets.

. In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change relates
to financial liabilities that are designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial
liabilities that are designated as at fair value through profit or
loss, the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless
the presentation of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of
the financial liability designated as at fair value through profit or
loss was presented in profit or loss.
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Application Of New And Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"S) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013, with earlier application permitted.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised standards, amendments or interpretations will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.
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LRE B IR &M EE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used
by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. Prior to 1 April 2010, losses applicable to the non-controlling
interests in excess of the non-controlling interests in the subsidiary’s
equity were allocated against the interests of the Group except to the
extent that the non-controlling interests had a binding obligation and
were able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Business combination

Business combination that took place on or after 1 April 2010

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Business combination (Continued)

Business combination that took place on or after 1 April 2010
(Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition
date except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19
“Employee benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
transactions of the acquiree or the replacement of an acquiree’s
share-based payment transactions with share-based payment
transactions of the Group are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at the acquisition date; and

3 assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations” are measured in accordance with that
Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets on a
transaction by transaction basis.
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4. TESTHEHER@® 4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
XBEatkE) Business combination (Continued)
RO ZFMF—AZHIREZEES Business combinations that took place prior to 1 April 2010
3
WHEEBHABESTTREAAR - i Acquisition of businesses was accounted for using the purchase
RARRBEAMGTZEE  TIEEDY method. The cost of the acquisition was measured at the aggregate
AEZAE  URKAEBAESHEKER of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
MERITREATIAEZARERLEE SNk incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group
BEMEEREZEMARTE - BRK in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
HrERBER2AIREEE  BERIR attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable
BE  HUBBAZDARERR - assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that met the relevant

conditions for recognition were generally recognised at their fair value
at the acquisition date.

ABEmMEEsEERIAAEE  PRIER Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognised as an asset and
RA(BEREHAARBEAREEMMEZE initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
BRAZUBNEE BERIAREBEZL acquisition over the Group’s interest in the recognised amounts of
REFEIER)TE - MREFTEE the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
AEBEEHKBL ZURNEE B8F If, after assessment, the Group’s interest in the recognised amounts
RRAEBBZAABTE2ERSNES of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
SOt > B D BIRRIBE AR o exceeded the cost of the acquisition, the excess was recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

DEBRRABERES 2R IIEDER The minority interest in the acquiree was initially measured at the
RACHRAELEE 8BRIABEZAIA minority interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
EFREAE LI E o the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree.

we Goodwill

EERRWBEREL » WIRARIR Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less
AMEFHEBERFEESUHEMRTRAD any accumulated impairment losses, and is presented separately in
Rl the consolidated statement of financial position.

RETHENR  WEMEEZEBES For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
BRI EEERBEEENHEYEMSR of the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that
ZESEMEN SREeERELZA is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

Bl o

BREIEEECREERENESFHEL A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
BRENREETRENR - BmREER for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there is indication
HHENEmMEEZEE HoREEz that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
ReERBENANZRENTEAETRHE in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
B EREEREBENZ2ATREESE IR been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
ZENZIREE BRNEEERLAE L period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
HERSIMEZENZEE  HERREE than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated
REENLEAPIEZENREMEE - & first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
BAMEEBEBNEERGES2ERSE unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of
RNEBERER - BEZHEBERER the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
A FHEE o for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwiill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plantand equipment including land and buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress and freehold land)
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress
and freehold land less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Buildings under development for future owner-occupied
purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for production or for
administrative purposes, the release of prepaid lease payments during
the construction period is included as part of costs of buildings under
construction. Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings commences
when they are available for use (i. e. when they are in the location
and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment loss. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss
in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment loss on tangible and intangible assets (other
than goodwill)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, such that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are mainly classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"), loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL, of
which interest income is included in net gains or losses.
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LRE B IR & M EE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL are mainly derivative financial
instruments.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near future; or

. it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that
the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and bills receivables, other debtors, short-term bank deposits,
bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments. The Group classified
equity investment held for an identified long term strategic purpose
as available-for-sale investment.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured, they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of the reporting period.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment.

For other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

o breach of contracts, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation; or

. the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade debtors that
are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of debtors could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the credit period granted, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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4. TESTHEHER@® 4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
eI RE) Financial instruments (Continued)
HMBEZE(E) Financial assets (Continued)
B & E e () Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
HEMEEERRENRESESEEER The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
B EENIREESELIN - HERER impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
AR EMEBWRR HIEEESEBR of trade and other debtors, where the carrying amount is reduced
BERELIE - BERANREESZEDS through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
REZPER - EX-—BURIRRRHEME amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
W R BT AW R E AR EBEER When a trade or other debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written
REE o PAE % B 3T WM B MsE FE off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
sFABE - previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
MUCHBERNAAENTBEEMS » 4 For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
REEZBERHEBENEERLD > mitE period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
WO RE M EEDNERNE - S5 can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
% BERERNEHESERBERPFU loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
e ERBEHEERNEEREAEST reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
SRR AR ERFNC SRR o of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed

what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

HMERRRERTA Financial liabilities and equity instruments
EEARBITZHBEEREZTAR Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
BeRcHztEHBEEREEZTA classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
REREDHE - entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

RETEAARBHEELAEEEERGESR An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
(RIIBREFBEBE) ZENEN - AEH in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
ZHBEBE-—ROBARAARBEFARR Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified into financial
ZHBEEREMUBEE - liabilities at FVTPL and other financial liabilities.

BREFEZE Effective interest method

BRAEER - B EVBEEEHERAK The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
EARFEZ HEHERE 25 E - B cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
FERRUBRMAH B EEZ FHS (WE relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
A RIR R HREFER  UEREE discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid
et RREeIH(BEMEIAZER or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
REBRFRER WA - RERAHE transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
HAiRESITE) 2R = - expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

BRIEAAEBESTABREZHEEEN K Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
TENZTHDREMARELERR  HA instruments other than those financial liability classified as at FVTPL,
BEXHEENFERSESE of which interest expense is included in net gains or losses.

Yip’s Chemical Holdings Limited 2010 Annual Report 87



88

LRE BT ER & Y 5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FESHBEE®

SMI A @)
MBERRREBETR(E)
BARET AR ZMBEEE

FEEBRARBHABECHBEEEE
AfTESBMIA -

HETHER  MEEEI>EARIFEE
=i

o MEAZUKABEZTEARERAS
REEE ; =

e BRASEEREEZTHBERT
BG4 BNHBEELAH
EURBEREFIAES S

e EBRIEEREEMEFNITET
Ho

BARBEHABBEZHBRERD RER
B ENMEZOAERIRELZDH
BEEEIREPHER

AtHBEE
Hin B B E(BEEAFR - RITEXR
RITEE) DERIREBRFIZRE S A

e -

ERTA
AN FEAT 2 MR T B LB WS EIE (8
HIBREERITHAR) T LT

ARABEAGEETAREREARE
BHR - ARBBE -~ HE - BITHEHE
AEEETATERERFEIARERNR
&8 -

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL of the Group are mainly derivative financial
instruments.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near future; or

. it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that
the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising on remeasurement recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including creditors, bank overdrafts and
bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s
own equity instruments.
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4. FTESTHEHER@® 4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

SMIR#) Financial instruments (Continued)

TERBTRREE Derivative financial instruments and hedging
FTETREUSTETAGHNEITBZARE Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative
ENRBERAREEURERRZAAEE contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their
HEtE o EENKREREBBARKRIE fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or
mRER  RFZITEIAREEMEN loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is
ZEAIER FHERT  REZRAER designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
HY B B BUR R DT BB R AV B © timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of

the hedging relationship.

FREHPETAZITE T ABR AIEE Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are deemed as
EBECHBEERMKERE - financial assets held for trading or financial liabilities held for trading.
i EeE Hedge accounting

AEBEERLEMTETRA(NARERS The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of the cash flow
N AEZERITEEREREZEF of floating-rate bank borrowings (i.e. interest rate swap contracts).
REHPEIFE 2 BR  AEBERSEHHPTA At the inception of the hedging relationship, the Group documents the
MEEHEEWEER RETSEHPR relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged item, along
GREBEEEZEREKR o R with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking
SRBAIRFEITHAR - AREER AR E various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the
BRZETTARSTESER MK ET hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the
HAHEENESREEE - hedging instrument that is used in a hedging relationship is highly

effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged item.

B EE Cash flow hedges
EEMTEHSRELH P2TETRELR The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
BEEE  HEMBIREMZEKEAE designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in other
o HEMBr 2WRBEE - BERE comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
HAER R MRS EE portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss as other gains or
losses.
EAREMEHBEREIRNERRFTZ Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
SHEEPRE) NP ERE EEERE accumulated in equity (hedging reserve) are reclassified to profit or
R FGEHOBEEEER loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit or
loss.
EXEERBRRENER  HPITAERE Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the
Bl Kb TERFTBE/FEEHA S hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
A BHETEB AL - BERAES terminated, exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting.
ZEARFREKRENERRK > WETHE Any cumulative gain or loss accumulated in equity at that time remains
BIRZEANBREANERFER  HTER in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately
REZFEBTEET  WERZRFTRERD recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer
RRIEEAER - expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e. g.
when the Group retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred
asset or retains a residual interest that does not result in the retention
of substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the Group
retains control), the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of
the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under
continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on
the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the
transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the
part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or
loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is
no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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LRE BSR4 M 5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on
a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases, in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is released over the lease term on a straight-
line basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has
been passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income from a
financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
re-translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences arising
on the re-translation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.
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LRE BSR4 M 5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period,
and their income and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
(the translation reserve).

From 1 April 2010 onwards, on the disposal of a foreign operation
(i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a
partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 April 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised
in the translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired arising on acquisition of foreign operations before
1 April 2005 are treated as non-monetary foreign currency items of
the acquirer and reported using the historical cost prevailing at the
date of the acquisition.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income and expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable and deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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LRE BSR4 M 5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised
in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged
as expenses when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Share options granted and vested before 1 April 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in the
consolidated financial statements until such time as the options are
exercised, and no charge is recognised in the profit or loss in respect of
the value of options granted. Upon the exercise of the share options,
the resulting shares issued are recorded by the Company as additional
share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of
the exercise price per share over the nominal value of the shares is
recorded by the Company as share premium. Options which lapse or
are cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from the register
of outstanding options.

Share options granted and vested on or after 1 April 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date is recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the share options granted vest
immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies which are
described in note 4, the Directors of the Company are required to
make various estimates based on past experience, expectations of the
future and other information. The key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year, are discussed below.
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LRE BSR4 M 5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. As at 31 December 2010, the carrying amount of
goodwill was HK$71,462,000 (31.3.2010: HK$71,462,000). Details
of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 16.

Turnover and Segment Information

Turnover

Turnover represents the amount received and receivable for goods
sold to customers during the period, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Segment information

For management purposes, the Group’s operations are currently
classified under the following business divisions, namely solvents,
coatings, lubricants and others. These divisions are the basis on which
the Group reports its operating segment information.

Principal activities of the Group’s reportable segments are as follows:

Solvents  —  manufacture of and trading in solvents and related
products

Coatings - manufacture of and trading in coatings and related
products

Lubricants —  manufacture of and trading in lubricants products

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4. Segment profit
represents the profit earned by each segment without allocation of
interest income, dividend income, fair value change on derivative
financial instruments, gain or loss on disposal of corporate assets,
central administration costs and interest expense. This is the
information reported to the Chief Executive Officer, the Group’s chief
operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.
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6. EXBENREKIE@ 6. Turnover and Segment Information (continued)
EBa@E) Segment information (Continued)
(a) PHEERERER (a) Segment revenue and results
AEEREEY FRZEEDEZ An analysis of the Group’s turnover and results by operating
EEBREEINAOT : segments for the period/year under review is as follows:
23
PEE
Reportable
AH BH BE segment Hity RAHEH e
Solvents Coatings  Lubricants total Others  Elimination Consolidated

TAR TiEn TR L TiEn TiEn L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—g-2% Period from 1 April 2010
mA—-AE t031 December 2010
2
+=R=+-A
PEEER Segment revenue
HMEE External sales 3,356,111 1,947,839 283,742 5,587,692 67,091 - 5,654,783
PEBEE Inter-segment sales 89,391 - - 89,391 - (89,391) -
@ Total 3,445,502 1,947,839 283,742 5,677,083 67,091 (89,391) 5,654,783
£ Results
PEEE Segment result 244312 109,836 5,799 359,947 4,979 4,099 369,025
fTESRTIE Fair value change on
DAEZE derivative financial
instruments (5,954)
RABBA Unallocated income 23,780
FARER Unallocated expenses (15,920)
FSER Interest expense (12,735)
BBt AR Profit before taxation 358,196
BET-TF Year ended
ZR=+—HLEE 31 March 2010
PEEEE Segment revenue
HIMEE External sales 2939274 2,088,019 292,475 5,319,768 135,974 - 545574
PEBHE Inter-segment sales 89,719 - - 89,719 - (89,719) -
a5 Total 3,028,993 2,088,019 292,475 5,409,487 135,974 (89,719) 5,455,742
#5 Results
PEEE Segment result 327,044 181,534 7,568 516,146 14,039 (7.402) 522,783
fTESMIE Fair value change on
MEZEL derivative financial
instruments (384)
RABBA Unallocated income 17,931
FARER Unallocated expenses (14,557)
FIZER Interest expense (9,175)
BRBADRR Profit before taxation 516,598
EBEB 2 HEHEHENS TR AL HGRE Inter-segment sales are charged at the similar terms as

I o outsiders.
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6. EXBENREKIE@ 6. Turnover and Segment Information
(Continued)
E 2308 (6 Segment information (Continued)
(b) EMEFH (b) Other information
THEHEEREFEIEEERSEE Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or
E: segment assets:
23]
HEs
Reportable &8
BH B BEH  segment Hfth  Corporate e
Solvents Coatings  Lubricants total Others level  Consolidated

TERL TR TR TERL TiEx TER TERL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

-3-2% Period from 1 April 2010 to
mA-BE 31 December 2010
2-2%
t2AZt-R
FhagE Additions to non-current
RE(HE) assets (note) 36,071 102,888 1436 146,395 - 1,654 148,049
0% BERE Depreciation of property,
g plant and equipment 19,954 30,08 3314 53,296 458 2,654 56,408
B Lo HH Release of prepaid 854 1,302 = 2,15 = h)) 2178
lease payments
0% BERE Impairment loss of property,
ZHEEE plant and equipment - 120 - 120 - - 120
BREERE Amortisation of 2171 2114 3 4318 - S 4318
intangible assets
HE/RENE Loss (gain) on disposal/
BER#EL written-off of property,
BE/ (87 plant and equipment 736 1,725 203 2,664 - €5)] 2631
BE-E-2% Year ended 31 March
SREZ+-BLEE 2010 (Restated)
(BE5)
E Additions to non-current
RE (M) assets (note) 84,88 101,189 2307 188378 3287 1,993 193,658
0% BERGE Depreciation of property,
ZHE plant and equipment 2338 36,150 4383 63,835 569 3,383 67,787
BfftiAcEs Release of prepaid 1,107 1,550 - 2,657 - 7 2,684
lease payments
% BERRE Impairment loss of property,
HERE plant and equipment 131 469 391 991 - - 991
B EERH Amortisation of 2818 1677 7 452 - - 450
intangible assets
HE/RENE BE  Losson disposal
RirEEE witten-off of property,
plant and equipment 250 2871 72 3193 - 15 3,08
MW  FRBEEFEELHMIA - Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments.
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6. EEBEREX T E®w)

E¥amE)

(c)

FEEREBDENDIBEERDE

(Continued)

Segment information (Continued)

6. Turnover and Segment Information

(c) Ananalysis of the Group's segment assets and segment liabilities

BEEVOT : by operating segments is as follows:
AE 25 sy i mE
Solvents Coatings Lubricants  Consolidated
FTEr FRT FaET FaET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-E—-2% At 31 December 2010
+-A=+—H
BE Assets
EInEEE Reportable segment assets 1,963,052 1,927,140 226,554 4,116,746
Hit Others 59,222
Hiv KRB EE Other unallocated assets 951,589
REHEE Consolidated total assets 5,127,557
afs Liabilities
2irEaE Reportable segment liabilities 655,612 457,576 48,670 1,161,858
Hit Others 4,736
FEBRX Taxation payable 94,310
EERIESE Deferred tax liabilities 6,557
HttkHEaE Other unallocated liabilities 1,267,141
REmeE Consolidated total liabilities 2,534,602
RIE-Z% At 31 March 2010
=ZA=+—H
BE Assets
EInEEE Reportable segment assets 1,684,854 1,564,038 156,512 3,405,404
Hit Others 22,653
HiRkpBEE Other unallocated assets 1,052,811
REHEE Consolidated total assets 4,480,868
af Liabilities
2inEaE Reportable segment liabilities 559,947 356,713 49,170 965,830
Hit Others 14,982
FEHBX Taxation payable 78,096
EERIESE Deferred tax liabilities 6,838
Htt ko BEE Other unallocated liabilities 1,087,884
RAmeE Consolidated total liabilities

2,153,630
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LRE BSR4 M 5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Turnover and Segment Information
(Continued)

Segment information (Continued)

(d) For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
derivative financial instruments and the unallocated
assets; and

3 all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than taxation payable, deferred tax liabilities, dividend
payable to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary,
derivative financial instruments, bank borrowings and
bank overdrafts and the unallocated liabilities.

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from external customers for the period ended
31 December 2010 was substantially generated from customers
located in the Mainland China (place of domicile of the group entities
that derive turnover) amounting to HK$5,540,914,000 (31.3.2010:
HK$5,286,925,000). Substantially all of the Group’s non-current assets
excluding financial instruments were also located in the Mainland
China (place of domicile of the group entities that hold such assets)
amounting to HK$1,213,747,000 (31.3.2010: HK$1,077,475,000).

Major customers

No individual customer of the Group has contributed over 10% of the
turnover of the Group for both reporting periods.
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7.

ERFENTFR2E8(ZE-—FF=A=1—

A 13R)ESZBe0T :

Bii ORRE ETH ORBR U 28

Ip Ip
ChiShing Fung Kuen
Thn Thn
HKS'000 HKS$'000

Directors’ Remuneration and Employees’
Emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 12 (31.3.2010: 13)
directors were as follows:

Yip
TszHin
Thn

HK§ 000

26R e

TER BRE BEER EES AvYang 3ER AER

Wong WaiMan, ~ Ng  Ting Young  Tong  Wong Tsan Pong, L KuYoen 48
KamYim  Peter SuPing HonYam ManKim WuiTung KongChi  Davie ChakMan  Fun  Total
TAn TEr THn TEr TEr TEr TAr TEr Thn TEn T
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

=}

Z5-25mA-RE Period from 1 April 2010
it 23 g to 31 December 2010
Eohe Fegs
4 ES Other emoluments
ERAvER Salaries and other benefis
FRHMRENAR L Discetonary bonus
BiRERELL Retirement beneft scheme contrbutons
Heag Total emoluments

300 =

2530 =

133 =

00 300 300 300 00 A0 ;> B0 150 25 3M
1114 1006 106 1R = = = = - 983
120539 309 = = = = = = - 0B

0 o % % 108 = = = = - o1

(ChiShing Fung Kuen
i Thn
HKS'000 HK$'000

8
Yip
TzHin
Tin
HK§'000

EE U MY TE OBRR EER EES Aemy ZER A4
Wong Wai Man, Ng Tng Young  Tong  Wong TeanPong, U Ko 8
Kam¥m  Peter SuPng HonVam ManKim WhiTng KongChi  Davie ChakMan — Fn  Totdl

BECE-BEZAZ-HEE  Year ended 31 March 2010

Ezhe Fees
Efthé Other emoluments
EREvER Slares and other benefis
FRARENARRL Discetonary bonus
DU Share-based payments
R Retiament beneftscheme contriutions
Hess Tota emoluments
B s

400 400

318 134
00 200
oW
163 108

TR TEr Tar Ter TEn TEn TRT TEn Tar Tan Thn
HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKSO00 HKS00 HKS000 HKSO00 HKS00 HKS000 HKS000
Y O N I T V!
B | - - - - - 135
W ™o oW w - - - - - 55
weoowoowoowow - - - - -8
Boowoome e 3 - - - - -

@ R-B-ZEMNA-AE-Z-BF+=
B=1+—0Hf EErxFHFesR L HAM
EANEFELEHEERS1,170,000/8 T (=
EENENA-RE=E-FT=A=1+—

B : 1,560,000/ 7T) °

(b) FREMREF DT ZIEANSZHR,
FERERE  AARRRBHRTS

T BIETRGE o

(0 RIETHETARR RQTARHBEH
1,700,007 R EF AN B 2B FTEE ©
AREER—ZTRFNA—HARHEZ
BRECA-_ZZRFNA—BAIRE -
A AR IR A 78 B 7S SR 15 2 Bl 5B 24[ BARR 5
FATHFIE |2 HERBIE RS HAKEN

TERBRE -

The directors’ salaries and other benefits above included operating leases
rentals of HK$1,170,000 (1.4.2009 to 31.3.2010: HK$1,560,000) for the
period from 1 April 2010 to 31 December 2010.

The discretionary bonus is determined with reference to the operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics during
the period/year.

On 5 October 2009, the Company granted an aggregate of 1,700,000
share options to certain directors of the Company. In relation to share
options granted before 1 April 2005, they were vested before 1 April
2005 and therefore have had no financial impact to the Group in
accordance with the relevant transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 “Share-
based payment”.
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Directors’ Remuneration and Employees’
Emoluments (continued)

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, four
(1.4.2009 to 31.3.2010: four) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed above. The emoluments of the remaining

FEESIIT - one individual were as follows:
—E-ZF —ETHhE
MA—HZE MA—HZE
—E-ZF —E-EF
t+t=A=+-AH ZA=+—8H
1.4.2010 1.4.2009
to to
31.12.2010 31.3.2010
FExT FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
HekHEvERN Salaries and other benefits 2,276 3,481
ERBERFT IR Retirement benefit scheme contribution 76 84
2,352 3,565

EUERERERE  AEBREREX
NMETUHFHES 2 BEE(BEES)
LAIR 51 E N A AN 52 W o M B B B B o bt
o REESBEMERSHEAREEM

During both reporting periods, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals, including directors, as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office. In addition, no director waived any emoluments during
both reporting periods.

8. Hfttlz= R 5148 8. Other Gains and Losses
—E-ZF —EThEF
mA—RAZE mMA—BZE
—B-BF —E-=
+=—A=+—~H =A=+—H
1.4.2010 1.4.2009
to to
31.12.2010 31.3.2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RN Net exchange gain 52,633 4,370
PTESMIAZ Fair value change on derivative
DREEE financial instruments (5,954) (384)
HE REWE - ME  Loss on disposal/written off of property,
KRB EIE plant and equipment (2,631) (3,208)
44,048 778
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9. NISEH 9. Interest Expense
—E-ZF —EThE
mA—RAZE MA—AZE
—E-ZF —E-EF
+=-—A=+—H =A=+—H
1.4.2010 1.4.2009
to to
31.12.2010 31.3.2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BAROFANBHEER Interest on bank borrowings wholly repayable
ZIRITRENRE within five years 12,735 9,175
10. BRB AT R 10. Profit Before Taxation
—E-ZF —EThE
mA—RAZE mMAE—HZE
—E-ZF —E-EF
+=A=+—H =BA=+-—H
1.4.2010 1.4.2009
to to
31.12.2010 31.3.2010
FET FiEx
HK$'000 HK$'000
(BE5)
(Restated)
BB ADER S KR Profit before taxation has been
THIRIE : arrived at after charging:
| EEE Amortisation of intangible assets 4,318 4,522
B & Auditors’ remuneration
— R EE — current period/year 4,071 4,236
—FFED(Z)IREE — under (over)provision in prior year 150 (277)
W« BMERREZITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 56,408 67,787
ME - BMERZEZ Impairment loss of property,
BB R plant and equipment 120 991
MEzEERD Operating lease payments in respect
FARIE of rented premises 12,425 16,540
FE{T b FE SN Release of prepaid lease payments 2,178 2,684
BIRAK  8fF Staff costs, including directors’
FEME (MIFE7) remuneration (note 7) 363,056 425,376
WHRSTATHIER ¢ and after crediting:
FIEURA Interest income 10,701 11,000
HBRNBFHBE Government grants recognised 9,987 1,371
FEIEMIRA Net processing fee income 965 6,400
AEHERERNREUWA Dividend income from available-for-sale investment = 6,742
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11. Taxation

—E-ZF —EThE
mA—RAZE mMA—AZE
—E-ZF —E-EF
+=A=t+-—H =RA=t-H
1.4.2010 1.4.2009
to to
31.12.2010 31.3.2010
FET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RIKIEB-BHE Current tax — Hong Kong
N EE Current period/year 801 1,689
FEEDREE Underprovision in previous years - 2,528
801 4,217
BITHE — PEIARE Current tax — Mainland China
R EE Current period/year 61,568 78,630
AFLREE Overprovision in previous years (20,729) (502)
40,839 78,128
41,640 82,345
IEFEFIE (5526) Deferred taxation (note 26)
BB Hong Kong 242 220
H B AR BE Mainland China (525) (557)
(283) (337)
41,357 82,008

TR EBIR A EWE RS MEGEER
FBEH16.5%5 2 °

RIEPERRE REAEBE(TBEREH
E D REEFBFEABRES - PEME
RAZBERAEZZEZNEF-A-AER
25% °

RPBAEELEZ2AKENBARNERS
TREMRBBEER - RETEAAEERH
ERERBL  ADTETHEKRERE X
AERERERZBEN 2 FELREMERE
BePEAEREMES  MARLSH
BARENBLRSEERUR=FFHE
REREFMESHES0%RR o« PEIAFEDR
EBRENTALSERBESRMELR
e

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both reporting periods.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income
Tax (the "EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the subsidiaries in Mainland China is 25% from 1
January 2008 onwards.

The Group’s subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are eligible for
certain tax holidays and concessions. Pursuant to the relevant laws and
regulations in Mainland China, certain subsidiaries of the Company in
Mainland China are entitled to exemption from enterprise income tax
of Mainland China for the first two years commencing from their first
profit-making year of operation and thereafter, these subsidiaries in
Mainland China will be entitled to a 50% relief from enterprise income
tax of Mainland China for the following three years. Enterprise income
tax of Mainland China has been provided for after taking these tax
incentives into account.
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LRE BT ER& FEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11. Taxation (Continued)

subsidiaries is thus reduced to 15%.

A statement of reconciliation of taxation is as follows:

Qverprovision in previous years mainly included tax refund from tax
bureau to certain subsidiaries of the Company in Mainland China
for successfully claiming during the current period as High and New
Technology Enterprise status since 2009. The income tax rate of these

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing
in the relevant jurisdictions.

—E-ZF —EENF
mA—AE mA—AZE
—E-ZF —E-TF
+=A=t+—~H =A=+—H
1.4.2010 1.4.2009
to to
31.12.2010 31.3.2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BREL AT F] Profit before taxation 358,196 516,598
ARt P8 225 % Tax charge at the domestic income tax rate of 25%
(ZZENFMA—H (1.4.2009 to 31.3.2010: 25%)
B2Z-TFZ=RH
=+—HB :25%):t& 89,549 129,150
EFE(ZR)DRBMHE  (Over) underprovision in previous years (20,729) 2,026
AR AIBE Tax effect of expenses not
HEB e E deductible for tax purposes 7,530 16,178
BT B U Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes
BB 28 (15,103) (15,778)
RFURRBIEEE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
HE K& 23,180 18,836
R Z A RIERTIE Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
BRESKE2TE previously not recognised (435) (6,507)
MREM B AR Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
B ARTREHE in other jurisdictions
pd-2 (256) (759)
ERA I A B 2 B Effect of income tax on tax exemption
ReHFEHicse for certain subsidiaries = (46,442)
ERAHIEE A R 2R R Effect of income tax on concessionary rates
BREFAER2TE for certain subsidiaries (40,294) (17,222)
Hts Others (2,085) 2,526
REFERIE Taxation for the period/year 41,357 82,008

A3 P 1S 350 3R TS (6 A AN SR B R AR 40 235 P

ERAMBEZRE o

operation of the Group is substantially based.

The domestic income tax rate is a tax rate in the jurisdiction where the



LRE B ER & M 5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. B2 12. Dividends
—E-ZF —EThE
mMA—RAZE MA—HZE
—E-EF —E-ZF
+=A=+—~H =A=+—~H
1.4.2010 1.4.2009
to to
31.12.2010 31.3.2010
THExT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RERFRER S Dividend recognised as distribution
TREZBRE during the period/year:
BE-_ZT-ZF Interim dividend for the nine months ended
tZA=+—HL 31 December 2010 of HK12.0 cents
hEBHHRE : (1.4.2009 to 31.3.2010: year ended
FR12784 31 March 2010 of HK12.0 cents) per share 66,353 64,831
—EZTHhFMNA
—RE=F-FF
=ZA=+—H:
BE-Z-ZF
=A=t+-ALEE
FEARSER12.0/840)
—E-ZTF=AH 31 March 2010 final dividend of HK20.0 cents
=t+—HEBRBRE (1.4.2009 to 31.3.2010: 31 March 2009 final
Fh%20.05841 dividend of HK17.0 cents) per share
(Z2ENFOA—-BE
—E-FF=A=t-8:
BE-_ZThEF
=ZA=+—BLFE
HARREER17.084L) 110,211 91,262
176,564 156,093
EESRERRREE-_E-ZEFE+=-A= The final dividend of HK10.0 cents per share totalling not less than
+—HLEAERZREFTR10.0/81L - & HK$55,000,000 in respect of the nine months ended 31 December
£ 81~ 1455,000,00058 7T - WIFMRRIE 2010 has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by
REFAFAE LREBS - the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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13. ERER

RARRESHEASRERAREERE

13. Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable

FRETHERE to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:
—E-ZF —EENF
MA—HZE mMA—HBZE
—E-ZF —E-TF
+=A=+-A8 ZA=+—H
1.4.2010 1.4.2009
to to
31.12.2010 31.3.2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
AHERARDTMER  Profit for the period/year attributable to owners of
BRI R EESR the Company and earnings for the purposes of
HEAREERER calculating basic and diluted earnings per share
2B 264,509 378,064
RPEE
Number of shares
TR TR
‘000 ‘000
STEESRER Weighted average number of shares for the purpose
BRI Z kIR & of calculating basic earnings per share 550,582 538,009
AR EBRMELE 2 Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
HETE  BRE Share options 5,403 8,448
STEEREER Weighted average number of shares for the purpose
BRIz IR & of calculating diluted earnings per share 555,985 546,457
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14. 1% - BMERRZE 14. Property, Plant and Equipment
HEIHR G %ER
52 BOERE
HERRIR Leasehold Fumiture,
Construction ~~ KAEELH land fixtures RE BEREE
in Freehold and andoffice Motor Plant and ait
progress land buildings equipment vehicles machinery Total
TR TER TR THR TER TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
AR ATCOST
H-ETNERR-A At 1 Apil 2009
FRES as originaly stated 120,028 3,560 430,266 99,420 52,841 457811 1,163,992
ERT effect on changes in
REzEE(ND) accounting polices (note 3) - - 16,000 - - - 16,000
EEJ a restated 120,028 3,560 446,266 99,420 52,841 457871 1179992
NELEER Currency realignment 264 354 933 110 105 1014 2,780
Exip Redlssfication (144,827) - 114,469 2888 - 27470 -
e Additions 41481 - 7317 8473 11,19 110,273 178,739
HE/RE Disposalsfwriten off - - (12,094) (11,649) (7.226) (16,8%) (47,865)
WZR-ZEZA=T-B(BEH)  At31March 2010 Restated) 16946 391 556,991 9,42 56,915 579,738 1313646
NELEER Currency realignment 820 310 25,161 2676 2419 271307 58,693
Efip Redlassfication (16,869) - 4383 8,668 - 3818 -
HE Additions 41,240 - 6,843 10212 6,233 55,350 119,878
te/RE Disposalshwritten off - - (505) (8034) (40 9.726) 22.87)
HE-EE+A=1-A At 31 December 2010 0137 404 592,773 112,764 61,545 656,487 1,469,930
FERAERR DEPRECIATION AND
[MPAIRMENT
R-2ENEMA-A At 1 April 2009
RS as originally tated - 941 124,685 66,59 17499 168,728 388,449
R A effect on changes in
(H&h3) accounting policies (note 3) - - 4m - - - 4
REL] a restated - 9 128,807 66,596 27499 168,728 392,51
NELEER Currency realignment - 9% 307 ] 3 646 1126
ERFERR Depreciation provided for the year - - 19409 10003 6,190 3,185 67,787
ERHERE Impairmentloss for the year - - 39 - - 662 91
tE/REREH Eliminated on disposalshwritten off - - (9,291) 9.730) (6,001) (9,655) (34,677)
RZE-BEZB=+-R(BEY))  At31 March 2010 (Restated) - 1,034 139,561 06,912 2,725 192,566 421798
NELRER Currency realignment - 9l 6,644 1,664 1311 10345 20,055
BhiERR Depreciation provided for the period - - 15,391 7488 521 28257 56,408
e Impairment loss fo the perod - 120 - - - - 10
HE/RERER Eliminated on disposalswiten off - - (67) (7.820) (3174) (6730) (17,791)
RZE-ZE+ZA=1-H At 31 Decernber 2010 - 1,245 161,529 68,244 31134 224438 486,590
FEFE CARRYING VALUES
W-F-EFTZA=T-H At31 December 2010 Q137 2979 431,244 44,50 30411 432,049 983,340
RZE-SE=B=T-B(BEJ)  At31March2010 Restated) 16,946 2,830 417330 32,330 29190 387112 885,848
RZZZAEME-H (EES) At 1 Apri 2009 (Restated) 120,028 2,619 317459 32824 25,38 289,149 787 421
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14. 1% - BMERRZE@®) 14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
EXFriti 2 BERZRHFEEBDUE The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
OERUT FRITE a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

KAERELH & Freehold land Nil
HELTih 2% AL 2 i gk Leasehold land Over the shorter of the remaining
FH > UBEETE term of the lease or 2%
BF 2.5% UKz ek Buildings Over the shorter of the remaining
FH > UBREETE term of the lease or 2.5%
BRI £EB 45%F25% Furniture, fixtures and 4.5% t0 25%
b BZE%E office equipment
RE 9%%E25% Motor vehicles 9% t0 25%
R R R 6%ZE20% Plant and machinery 6% t0 20%
B AEEBEME - BERRBET During the period, the Group conducted a review on the property,
TR THEBIZEEEHERME- plant and equipment and determined that a number of those assets
Bl KAERELHMEAUREBINGEE R were impaired. An impairment loss of HK$120,000 (1.4.2009 to
wEZA A{E(?ﬂﬁ?ﬁ*ﬁﬁkﬂ’ﬁ*ﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁ- 31.3.2010: nil) has been recognised in respect of freehold land due
WEEE120,0008 T (ZEZNFMNA — to the decrease in value in term of functional currency of the group
AE=Z—ZF=A=+— El |m) - BZE entity with reference to its fair value less costs to sell. For the year
—E-ZHF=A=+-HALFE #HEL ended 31 March 2010, impairment losses of HK$329,000 (1.4.2010
HREFNRERESESHIEBRIERR to 31.12.2010: nil) and HK$662,000 (1.4.2010 to 31.12.2010: nil)
9l Y& I T e SRRI (B /B5 $8329,00078 7T (= were recognised in respect of leasehold land and buildings and plant
Z-ZEHFNA—HEZZ-ZEHF+=ZA= and machinery respectively due to physical damage and technical
+—08: &)M662,0008 T (ZE—FF obsolescence.
MA—HEZE=-ZE—ZEF+=-A=+—H:
) o
RZB—BF RZZT—TF —TThE
+=A=t+—H =A=+—~H MA—H
31.12.2010 31.3.2010 1.4.2009
TERT FAT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(BE7)) (B&3)
(Restated) (Restated)
AEBZYEEREIE . The Group's property
interests comprise:
BERUIMERFEZ Freehold land held outside Hong Kong
KAEELI 2,979 2,880 2,619
EEBESEZ Leasehold land and building held in
PEIFE i Hong Kong under
T medium-term leases 21,346 21,969 22,800
Rtz HEZETF . Buildings located on land:
EEBLUMEREZ held outside Hong Kong under:
- REHEE - Long leases 254 303 383
- THEE - Medium-term leases 402,054 386,769 284,814
- EHEE ~ Short-term leases 7,590 8,289 9,462
434,223 420,210 320,078
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15. Eff LS 15. Prepaid Lease Payments

R=B—2F R-F—FF R-ZETNF

+=HA=+—H =A=+—H MA—H
31.12.2010 31.3.2010 1.4.2009
THET FAT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(=%=2)) (BEH)
(Restated) (Restated)
REEFEF Lt The Group’s prepaid lease
HeBE: payments comprise:
ERUIMIBIREZ Leasehold land outside
Hong Kong under:
REEE Long leases 1,318 1,269 1,293
hETEE Medium-term leases 121,530 98,675 101,140
122,848 99,944 102,433
DMERE R Analysed for reporting purposes as:
RBEE Current assets 2,926 2,411 2,297
FRBEE Non-current assets 119,922 97,533 100,136
122,848 99,944 102,433
16. B8 16. Goodwill
)
Total
FAT
HK$'000
A AT COST
RZZZhEMA—HB + At 1 April 2009, 31 March 2010 and 31 December 2010
—E-FF
=A=+—-HEK
—E-EF
+=A=+-A — 71,462
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16. & @)

REBEHRBZBEEDREBREIEE
EHMERZEBEHIZIECRESELE
UREELEEN | BEZREAEC DR
wT:

16. Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash-generating units (“CGU"s) that are expected
to benefit from that business combination. The carrying amount of
goodwill had been allocated as follows:

R-2-—%F R-F—FF

+=HA=+—H =A=t—H

31.12.2010 31.3.2010

FTHET FHT

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEREERE Manufacture of and trading in solvents 59,479 59,479
SUEREERR Manufacture of and trading in coatings 10,095 10,095
BEREEREH Manufacture of and trading in lubricants 1,888 1,888
71,462 71,462

REBEZE-Z-ZTF+-A=+—-HLhAE
A $%lz EERAEEHECRS
BB ERE o

REeELBENU RS EDZACAE
EMEE FEEREENRAZIER
RIIBEHAZHRER - BRENFAHHE
EEREENACEEMET - EEEN
ARRAKHSIEERRERZRESE
SEUFEHRR HAI L REEFTR
R PREDENBFER 2B RBEAME
He HEBREERAZZ2BAREBE
EBRRFERERTS 2 FEMEE -

AREFEZEN  AEERBESEE
HEZEBRABMERESHZRRE
FHE&R  UHFEAERERI4.0% (=8
—Z2F=ZA=1—H':14%) REHE
BREHESRKRENTIERBESEESVS
ERK 2T c ERAEBETEZIBRAE
Bl SEEENFS%EN2% (ZE—FF
ZA=1+—8 2%ENRW)TE - BED
BIWEEERE o

During the nine months ended 31 December 2010, the management
of the Group determines that there is no impairment of any of its
CGUs containing goodwill.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value
in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and
expected changes to selling prices and direct costs during the period.
Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are based on industry growth
forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past
practices and expectations of future changes in the market.

For impairment assessment purpose, the Group performed impairment
review for goodwill based on cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets for the next five years for each CGU
approved by management using a discount rate of 14% (31.3.2010:
14%) which reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates per
annum range from 5% to 12% (31.3.2010: 2% to 12%) in light
of the Group’s industry growth forecasts. No impairment loss was
considered necessary.
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AD? .
17. B EE 17. Intangible Assets
BERmE
HATAE THFHE EFB%  Trademarks
Technical Non-competition Customer and &t
knowhow covenants relationship  patent brands Total
TR TR TERT TR FEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B AT COST
RZBENENA-A At 1 April 2009 8,579 15,539 9,573 2,194 35,885
MNEREZEE Currency realignment 5 34 - - 39
wE Additions 298 - - - 298
RZZ-ZF=A=+-H  At31March2010 8,882 15,573 9,573 2,194 36,222
HELEER Currency realignment 59 739 - - 798
HE Additions 4,073 1,952 - 1,952 1971
RZE-ZF+ZA=+—H At31 December 2010 13,014 18,264 9,573 4,146 44,997
B AMORTISATION
RIZZNENA-A At 1 April 2009 5,459 3,655 1,330 183 10,627
NEHEZET Currency realignment 1 12 - - 13
FREE Provided for the year 589 2,366 1,379 188 4,522
RZE-Z£=H=1+-H At 31 March 2010 6,049 6,033 2,709 371 15,162
MEREER Currency realignment 17 32 - - 339
BRRE Provided for the period 747 2,134 1177 260 4318
RZZ-ZF+ZA=1—H At31 December 2010 6,813 8,489 3,886 631 19,819
REEE CARRYING VALUES
RZE-ZH+ZA=+—H At31 December 2010 6,201 9,775 5,687 3,515 25,178
RZE-ZE=F=1+-H At 31 March 2010 2,833 9,540 6,864 1,823 21,060
B EEAERERER - 258 The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such intangible
WEEDNRAESEN T 2B ER assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the following
FHAEEN ¢ periods:
FE AT AN 4.5-10% Technical knowhow 4.5-10 years
THREWHE 3-10%F Non-competition covenants 3-10 years
BEFEB#% 6F Customer relationship 6 years
BERmE 105 Trademarks and patent brands 10 years
BEifAESRERaOE = A WEBREERZFE Technical knowhow represents technical knowledge and techniques
HEBERARERNEERM AR R - acquired from independent third parties to manufacture certain

insulating varnish, ink and screening products.

THBHEARAUEE D T, PR 53 U S Non-competition covenants represent the right to restrict the vendors
ATNHEST RN FIZ10FE 2B EFHT of assets or acquirees, after acquisition of the entities, to carry on the
At BRI - same business for specific periods ranging from 3 to 10 years.
BEEFBARDNEZEFEBANRS TG Customer relationship represents the customers, which are buying
fbtm - RBEEREMEFER2ER specialised types of paint and thinner used in audio visual equipment,
BHRKEK o cosmetics, mobile phone and other electronic products.
BERREEEBRBEERTREZR Trademarks and patent brands represent the brand names acquired
BERE ZERERTERESER TR which have high recognition and awareness in the market.

BHEE -
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18. At HERE

19.

20.

18. Available-for-sale Investment

R-BE-2F R-ZE—FF

+=A=+—H =A=+—H
31.12.2010 31.3.2010
FEx FEx
HK$'000 HK$'000
RAEPEBEARENIELHRAFES > Unlisted equity interest in Mainland China,
BREARREEER at cost less impairment loss 22,200 12,387

HRMEFTZERESBAANERFTFEEZR
ZBREZSEEEERE WMEEAKREFE
RIFLTRND, AR 2ESAAREAE
wEEAAARE  BLRRARBRRBRE
R ZBETE -

RBE-Z-ZEF+=-A=+—HLA
BAR AIMEEREZEZRELT
BMBEITRA S REBEZRK GG X
8,845,000/& 7T °

HittFRBEE

HEEDEARESEEMES ZHEAR
REEHR(NE) ZEA R R ERE

S

19.

The above investment represents investment in unlisted equity interest
and is measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting
period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the fair value cannot be measured reliably.

During the nine months ended 31 December 2010, the investee
company of the available-for-sale investment increased its issued share
capital and HK$8,845,000 were paid by the Group in proportion to
its shareholding.

Other Non-current Asset

The amount represents the cost of club debenture held by the Group
and is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, at
the end of the reporting period.

FE 20. Inventories
R-Z—ZF R-Z—ZF
+=A=+-H =H=+—-H
31.12.2010 31.3.2010
FET FExT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B Raw materials 424,253 515,439
EHm Work in progress 58,547 42,524
B M Finished goods 282,843 242,904
765,643 800,867
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21. EWEBRF R FEWES - Hft 21. Trade and Bills Receivables, Other Debtors

and Prepayments

R=-Z-—TF R-ZT—ZF

+t=A=+-B =A=t+-8

31.12.2010 31.3.2010

Fi&xT FEx

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEWERR Trade receivables 1,365,243 1,047,072
W RIBERERE Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (24,850) (29,581)
1,340,393 1,017,491

EWEE Bills receivables 635,872 341,154
1,976,265 1,358,645

HitEWHRE RS AREASHER
;o B RS REEEER -

REBESHMARBURTIZER Y 2RED
AT :

Other debtors and prepayments mainly consist of payments in advance
to suppliers, commission receivable from suppliers and value-added
tax receivable.

An aged analysis of trade receivables presented based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

RN-ZE—=F R-ZE—ZF

+t=A=+-H ZA=+—8

31.12.2010 31.3.2010

THET FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

E2E2=EA 0 - 3 months 1,148,182 853,311
WmEXEA 4 — 6 months 183,425 150,717
NMEB M E Over 6 months 8,786 13,463
1,340,393 1,017,491

AEERFOHERERFREMAHAI0KRED
AZEEH BRNEEHIR T AN
BREZRIASRERZEF -

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 to 90 days to its
trade customers. A longer credit period may be granted to large or
long established customers with good payment history.
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21.

EWERREREE - Hi
R R A FRIE @)

EEMEAHEFA  NEBAIERFT
RHESTEEEEF2ER  ER8E
FonEEERERAEARREEEERSE
REEEM -EF2RESEHEM - K
W% 2 BYERR(Z2Z-ZF=A=1
— B 3% AEEHNEAREBARA
ZERIRHEZBRERFTD MEFTH
&

REEEWEIRF AR B IEC B A B R
o R {E A308,311,0008 T (=& —
ZHFE=H=+—H 274,905,000 T ) °
ZECEH 2 ERERNERE Y BRI R
BRIKRABRKEFTM 2R it
AEEBVEMRZEREELRESER
B AEERZEREI /BT ETMER

o |
an °

RI|BEHR - SEHEEREZ EUEIRR
BREZHHZREDTOT

21. Trade and Bills Receivables, Other Debtors

and Prepayments (continued)

Before accepting any new customers, the Group has an internal
credit control system to assess the potential customers’ credit quality
and the board of directors has delegated the management shall be
responsible for determination of credit limits and credit approvals for
customers. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed periodically.
Approximately 77% (31.3.2010: 73%) of the trade receivables are
neither past due nor impaired as they were assessed to be of good
credit rating attributable under the credit control system used by the
Group.

Included in the Group's trade receivables are past due debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$308,311,000 (31.3.2010:
HK$274,905,000). These past due debtors are all closely monitored
and by past experience, they will eventually settle their debts, so the
Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, which are past
due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period based on the
invoice date:

R-ZT—ZF R-ZE—ZF

Tr=A =A== =B=+—H

31.12.2010 31.3.2010

FExT FiEx

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEE={AA 0 - 3 months 144,643 148,625
mEXEA 4 — 6 months 154,881 112,817
NMEB UL Over 6 months 8,787 13,463
308,311 274,905




21. EWERF R EWERE - Hit
WA KA FRIE @

EEERVRR 2 TWRE %R - BEFA
RHEEEZERHAY  AEEEEEY
BERERAEZ2EAEE - RARESR
B BEFPME AEBAYBERERE
EREE  BEARERSHIREFDHE -

LRE B IR & M EE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21. Trade and Bills Receivables, Other Debtors
and Prepayments (continued)

In determining the recoverability of the trade debtors, the Group
monitors any change in the credit quality of the trade debtors since
the credit was granted and up to the reporting date. The directors
of the Company considered that the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number
of counterparties and customers.

RIFAREE Allowance for doubtful debts:

—E-FF —ZTERF

MA—HBZE mMA—BZE

—2-2F e

+=—A=+—~H =A=+—H

1.4.2010 1.4.2009

to to

31.12.2010 31.3.2010

FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

i) At beginning of the period/year 29,581 31,257
INEAEEELE Currency realignment 1,021 78
R ZREEE Impairment losses recognised - 3,894
AT WE 2 FRIE Amounts written off as uncollectible (5,019) (5,150)
RANER,EEAIURE 25/ Amounts recovered during the period/year (733) (498)
B ER At end of the period/year 24,850 29,581

REBERENERNEAYBRNE 2 -
WEBRFRAE tHIRUE » AEEF RS AR E
FAEMERG -

Impairment is made for trade debtors that have been placed under
liquidation or in severe financial difficulties. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.
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2. EWERF R EWELE - Hi4  21.
PEUR FR R FE A FRIE ()

EREERERRITERRIERARZE
TRAIER  AEERENERESERP
LR o SR 47 78 54 YR 17 A 5L B SR B SB FE UK
BRFK ©

HEHAERBEERAEBZRITRLIER
REERANEAREIH - AELEREZ
RITHBER2EAFRTREHERT IR
RITARERZIPEATEEEXN
Ao

MRZEBE-FTF+A=+—8 " RITEL
EEH13,374,0008 T (= E—FF=A=
+—H 62,437,000/ T) B BHIR AR 1T
BEEEEE At AEEHEKREE
BERTEALEZEEREREEPILS
Bz B eERAARESEZRITEE
(RKizE25)EZIH o

WA R EREEEETHLENEER
EERRZNEERREE KA

Trade and Bills Receivables, Other Debtors
and Prepayments (continued)

Bills receivables represent #8177 H.FE 2 ("“banker's acceptances”), i.e.
time drafts accepted and guaranteed for payment by PRC banks. The
Group accepts the settlement of trade receivables by customers using
banker's acceptances accepted by PRC banks on a case by case basis.

These banker's acceptances are issued to or endorsed to the Group
and are due within six months from the date of issuance. Those banks
accepting the banker’s acceptances, which are state-owned banks or
commercial banks in the PRC, are the primary obligors for payment on
the due date of such banker’s acceptances.

At 31 December 2010, banker's acceptances amounting to
HK$13,374,000 (31.3.2010: HK$62,437,000) have been discounted
to the banks with recourse. Accordingly, the Group continues to
include these discounted banker’s acceptances under bills receivables
and has recognised the cash received as bank borrowings with the
same amount (see note 25) until maturity.

Included in trade receivables and bill receivables are the following
amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entities:

R-Z—ZF RZZ—ZF

+=A=+-8 =A=t-H

31.12.2010 31.3.2010

FET FExT

HK$'000 HK$’'000

BT Hong Kong dollars 4,379 5,596
E United States dollars ("USD") 8,814 10,466
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22. Short-term Bank Deposits/bank Balances
and Cash

Included in short-term bank deposits and bank balances and cash
are the following amounts denominated in currencies other than the

g o functional currencies of the group entities:
R-B—2F RIZE—BF
+=A=+-A~ ZA=+—H
31.12.2010 31.3.2010
TET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EY usb 75,071 15,455
BT Hong Kong dollars 2,059 3,541
AR RMB 34,398 618

BRZR=EA R ZRHRITERIRE
FZ2.25%F25% (ZEZNFHMA—H
EZE-ZEF=ZA=1+—H:1225%)5R
SN FRESB T IRITFRIZEFZE0.001%
Z135% T EFE(ZEENFMNA—H
EZE-FE=ZHF=+—H:001%%
1.71%) °

AR ETERN

RIEBR - ENRARESBEREHRE
1% B & 38863,801,0008 T (=2 —FF
=HA=+—H:703,231,000/8 7t ) & W &
f B =) FE A4S 2 {K 83,191,000 (=&
—ZEF=A=+—H :5550,000/87T) °
BREFTZOEEREFENR  EAFET
FERER  ENHERAS  EAAHR
BEZ o

23.

RBERRECERRBRRAR2RERD

Other than short-term bank deposits with original maturity more
than three months carrying interest ranging from 2.25% to 2.5%
(1.4.2009 to 31.3.2010: 2.25%) per annum, all remaining bank
deposits carrying interest ranging from 0.001% to 1.35% (1.4.2009
10 31.3.2010: 0.01% to 1.71%) per annum.

23. Creditors and Accrued Charges

At the end of the reporting period, the balance of creditors and accrued
charges included trade creditors of HK$863,801,000 (31.3.2010:
HK$703,231,000) and consideration payable for acquisition of
assets or subsidiaries of HK$3,191,000 (31.3.2010: HK$5,550,000).
Remaining balances mainly consist of receipts in advance from
customers, payable of staff salaries and benefits, sales commission,
storage and transportation, etc.

An aged analysis of trade creditors at the end of the reporting period

AT based on the invoice date is as follows:
R-Z—FF R-E—ZF
+=A=+-—-H =A=+-~H
31.12.2010 31.3.2010
THET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EZE=EA 0 - 3 months 823,007 680,469
mENEA 4 — 6 months 35,529 20,429
NMEB M E Over 6 months 5,265 2,333
863,801 703,231
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23. BRI R FERHE ) 23.

BNERREET A FUEREE AR 2
WREEHEEZ A

Creditors and Accrued Charges (continued)

Included in creditors are the following amounts denominated in
currency other than the functional currency of the group entities to
which they relate:

R-Z—ZF R=Z—FF
+=-—A=+—H =A=+—H
31.12.2010 31.3.2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
ESp usbD 215,366 125,192
24. fTE SR IA 24. Derivative Financial Instruments
R-Z—TF R-ZE—ZF
+=—HA=+—H =B=+—H
31.12.2010 31.3.2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
PghertiiREZ Derivatives under hedge accounting
IR
FZEEHEH Interest rate swap contracts (2,290) (283)
HtieTETR Other derivatives
(GER i &EHERE)  (not under hedge accounting)
SNERBEHN Foreign exchange forward contracts (5,487) (447)
(7,777) (730)




24 fTEE®MIT A

LB&RER YZHERMENH
AEEESBHEERITLZERNRISH
AR BBSTBNEZERBEERNEX
AR ITZETETFERITERZE
ERBABBEEZHE - ZEEHZHEARE
ERREEPRITEEZRAREE -
(RITEEZAEHE - BERARIERY
HE) - EERA/NXEPREHNBSRE I+
THE WREHIETEEEZREIAR
BERBEHIA -

BREHFERRBcREREARMS @
HASEAER -R-Z-ZFNA—-AZE
TE-EEL+ZAZ+-HEBE ARE
&5182,007,0008 T (Z 2B AFHA—H
E-E-EZF=HA=+—H:283,000%T)
REMmZEKEAERRLRBERERNA
EEEHME TR SRR ERERTRE
EZEENER  MRFABNERNERR
N

R-B-SEMA-AZE-F—FF+=
B=+— B8R #523,00085T(=%
BENFMA-BE-B-—BE=A=+—
A:130,000% 78) 2 A A EFRE BERE
ARERERTHRSEA -

LRE B IR & M EE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24. Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)

Interest rate swap contracts under cash flow hedges

The Group entered into a number of interest rate swap contracts
with the commercial banks to minimise its exposure to cash flow
changes of its floating-rate USD bank borrowings from the same
banks by swapping floating interest rates to fixed interest rates. The
terms of these contracts were negotiated to match with those of the
hedged bank borrowings with the same notional amounts to principal
amounts of bank borrowings, currency and interest rate index. The
directors consider that the interest rate swap contracts are highly
effective hedging instruments and have designated them as cash flow
hedging instruments for hedge accounting purpose.

The hedges were highly effective in hedging cash flow exposure to
interest rate movements. Fair value losses of HK$2,007,000 for the
period from 1 April2010to 31 December2010(1.4.2009t031.3.2010:
HK$283,000) have been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity. The directors expected the accumulated
sum is to be released to profit or loss when the hedged interest
expenses were charged to profit or loss till the maturity of those
contracts.

During the period from 1 April 2010 to 31 December 2010, a fair
value loss of approximately HK$523,000 (1.4.2009 to 31.3.2010:
HK$130,000) was included in the interest expenses in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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24. STHE €T B
LESREHYZFEHBPEH

(#&)

MR E B KR M2 IEE ZRIT
BEEEERSREYPET2RT
& 7%39,748,0003 7t (48 & 309,070,000
BrT)(R-ZE—ZF=A=+—-8:
17,930,000 7t (#8474 139,209,0005&7T)) »
MZEREREBEFET 2 HEEHEN

24. Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)

Interest rate swap contracts under cash flow hedges
(Continued)

Included in bank borrowings as disclosed in note 25 were bank loans
of USD39,748,000 (equivalent to HK$309,070,000) (31.3.2010:
USD17,930,000 (equivalent to HK$139,209,000)) which were under
cash flow hedges and the major terms of the interest rate swap
contracts under cash flow hedges at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

ZEBFRRMNT

H{E ZHA WEGE R ZHES
Notional amount Maturity Receive floating Pay fixed
R-E=—-E£+-A=+—8H

At 31 December 2010

1,550,000 7T —E——%=A=+—H ER=EA ZHRBEIRTRIZEFRZ2M1.09E 1.93/E
UsSD1,550,000 21.3.2011 USD 3-month LIBOR* plus 1.09% 1.93%
4,600,000 7T —Z——F=ZA=+=H ER=EA ZmRBEIRTRIZEFRZM1.09E 1.98E
USD4,600,000 23.3.2011 USD 3-month LIBOR plus 1.09% 1.98%
4,253,000 7T —E—-—F=ZA=+FHAH En—EAZRBEIRTRZERLZMSE 2.22E
USD4,253,000 25.3.2011 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 1.5% 2.22%
4,710,000% 7T —Z——FMANR ER=EA ZRBEIRTRIZEFRZM.29E 224
UsD4,710,000 8.4.2011 USD 3-month LIBOR plus 1.29% 2.24%
3,000,000% 7T —ZEZ——FMmA+NA En—EAZRBEIRTRIZERZM.75E 2.46E
USD3,000,000 18.4.2011 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 1.75% 2.46%
3,720,000% 7T —E——FMA=+xH ER=EA ZHRBEIRTRIZEFRZM.64E 2.66E
USD3,720,000 26.4.2011 USD 3-month LIBOR plus 1.64% 2.66%
1,313,000 7T —E——FHRANAH En—EA ZRBEIRTRIZERE2M0.6E 1.28/8
UsD1,313,000 5.8.2011 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.28%
2,026,000% T —ZE——%ARA—H Ex—EA ZRBEIRTRIZEFRE2M0.6E 1218
USD2,026,000 1.9.2011 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.21%
1,371,000% 7T —Z——F%RA=+H En—EA ZRBEIRTRIZEFRE2M0.6E 1.22E
UsD1,371,000 20.9.2011 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.22%
3,450,000% 7T —ZE——%+A=+—H ER=EA ZmRBEIRTRIZEFRE2M2.59E 3.33E
USD3,450,000 21.10.2011 USD 3-month LIBOR plus 2.59% 3.33%
1,492,000 7T —ZE——%+A=+—H En—EA ZRBEIRTRIZEFRE2M0.6E 1.20/2
USD1,492,000 21.10.2011 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.20%
2,889,000% 7T —ZE——%+—-H=H En—EA ZRBEIRTRIZEFRE2M0.6E 1.20/2
USD2,889,000 2.11.2011 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.20%
1,555,000% 7T —ZEZ——%+—-HA+N\H En—EA ZRBEIRTRIZERE2M0.6E 1,248
UsD1,555,000 18.11.2011 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.24%
2,397,000% T —ZE——%+—A+N\H En—EA ZHRBEIRTRIZEFRE2M0.6E 1,248
UsD2,397,000 18.11.2011 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.24%
1,422,000% 7T —ZE——%+—-A=+AH En—EA ZRBEIRTRIZEFRE2M0.6E 1318
USD1,422,000 29.11.2011 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.31%
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24. Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)

Interest rate swap contracts under cash flow hedges
(Continued)

XIRHER
Pay fixed

WEHUGE S

Receive floating

R-Z—2BF=A=1+—H
At 31 March 2010

1,317,000% 7T

—Z-TE+ AR

Ern— 18R ZMBERITRIZEF 2 900.6/E 1.442

UsD1,317,000 18.10.2010 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.44%
913,000% 7T —E-EE+A=+HH En—BR ZmBUIRITRIZER EMM0.6/E 1.36/E
USD913,000 25.10.2010 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.36%
3,822,000% 7T —E-ZF+-—-H=H En—1BR ZmBIRITRIZER EMM0.6/E 1.30[E
USD3,822,000 3.11.2010 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.30%
1,475,000 7T —E-EF+-—-ANA En—BR ZmBIRITRIZER EMM0.6/E 1.29E
USD1,475,000 9.11.2010 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 0.6% 1.29%
1,550,000 7T —E-EFE=A=+—H ER=EA 2 HRBERTRIZERE2M1.09E 1.93E
USD1,550,000 21.3.2011 USD 3-month LIBOR plus 1.09% 1.93%
4,600,0003 7T —Z-ZF=A=+=H ERN=EA 2 HRBERTRZERE2M1.09E 1.98/E
USD4,600,000 23.3.2011 USD 3-month LIBOR plus 1.09% 1.98%
4,253,0003 7T —E-EFE=A=+HH En—EAZRBBTRZEFLEMIC0E  2.22FE
USD4,253,000 25.3.2011 USD 1-month LIBOR plus 1.50% 2.22%
* LIBOR represents London Interbank Offered Rate.
FARREHAY S EATMAL— X All interest rate swap contracts were classified as current with maturity

ZREEH -

SEZHEH
AEBEITLETHERRHEN - R
—ZEF+-A=+—HB ZEEHZL/AR
B8 8)$%18 25,954,000/ TEHEB(ZF—
THE=HA=+—H 3840008 )2 RN
BRAER ZEEVBABHATIRIK
RHAESHRBUETEE - REBFT LI
L840 BHEGHBEYHSERISHAME
N2 ERRTER AEEREEFEZ—
5 EERERERRANETSEZ
BZ - AEEEES —BILEZTHRITE
BEABELEEZEE - Al BEES
HEB 23S EAREENNERREHNE
THETEEEEEMNNEE  BZS55E
M EBEHAE R G IR E I E R HHR
o

date within one year.

Foreign exchange forward contracts

The Group entered into a number of foreign exchange forward
contracts. As at 31 December 2010, the change in fair value of these
contracts recorded a loss of HK$5,954,000 (31.3.2010: HK$384,000)
and was recognised in profit or loss. The majority of these contracts
are non-deliverable forward contracts and will be settled in USD. Such
contracts were entered into as part of the Group’s treasury operation
for the purpose of capturing the price differential between the spot
and forward foreign currency exchange markets by entering into
bank loan arrangements that were denominated in USD with the
similar amounts and maturity dates on a one by one basis. Each of
these arrangements, when contracted by the Group, will lock in a
pre-determined return. Accordingly, although the valuation of each
of these foreign exchange forward contracts may give rise to a gain
or loss at a particular date within the term of the respective contract,
such gain or loss will eventually be substantially offset by each of
these arrangements.
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24. Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)

Foreign exchange forward contracts (Continued)

The ranges of the notional amounts of the major outstanding foreign

exchange forward contracts to which the Group is committed at the

end of the reporting period are as follows:

%A
Maturity

Ex

Exchange rates

R-ZE-Z25+-B=+—H
At 31 December 2010

% 1,581,000 7 E4,692,000% T
Buy USD1,581,000 to USD4,692,000
%3,076,000% 7L E4,816,000% T
Buy USD3,076,000 to USD4,816,000
%1,330,000% 7T

Buy USD1,330,000

% 1,388,000 L %E2,051,000% T
Buy USD1,388,000 to USD2,051,000
%1,510,000% T £E3,567,000% T
Buy USD1,510,000 to USD3,567,000
1,441,000 T F2,924,000% T
Buy USD1,441,000 to USD2,924,000

A _E-ZF=A=+—-H
At 31 March 2010

H964,000% 7T E7,146,000% 7T
Buy USD964,000 to USD7,146,000
%3,208,0003 71 £6,336,000% T
Buy USD3,208,000 to USD6,336,000
£926,000% £ 1,336,000 7T
Buy USD926,000 to USD1,336,000
%1,495,0005% T £3,873,000% T
Buy USD1,495,000 to USD3,873,000
10,280,000 T

Buy USD10,280,000

% 1,581,000 7 £4,692,000% T
Buy USD1,581,000 to USD4,692,000

—E——f=H-+-HEZE-——F=A=+EA
21.3.2011 10 25.3.2011
CE——-ENANBEZE-——ENAZ+<H
8.4.2011 10 26.4.2011

—Z——%)\ARA

5.8.2011
—E2——FhA-AZEZE-——FNA=TH
1.9.2011 10 20.9.2011

—E——FtA=t+—-8

21.10.2011
—E2——5+-A-HEE——H+-A=t+hH
2.11.2011 10 29.11.2011

CE-EELARAECE-ZELACZTH
6.7.2010 t0 20.7.2010
—E-EEAANREZE-ZEAAZTNR
8.9.2010 10 28.9.2010

—E-ZE+ A+ N\HEZE-EF+AZ1EH
18.10.2010 t0 25.10.2010
—Z-Z5+-B=AZE-ZE-THE+-BhA
3.11.2010t0 9.11.2010

—Z-ZF+-f-H

1.12.2010
—E——f=A-+-HEZE-——F=A=+EH
21.3.2011 10 25.3.2011

6.710-6.717%7,/ AR
USD/RMB6.710 - 6.717
6.663-6.691%7,/ AR
USD/RMB6.663 - 6.691
6.728% 7,/ AR#
USD/RMB6.728
6.653-6.760% 7T,/ AR
USD/RMB6.653 - 6.760
6.454-6 478% 70,/ ARH
USD/RMB6.454 - 6.478
6.501-6.598% 7T,/ AR
USD/RMB6.501 - 6.598

6.793-6.801%7,/ AR
USD/RMB6.793 - 6.801
6.774-6.808% T,/ AR
USD/RMB6.774 - 6.808
6.642-6.750% 7,/ AR
USD/RMB6.642 - 6.750
6.720-6.753% 7,/ AR
USD/RMB6.720 - 6.753
6.649% 7T,/ AR
USD/RMB6.649
6.710-6.717%7,/ AR
USD/RMB6.710 - 6.717
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4. fTEEMIA@ 24. Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)

SEEHEHE) Foreign exchange forward contracts (Continued)

AEEE AL ERE NS THERIINERE The Group does not currently designate any hedging relationship on

EHMIEEEMEHFTE - the foreign exchange forward contracts for the purpose of hedging
accounting.

LREETADRAABHE - BRI
EIBEHHE  —B—BE+ =R

The above derivatives were measured at fair value. The classification
of the measurement of the above derivatives at 31 December 2010

Im s
o>

—BR=-ZE-—ZEF=ZR=+t—HZED and 31 March 2010 is Level 2 under the fair value hierarchy. Level 2
BRAE M -F_MOABEHENRE— fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than
WAFTREEIN > BEERBETEE(R quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
E%) SR (BB ERITE) B Rg AZE or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
B - prices).
25. iR{TEE 25. Bank Borrowings
R-Z—FF R=T—TF
+=A=+—A8 =A=+-—H
31.12.2010 31.3.2010
FET FERT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITER Bank loans 1,222,828 988,587
EBEBZEE B EE  Discounted bills with recourse (note 21)
(M¥&E21) 13,374 62,437
1,236,202 1,051,024
BHEMA Secured 13,374 62,437
IR Unsecured 1,222,828 988,587
1,236,202 1,051,024
RITEEFER The borrowings are repayable as follows:
UTHE8EE
—FR Within one year 944,369 823,024
—FREMER More than one year but not exceeding two years 221,000 111,333
MERE=FR More than two years but not more than three years 70,833 116,667
1,236,202 1,051,024
W BR—FRBEIE Less: Amounts due within one year shown under
MERBEBECEER current liabilities (944,369) (823,024)
291,833 228,000

Yip’s Chemical Holdings Limited 2010 Annual Report 125



126

LRE BT ER & M 5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25. 8R1TBEEmw 25.

FEBEROWBRTEERFINEHEER
TRIZEFEM0.70% B ERRITEEFS
h01.10% K i B8R 17 [ 3£ 47 £ 100.60% =
AR 1T E 2 37 8 12.59% & 2 IR R 17
BT EM0.70% - NE-—RNBIUERAE
1RBEAEE—R -

Bank Borrowings (continued)

Certain of the Group’s bank borrowings carry annual interests at the
range of Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") plus 0.70%
to HIBOR plus 1.10%, LIBOR plus 0.60% to LIBOR plus 2.59% and
Singapore Interbank Money Market Offer Rate (“SIBOR") plus 0.70%.
Interest is repriced in the period from 1 month up to 12 months.

—E-ZF —EThEF
mA—RAZE mME—HZE
—E-ZF —E-TF
+=-A=+—~H =A=+—H
1.4.2010 1.4.2009
to to
31.12.2010 31.3.2010
ESES Effective interest rates
EEEE Fixed-rate borrowings 0.90% 10 5.40% 0.77% to 4.19%
FEMEE Variable-rate borrowings 1.00% t03.33% 0.35% t02.22%

$R 1T & 8 45530,130,0008 T (= E—F
F£=H=+—H :422,831,0008T) 5T
BEEEBERANER—FRE -

ROBEGETIAFUNEREEAAIRZ
WEEEWEBEZRE

Included in bank borrowings are HK$530,132,000 (31.3.2010:
HK$422,831,000) at fixed-rate borrowings with the contractual
maturity dates within 1 year.

Included in bank borrowings are the following amounts denominated

in currency other than the functional currency of the group entities
to which they relate:

R-ZT—ZF R-ZE—ZF

+=A=+-8 =A=t-A

31.12.2010 31.3.2010

TERT TR

HK$'000 HK$'000

eI usD 315,828 378,367
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26. EEHIREE 26. Deferred Tax Liabilities
UTAREECEIZEZELEREARE The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised
(BE)RREEBR LEFRE@AEE : by the Group and movements thereon during the current period and

prior year:
IR ETE
Accelerated BEEE
tax Tax Hit @st
depreciation losses Others Total
TR FiEr AT FThEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(B¥3E)
(Note)
RZEENE At 1 April 2009 2,116 (17) 5,076 7,175
MA—H
MR (FTA)1E%& Charge (credit) to profit
(Bg=E11) or loss (note 11) 223 3) (557) (337)
RIE-FF At 31 March 2010 2,339 (20) 4,519 6,838
=HA=+-H
MNELEEZERE Currency realignment - - 2 2
MR (TN B Charge (credit) to profit
(BFEE11) or loss (note 11) 241 1 (525) (283)
RZZ2-ZF At 31 December 2010
+=ZB=+-H 2,580 (19) 3,996 6,557
o HtARARBEMBATRERAAERAR Note: Others mainly represent deferred tax liabilities arising from fair value
REWBEEEBEELEE BALHES adjustments on assets acquired (i.e. intangible assets, prepaid lease
kY% BERZRBMEEZELHES payments and property, plant and equipment) on acquisition of
&e subsidiaries.
MEINFEEMBEMRREMS » B TIELER For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
BHEEREBC L - BIEMKRER financial position, certain deferred taxation assets and liabilities have
BZIELERIBAGRDTNT ¢ been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances

for financial reporting purposes:

R-E-2F R-ZE-FF

+=A=+-—H =A=+-~H

31.12.2010 31.3.2010

T FHT

HK$'000 HK$'000

EERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 6,557 6,838
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26. EEBEEE @)

R-ZB-FF+ZA=+—-H0 A&£EEF
RAE AR BB 49450,113,0008 T (=&
—ZH=H+— B :364,066,000% 7T )
ARIKERET - R —ZF+ =8
=t—B CEI-EEHBRADAREE
B150008 (=2 —ZFEF=A=+—
H 121,000 ) EBAREE A F 2 G
MBHBEERENABELCHEEE - ARK
BETERARRAERIRE  BREBRABRT
449,998,000 T(ZE—ZFF=ZA=+—
B 363,945,000/ T) IEERIBEE » K
ERBIEE B HE 370,899,000/ T (=&
—ZHF=H=+—H : 338,229,000/ 7T )
AEREALE BREKNR - -HEFRZ
AIZIER -

REEHERE R I &R E K E M
BERAAB-ZZEN\F—HA—AEREDL
E¥MEREIERAMZ AL RREEF
1,150,726,0008 T( =2 —FF=A=+
—H 1 764,224,000 ) S| B EEER
EHIEERIIERE - FREREBEBERR
BRI DR ZTEIRS - B AREE AR R
EERERECKRE MEKEERATER
AGRABET SR o

27. R

26. Deferred Tax Liabilities (continueq)

At 31 December 2010, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$450,113,000 (31.3.2010: HK$364,066,000)
available to offset against future profits. As at 31 December 2010,
a deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of HK$115,000
(31.3.2010: HK$121,000) of such losses from a Hong Kong subsidiary
which set off with taxable temporary differences of the relevant group
entity. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining HK$449,998,000 (31.3.2010: HK$363,945,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in the unrecognised
tax losses, HK$370,899,000 (31.3.2010: HK$338,229,000) may be
carried forward indefinitely and the remaining balance will expire at
various dates up to and including 2015.

Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the temporary differences
attributable to the undistributed retained profits earned by the
subsidiaries in Mainland China amounting to HK$1,150,726,000
(31.3.2010: HK$764,224,000) starting from 1 January 2008 under
the EIT Law that requires withholding tax upon the distribution of such
profits to the shareholders as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

27. Share Capital

SIRMEE0. 108 T 2% Shares of HK$0.10 each

EE

Authorised

R-Z-—ZF

+=A=+-AH ERTRHER
R=-ZZB—=F Issued and fully paid

=A=+-H R=ZB—=F R-ZB—=F
31.12.2010 & +=A=+—H =A=+—H
31.3.2010 31.12.2010 31.3.2010
FET FExT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
80,000 55,304 54,413
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27. Share Capital (continued)

Movements in the issued share capital of the Company during the
period/year are as follows:

i S 4E]
Number X}
of shares Amount
T FExT
‘000 HK$'000
R-BBAEMA—F At 1 April 2009 535,762 53,576
TR AR AE (FffREa) Exercise of share options (note a) 8,884 888
B9 =1 B8 (FfEED) Shares repurchased (note b) (512) (51)
R=T—TF At 31 March 2010
=A=+-—H 544,134 54,413
TERIRAE (MRt Exercise of share options (note c) 8,903 891
A—E—EF At 31 December 2010
+=B=+—H 553,037 55,304
FI5E Notes:

(a)

REZ-_Z-—ZF=A=+-HLEE"
148,884,000/ 2 i RAERDETHE » &K
A7 A It 2 5l % 17300,0008% ~ 50,000
B& ~ 2,000,0008% ~ 352,0008% ~ 1,274,000
8% ~ 3,010,0008 % 1,898,000/ 5 I% ™ &
0.108B T 2B BRIEEDBIE1.190%
JT ~ 1.5903 7T » 1.69038 7T » 2.0043& 7T
4.05038 7T + 1.950/8 7T }24.5368 7T ©

REE-ZZhF=A=+—HLLEE"
R-BEANF=ZF-+=ZBRARENA
1,150,000 7t FT 88 @ 2 512,000 B3 B
REBEZ-ZE-ZF=A=1+—HLEEF
He RN -_BETAE=ZA=-+=AEEZ
BRZ2ENARECREE-ZZTIE=A
=+ —BLEFEZREERMNGR o

R-ZE-ZTFENE-AZ=ZE-—TE+=
A=+—HHIA » #£758,903,0008% = iE %
REEITHE » AATE NS BIE£17800,000
& ~375,0008% *536,0008% 2,366,0008%

1,086,0008% % 3,740,0008% & 1% M {80.10

Bz BREEDBIR1190ET -

1.590/& 7T ~ 2.004/ 7T ~ 4.050/ 7T ~ 1.950
BTk4.536/8 T °

FRAECBRITROVEMBEIEEER 2R
RO EERSER -

During the year ended 31 March 2010, 8,884,000 share options were
exercised, resulting in the issue of 300,000 shares, 50,000 shares,
2,000,000 shares, 352,000 shares, 1,274,000 shares, 3,010,000 shares
and 1,898,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at a price of
HK$1.190, HK$1.590, HK$1.690, HK$2.004, HK$4.050, HK$1.950 and
HK$4.536 per share respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, 512,000 shares were repurchased
on 23 March 2009 at an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$1,150,000 and such shares were cancelled during the year ended
31 March 2010. The consideration paid for the shares repurchased on 23
March 2009 was charged to retained profits for the year ended 31 March
2009.

During the period from 1 April 2010 to 31 December 2010, 8,903,000
share options were exercised, resulting in the issue of 800,000 shares,
375,000 shares, 536,000 shares, 2,366,000 shares, 1,086,000 shares
and 3,740,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at a price of
HK$1.190, HK$1.590, HK$2.004, HK$4.050, HK$1.950 and HK$4.536
per share respectively.

All shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing shares in issue
in all respects.
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28.

EXEREEERERXR

AEBEBHERURRBBECERE
BRAGFARRENESE®R  FEER
AIREHFERE AEBEEBERITHE
BEFEMERE -

TEBEXAEBBERTEE  TEA
RHE25WE 2 RITERR A D ARRE
R (BRCRITRARBERERER
A) o

KRB ESTHERELESE - FAERK
—HD ARRNEZEERELAHARE
HEANER  YBBXARE - BTH
B BITHEREBQREGEE - UTPH
BRELEE -

28.

Capital Risk Management Objectives and
Policies

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
owners through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group'’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which mainly
include the bank borrowings disclosed in note 25, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital and reserves including retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with capital. Based on recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends and new share issues as well as the
issue of new debts or the redemption of existing debts.

29. 2T H 29. Financial Instruments
SMT R Categories of financial instruments
R-Z—FF R-ZE—ZF
+=A=+-—-~H =A=+-~H
31.12.2010 31.3.2010
FHExT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
MEBEE Financial assets
ER R EWERR Loans and receivables (including cash and

(BiERER cash equivalents)

HEZEEER) 2,955,463 2,437,430
AHHERE Available-for-sale investment 22,200 12,387
HMBAR Financial liabilities
WM Amortised cost 2,187,140 1,849,683
THESRmMI AR Derivative financial instruments

AREFAER at fair value through profit or loss 5,487 447
TESRMIAEE Derivative financial instruments designated

(=apirdn = as hedging instruments 2,290 283
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LRE B IR & M EE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s financial instruments include trade and bills receivables,
other debtors, derivative financial instruments, available-for-sale
investment, short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
creditors, bank overdrafts and bank borrowings. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner. There
has been no significant change to the Group’s exposure to market risk
or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency sales
and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
Approximately 3% of the Group’s sales are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities
making the sale, whilst almost 74% of purchases are denominated in
the relevant group entities’ functional currency.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period are
disclosed in respective notes. During the period, the Group has entered
into certain foreign exchange forward contracts to reduce its exposure
to potential variability of foreign currency risk arising from changes in
foreign exchange exposure. The management continuously monitors
the foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency risk should the need arise.
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SME R ()

BREDN
AEBFEEEET ARBRBTINE
WEK o TRAMANEEATZIEEEY
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—ZFE=ZA=1+—H 1 2%)AEEBH I
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B HHIRERS% (ZE-ZTF=A=1+
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RERETIRBITZEEBERA AR
BEANMRARSEIL - BRESNE
FEREWERRRERER - RITEHEE BN
RARBITEE - EFEENBET E
FEARBLEBEEAESS (Z2—F
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29. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to currency of USD, RMB and Hong
Kong dollars. The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% (31.3.2010: 2%) increase and decrease in functional currency
of respective group entities against the relevant foreign currencies.
5% (31.3.2010: 2%) is the sensitivity rate used which represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the period end for a 5% (31.3.2010: 2%) change in
foreign currency rates. A higher percentage is adopted in the sensitivity
analysis in current period with reference to the fluctuation of RMB
against USD and Hong Kong dollars during the period. The sensitivity
analysis includes trade and bills receivables, bank balances, creditors
as well as bank borrowings. A positive number below indicates an
increase in profit after taxation where functional currency strengthens
5% (31.3.2010: 2%) against the relevant foreign currency for net
liability position and vice versa. For a 5% (31.3.2010: 2%) weakening
of functional currency against the relevant foreign currency, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit after taxation.

R-Z—ZF R-ZE—ZF

+=A=+—-H ZA=+—8H

31.12.2010 31.3.2010

FET FiEx

HK$’000 HK$'000

Ee usD 19,995 7,199
AR RMB 1,712 10
BT Hong Kong dollars (230) (140)

i EE A TR ESFRIE L EEE
EEQARNEERIE AEERMmME
HNERR BEARBHEBEES A%
(Z2E—ZF=A=+—-H0:12%)8 " KB
B 1% % F 4% 12 5032,621,0008 T(=ZEE
hWENA—-BZE=-Z—ZT=A=+—H:
12,655,000 7t) R 2Bl BEREHEKRF
#E o

RAEEZIEEHEN ZBREDI TR
A2 A ERE RIS o

The Group is also exposed to currency risk concerning the amounts
due from/to group entities, which are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities.
When RMB strengthens 5% (31.3.2010: 2%) against the relevant
foreign currency, profit after taxation of the Group will increase by
HK$32,621,000 (1.4.2009 to 31.3.2010: HK$12,655,000) and vice
versa.

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure on the foreign exchange
forward contracts is disclosed in other price risk of this note.
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29. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-
rate bank deposits and bank borrowings (see note 25 for details of
these borrowings). However, since the bank deposits and the majority
of the bank borrowings will mature within one year, the management
considers the risk is insignificant to the Group.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to bank deposits carried interest at prevailing market deposit rate
and floating-rate short-term bank borrowings (see notes 22 and 25
for details). In order to keep the Group’s bank borrowings at fixed
rates, the Group entered into interest rate swaps to hedge against
its exposures to changes in cash flows of certain bank borrowings.
The critical terms of these interest rate swaps are the same to those
of hedged bank borrowings. Interest rate swaps are designated as
effective hedging instruments and hedge accounting is used (see note
24 for details).

The Group's bank balances have exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on
bank balances. The directors consider the Group'’s exposure of the
short-term bank deposits with original maturity of less than three
months and bank balances to interest rate risk is not significant as
interest bearing bank balances are within short maturity period and
thus it is not included in sensitivity analysis.
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4 B ()

FIEmp ()

BREDN
THBBRES I ARERREETET
BNEZRBEE - ZR=EAZIH
ZRITERRRTEERE DM IR
BRRBEHMAREZEEREBRAEFR
BE - WAL T FES0E 7 (=2 —F
ZR=+—H 50f@%TF)  DEREEE
HRIZR AR ENE B 2 fhatfEH -

Mt ERITEE(TNEEBRSARE TN
309,070,000 T2 RITER(ZB—BF
=ZH=+—H :139,209,000/&7T) (RHEE
24)) R ER =R &R 2R ERITER
MEEFHTERSOEZF(ZE—FFE=4
=+—H :50E%¥F)  MABEMEER
B R-_E-—ZFNA—-—HBHE_ZT—ZF
T Z A=+ HHBEMNBRB AR
/B IN#9395,0008 T (Z BN EMA —
BE-Z-ZH=A=1+—-0:®d &
fn#9588,000587T) L EERERAEHE
AZTTEEBRTERREERITEEZ
FIZEE R ERRE R RE RS
ZEEREFIERRE

At B EE
AEBRERNTEESRM T A ZREME Y
HtpERERE - AEBE 2 HMWERRRE
EETRAREHRIMEEREY -

29. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at the end of
the reporting period. For interest bearing bank deposits with original
maturity of more than three months and bank borrowings, the analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of assets and liabilities outstanding
at the end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole
period. A 50 basis points (31.3.2010: 50 basis points) increase or
decrease is used which represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates on interest bearing bank borrowings (excluding bank
loans under cash flow hedges of HK$309,070,000 (31.3.2010:
HK$139,209,000) (see note 24)) and short-term bank deposits with
original maturity of more than three months had been 50 basis
points (31.3.2010: 50 basis points) higher/lower and all of other
variables were held constant, the profit after taxation for the period
from 1 April 2010 to 31 December 2010 would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$395,000 (1.4.2009 to 31.3.2010: decrease/
increase by approximately HK$588,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its interest bearing short-
term bank deposits and variable-rate bank borrowings which are not
hedged against their exposures to cash flow interest rate risk at the
end of the reporting period.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its derivative financial
instruments. The Group's other price risk is mainly concentrated on
the interest rate swaps and foreign exchange forward contracts.
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29. €I A 29. Financial Instruments (continued)
MBRREEBRERE &) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

G (E) Market risk (Continued)

EmEkERE (&) Other price risk (Continued)

HMBEDH Sensitivity analysis

THBBRES NI URERRITET AR The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the exposure

A 2 HthERRREE to other price risks for derivatives at the end of the reporting period:

o fHIERMENZEMERLIA T e if the forward exchange rate of foreign exchange forward
B5% (—E—ZFF=A=+—8: contracts had been 5% (31.3.2010: 2%) higher/lower and all
2%)  MABHEMERERE - Bl = other variables were held constant, the profit after tax for the
EZ-ZFNA-BEZE-ZF+= period from 1 April 2010 to 31 December 2010 would increase/
B=+— B8R 2 RB&EFEEm decrease by HK$13,515,000 (1.4.2009 to 31.3.2010: increase/
SR #913,515,0008 T(ZZ2EE A decrease by HK$6,287,000);

FOA—HZ-_Z—ZF=A=+—
B : 0,5 46,287,000587T) 5

o fiRZEHANZERNRLA e if the forward interest rate of interest rate swap contracts had
THSOEHBF(ZE—ZEF=A=1 been 50 basis points (31.3.2010: 50 basis points) higher/lower
— A SofE%F) MABEMEER and all other variables were held constant, the debit side of
& AEHRREEZEESRERZE hedging reserve would decrease/increase by HK$792,000
BHENZAREBEEERD LM (31.3.2010: HK$577,000) as a result of fair value change on
792,0008 (= E—ZEF=A=+— interest rate swap contracts.

H :577,000/7T) °

155 m b Credit risk

R-ZZE—ZFF+-A=+—0 FEEH As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
BERREBITRZFERHAREBERZ risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
BREEAREREZRSEERR 0 AR perform an obligation by the counterparties are arising from the
EMBERRKRAMIEECERUBEE carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
ZERMEE © in the consolidated statement of financial position.
REERRFEERR  ~AEEEERE TS In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
HEAEHEEEGEERE EEEFHMEK has delegated the responsible personnel for determination of credit
ERREER URRAELRETHK limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure
EIRHAEIE - Wi AEBZEBEEER that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
RIMER 2 SEER EUERR R E & the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
WERFR Z AT B £ 48 » IR AT AT AT IR debt and other debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
BlzeRERETEZRERE - RIER adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
T ARARZEERAAEBZEERR this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
SREEED o credit risk is significantly reduced.

AEEDITYRFREE  BRERERE In respect of bills receivables, the credit risk is limited as the Group has
HASENRITRENSERITEHE & procedures and policies in place to ensure they are from banks or rural
EREEZEERBER o cooperative banks with acceptable credit quality.
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ZRR-R_ZB—ZFF+-A=+-—
B AEEARBANRTEEEENS
1,172,119,0008 t(—E—ZEF=A=+
— B 995,822,000/ 7T) °

TRHALAEETBEEBENHRT SHOEH
BN - BETEMBEEMS © DRER
EEANMBEERREZANFRRARSE
MEBUFIERE - RBFBEMNERAER
ERE - RFREELENITETAR 2
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29. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are mainly banks with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with high credit rating and bills
receivables mainly from the big four banks in Mainland China, the
Group does not have any other significant concentration of credit
risk on trade and other debtors. Trade receivables consist of a large
number of customers, which spread across diverse industries and
geographical areas.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensure compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 December 2010, the Group had available unutilised
bank borrowings facilities of approximately HK$1,172,119,000
(31.3.2010: HK$995,822,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its financial liabilities. For non-derivative financial liabilities, the
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. For derivative instruments settled on a net basis, undiscounted
net cash outflows are presented.
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29. R T ) 29. Financial Instruments (continued)
MBRREEBRERE &) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
EEmEE () Liquidity risk (Continued)
HEBEERFIFRERER Liquidity and interest risk tables
-BA -FNLE WEALB ARERE
EEY DEBT  FTREMF TREZF RERELE
BRRI= ®B-%F  Morethan  More than Total
Weighted —-fHAR Tmonth  Tyearbut 2yearsbut contractual REE
average Less than to less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month 1 year 2 years 3years  cash flows amount
TERL TERL THT TERL TERL TERL
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZS-8% At 31.12.2010
+ZA=+-H
FIEMBRE Non-derivative
financial liabilities
FENTIRR R E A IR Creditors and 652,587 297,292 - - 949,879 949,879
other payables
RITER Bank loans
-%8 - at variable rate 1.53 10,908 410,804 223,260 71,068 716,101 706,070
-E8 - at fived rate 1.1 523,496 7,065 - - 530,561 530,132
RITEX Bank overdrafts 1,059 - - - 1,059 1,059
1,188,050 715,221 223,260 71,068 2,197,600 2,187,140
fIERBRER Derivative financial
-BREE liabilities - net
settlement
MERBEH Foreign exchange - 5,487 - - 5,487 5,487
forward contracts
FEEHan Interest rate
swap contracts - 2,290 - - 2,290 2,290
- 1,771 - - 1,777 1,777
RZZ-2% At31.3.2010
=B=t+-H
FIEMBRE Non-derivative
financial liabilities
ERETRAMERR Creditors and other 249,501 549,041 - - 798,542 798,542
payables
RITER Bank loans
58 - at variable rate 1.25 25,253 379,731 113,318 117,288 635,590 628,193
-E8 - at fived rate 1.64 285,979 139,228 - - 425,207 422,831
BITEX Bank overdrafts 117 - - - 17 17
560,850 1,068,000 113,318 117,288 1,859,456 1,849,683
fIERBRR Derivative financial
-BREE liabilities - net
settlement
MERBEH Foreign exchange - 447 - - 447 447
forward contracts
FERBEH Interest rate - 283 - - 283 283
swap contracts
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29. R T B 29. Financial Instruments (continued)
NRE Fair value
HREERUBEENARENRETS The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined

BHEEE :

e NERHENZITEERMIAZDR
ENRSETSEHERRBET ST
EREMZERNZBTFHEEZW
HmEMHZZDAAEE

o FREHMANZITESBMIAEZAR
ENERTSANREH2BRREZH
BETRBEZARBESREZRE
ELR

e HMHBEERVBEENARE
(TEETESRTIE) DREARE
ERAMBERBERAA

EERA  GEUBBEPRBHALT
RN BREERVBEENRAEREL A
SERE -

as follows:

the fair values of derivative financial instruments of foreign
exchange forward contracts are measured at fair values by
reference to quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves
derived from quoted interest rates matching remaining
maturities of the contracts;

the fair values of derivative financial instruments of interest rate
swap contracts are measured at the present value of future cash
flows estimated and discounted based on the applicable yield
curves derived from quoted interest rates; and

the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative financial instruments) are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate to their fair values.



LRE BSR4 M 5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. B IR #ESTE 30. Share Option Scheme
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MERRZAA  TEFEFRENRER
HER  URBAQTAZBRG - BHZE
BRETEFEEBHE+ERTE  MER
FHTEERENAHEZ2=-1T/\R%-
ERERCEREREEIN BTz
AR E - BRERDZZIABEEAU
T=EES&E()RMATZL BEZWHE ;
(R RBEREANAARARZAZF
HWHE ) RRD ZEE - RIBBEITEH
B IRECEREERZRMDEE LR
TERBBRIERTERETZEZERLRA
A BBITRAI0%EEEEE - A
RITEMECRE 2B REM T 2RH
HEH LRABETESEBTRERITRAZ
30% ° FEREBAR QAT ZBRERMER - 7
FA—FR BFEMATZERERS
HE TERBAQATIECBRITIROZ
1% o©

On 3 September 2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Existing Scheme"), which will expire on 2 September 2012, in
order to comply with the terms of Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. The purpose of the
Existing Scheme is to recognise and motivate the participants and
to provide incentives and a direct economic interest in attaining the
long term business objectives of the Company. Under the Existing
Scheme, the directors may grant options to any eligible employees
of the Group, including directors of the Company or its subsidiaries,
legal, financial, management and technical advisers and consultants,
major customers and raw material and machinery suppliers of the
Group, to subscribe for shares in the Company. Options granted
are exercisable within ten years from the date of grant, where the
acceptance date should not be later than 28 days after the date of
offer. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of
the grant of options. The subscription price of the option share is not
less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing prices of the shares on the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares. The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Existing Scheme may not
exceed in nominal amount of 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date of approval of the Existing Scheme. However,
the total maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding shares options must not exceed 30% of
the issued share capital from time to time. The number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted to any individual in any one
year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue from time to time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders.
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30. BRAESTE @)

=

ARBZBRESE 2 RITREBRER
HAAB 2 mEFITEERSEREHR

—E-ZFENA-HEZE-ZTE+Z
B=+—HHB AQARAXERHER
B -RZIBZAFE+ARR  AQTRE
BATEBIARFIR 42 258,362,000/ 8
BREFIMNEHES (BEPITES) &
BRITEERAL 5368 MESREBRE
ZEEWEZAREARI139BT

30. Share Option Scheme (continued)

HK$139.

No options were granted for the period from 1 April 2010 to 31
December 2010. On 5 October 2009, a total of 8,362,000 share
options were granted to 139 full time employees, including the
executive directors, at an exercise price of HK$4.536 per option share
under the terms of the Existing Scheme. Total consideration received
from employees for taking up the options granted amounted to

A summary of the movements of the outstanding options and their
related weighted average exercise prices during each of the reporting

ZEEIIMNT ¢ periods under the Company’s share option scheme is as follows:
EREZA
Number of share options
R=B-%F
R=%-2F T=A
mA-H =t-H
RitiAH ke AR HRERE HRETE  HROH
Outstanding ~ Exercised ~ Cancelled Outstanding
Date Exercise at during during at
of grant price 142010 theperiod the period 31.12.2010
B
HKS
RiTRtE Existing Scheme “EE-F+-B10A 1190 800,000 800,000 - -
14.11.2002
“EINERATEA 1590 1,075,000 375,000 - 700,000
17.5.2004
“EERETACTRA 2004 1,442,000 536,000 - 906,000
24.10.2005
“ZRFMA=A 4050 3,954,000 2,366,000 26,000 1,562,000
3.4.2007
“EE\EtA=T-H 1950 2,076,000 1,086,000 - 990,000
31.10.2008
“ETNETRER 4536 6,464,000 3,740,000 - 2,724,000
5.10.2009
15,811,000 8,903,000 26,000 6,882,000
B BT B BT
HKS HK$ HKS HK§
MEFIERITHEE Weighted average exercise
price per share 3.474 3514 4.050 3.421
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30. B E @ 30. Share Option Scheme (continued)
BREsE
Number of share options
R-2ENF R-%-%F
MA-H =B=1-H
b=k B  HATR  FRCEY  FREARE  FRBEE HAGR
Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled  Outstanding
Date Exercise at during during during at
of grant price 1.4.2009 the year the year theyear 3132010
BT
HKS
RiTaE Existing Scheme  —ZE_£+-F 1A
14.11.2002 1190 1,100,000 - 300,000 - 800,000
“EZNERATLA
17.5.2004 1.590 1,125,000 - 50,000 - 1,075,000
“ZEIMETANA
8.10.2004 1690 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 - -
“EZRETA-TMA
24.10.2005 2004 1,794,000 - 352,000 - 1,442,000
“ZELEMAZH
34.2007 405 5,380,000 - 1,274,000 152,000 3,954,000
“EENEHAZT-R
31.10.2008 1950 5,112,000 - 3,010,000 26,000 2,076,000
ZEENETARR
5.10.2009 4536 - 8362000 1,898,000 - 6,464,000

16,511,000  8362,000  8,3884,000 178,000 15,811,000

HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HKS
METHRRTER Weighted average exercise

price per share 2533 4.536 2720 3743 3474
EBEBERALENRRNESEERRE Details of the options held by the directors included in the above table

ZHBWT ¢ are as follows:

BREHE
Number of share options
R-Z-2F
R-B-ZF +=8
mA—A =+-§
EARITE  HRSTE 18 RATRE
EHEH  7fEE  Outtanding Exercised  Outstanding
Date  Exercise at during at
of grant price 1.4.2010 the period  31.12.2010
BT
HK$

BRiTatE Existing Scheme —ZEZE-F+-—A+MA
14.11.2002 1.190 700,000 700,000 -

“ETNFRA+LH
17.5.2004 1.590 700,000 - 700,000

“EZRFTAZTIA
24.10.2005 2.004 600,000 - 600,000

—ZZLHEMAZA
3.4.2007 4.050 600,000 - 600,000

—EZ)\F+A=+—-H
31.10.2008 1.950 400,000 - 400,000

“EZAFTHAEAA

5.10.2009 4.536 1,000,000 200,000 800,000
4,000,000 900,000 3,100,000
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30. BRAESTE @)

30. Share Option Scheme (continued)

EREHE
Number of share options
WZEENEF -
mMA-H ZA=1-H
HATE ERERL FREOE EROR
it A fH#E Outstanding Granted  Exercised  Outstanding

=

-5-3%

N —

RiTHE Existing Scheme

—E-ZEMA-BEZZE-ZTE+=A
=+ — B EBRITERERE R BN EFR
HRER788EL(ZEENENA—H
E_E-FTF=R=1+—H:57738x) °
REFE B ERITEBREZFIORBED
FHARCOF(ZE—ZF=ZA=+—1":
7.67%F) ©

RIEZNAE+EEEREBEREZMG
STAREASERENMELEEAR
6,141,000/ T ©

REZBZNFHAEAREZBRELAR
ENREMMANR -FEEH IEERET
"o REBERE M ABENRNT :

B B nEEERE

TEE Exercise price

FEEHR IR Expected volatility
FEETEARR Expected life

EE T = Risk free rate

FERTRRE R Expected dividend yield

Weighted average share price on grant date

Date Exercise at during during at
of grant price 1.4.2009 the year theyear  31.3.2010
B
HKS
—23=F+-A108
14.11.2002 1.190 1,000,000 - 300,000 700,000
ZEZMERR LA
17.5.2004 1.590 700,000 - - 700,000
ZEZRF+ACTIA
24.10.2005 2.004 600,000 - - 600,000
“ZTtEMAZH
34.2007 4,050 800,000 - 200,000 600,000
“ERZ\ETAZT-H
31.10.2008 1.950 700,000 - 300,000 400,000
“ERNETARH
5.10.2009 4536 - 1,700,000 700,000 1,000,000

3,800,000 1,700,000 1,500,000 4,000,000

The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise of share
options during the period from 1 April 2010 to 31 December 2010
was HK$7.885 (1.4.2009 to 31.3.2010: HK$5.773). The options
outstanding at the end of the period have a weighted average
remaining contract life of 6.99 years (31.3.2010: 7.67 years).

The estimated fair value of the options granted on grant date
of 5 October 2009 was HK$0.7344 per option, amounting to
HK$6,141,000.

This fair value of share options granted on 5 October 2009 was
calculated using the Black-Scholes pricing model. The inputs into the
model were as follows:

HK$4.53658 7T
HK$4.53658 7T
31.05% - 32.78%
2.7 - 3.6 yearstE
0.772% - 1.217%
4.83% -5.13%



LRE BSR4 M 5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. B E @ 30. Share Option Scheme (continued)
FEEIREDRERATRERBA2 782 Expected volatility was determined by using historical volatility of the
36FRCESFRIEANE - REZEXERAZ Company'’s share price over the previous 2.7 to 3.6 years. The expected
FETTFEHE MIEEEM - TERFIRITA life used in the model has been estimated, based on management's
ZREEZNETE  REEEE2&EMGT best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions
EHFRZE - and behavioural considerations.
REZERETINTE - REZE_Z— The share options granted vest immediately. The Group recognised
ZHE=ZA=1T—HLFE  FEE®ERE total expenses of HK$6,141,000 relating to share option payment
B NERERS 2HEEMA6,141,000/8 transactions during the year ended 31 March 2010.
T

31. &IE 31. Commitments

R-B—2F R-Z2—2F

+=—HA=+—H =B=+—H
31.12.2010 31.3.2010
FBT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRIWEEYE - BER  Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition of
RECEREX property, plant and equipment
- BRI NEHGREHHK — contracted for but not provided in the
WEPRRTFEE consolidated financial statements 48,780 19,035
—BIREERTY — authorised but not contracted for 602,510 322,310
BERETEN Expenditure in respect of the additions of prepaid
TS 2 lease payments
— BRI HBERE TS — contracted for but not provided in the
REPRFEE consolidated financial statements 107,848 23,194
—EEREERITH — authorised but not contracted for 145,000 140,558
32. EEBAAIE 32. Operating Lease Commitments
TEEESEBEA The Group as lessee
RBEBR > AEERRTIFHERZ At the end of the reporting period, the Group had outstanding
HEMEZ T AHEE XA M ARER commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
RREEEERE : cancellable operating leases in respect of rented properties which fall

due as follows:

R=Z—2F R-ZE-2F

+=A=+—H =A=+—H

31.12.2010 31.3.2010

FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

—FR Within one year 10,029 9,598

E_EERF In the second to fifth year inclusive

(ERMEEREER) 27,812 27,751

hF® After five years 33,897 32,011

71,738 69,360

RBEANEET I 2HY  HEPH—F Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease terms and
Z2+HFo rentals are fixed from one year to twenty years.
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33.

34.

BEALRS

R REESBIXA$720,0008 T (=T
ERFENA—HEZZE—ZTF=R=+—
A : 960,000 Jt ) k450,000 T (= &%
hWENA—HZEZZE—ZEF=A=+—8:
600,000 T) 2 HE FREREGRAA
REEREBRAR  ARARIZEFERL
BMAEREFHEEDBIRZME QD RF
ESHRE-

FTEEBAERRRA ZESRUFHME
BAE o WEHM 2 FBHNMEET -

RIKBERETE

FEESRRBBFERAKBEMZL 2
EREIET B (TR K E ) RRER
BEFRIN-—ZZZTF T AR ZE
BEsrE(REeTal) - 2E5HF8zE
ERARECEEDIMAEE  AZRAE
BrERESRFEE - ERESTIRY
ZH > RABERAGTERE2EETE
BEESABERATEIEERES
2 FER-ZETFE+T-A-BYUE
MABREZSEBESE -

RARRFBERERL ZHBELREETD
M ERFEEzEREERKERE
ZHE -MELARZHAREEHF S 2E
FTaES  FRAZERKRERNFEZES -
KREBE-SEREZRAER R
HEERHR -

sTABR ZANE19,104,0008 T (= EE
hWENA—-—BZE=E-ZSF=HA=+—H:
17,842,000 7T ) (R /AN E B iz 5 28R AlFT
Attt RERZETEMER ZHR - R
E-ZTHFE+-A=+—0 HHEEHEE
2 318,000 T(ZE—FF=A=
+—H :393,0008 )RS FZETE -
FZETECRREAREI -

33.

34.

Related Party Transactions

During the period, the Group paid rent of HK$720,000 (1.4.2009 to
31.3.2010: HK$960,000) and HK$450,000 (1.4.2009 to 31.3.2010:
HK$600,000) to Goldex Investments Limited and Galsheer Investments
Limited respectively in which Mr. Ip Chi Shing and Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, the
directors of the Company, have beneficial interests respectively.

The key management personnel are the directors and the five highest
paid individual of the Company. The details of the remuneration paid
to them are set out in note 7.

Retirement Benefit Plan

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which
is registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
(the "ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
"MPF Scheme”) established under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior
to the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of
staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme,
whereas all new employees joining the Group on or after 1 December
2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit plan operated by
the government of Mainland China. The subsidiaries are required to
contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified
contributions.

The costs charged to profit or loss of HK$19,104,000 (1.4.2009 to
31.3.2010: HK$17,842,000) represent contributions paid or payable
to these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
plans in respect of the current accounting period. As at 31 December
2010, contributions of HK$318,000 (31.3.2010: HK$393,000) due in
respect of the reporting period had not been paid over to the plans.
The amounts were paid over subsequent to the end of the reporting
period.



35. WIREE

—EZE-ZEFEXRA=TH ERLIKER
RARNEZEZEMB AR FEAHESR
PR &) (Bauhinia Variegata Ink & Chemicals
Limited) ([FEFHE N REMB AR -
E2Union Inks (HK)Company Limited & H
WEBAR(RILGBAIES ] (BRAEEH
WHEE)FT UhE AEAFBABEL
BENETEE ZSEERFERERE
EFE#RORER BREBHE  EIF
i~ FHEFHRR - ETEERVE - BE
REE FIESHNEFEENBERES
7,977,000 7T RUBLTREBEZSER
BEEMTREEELWHESERE (TRE
BEEZEFAARYE12,000,000T( HE
813,922,000/ 70)) A AT ERMNEERE

LRE BSR4 M 5E Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. Acquisition of Assets

On 30 June 2010, Bauhinia Variegata Ink & Chemicals Limited
and its subsidiary, which are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company, have entered into agreements with Union Inks (HK)
Company Limited (the “Vendor”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to the “Vendors”), companies not connected to the Group,
to purchase certain assets relating to the manufacturing and trading
of the screen printing products held by the Vendors, including
trademarks, technical knowhow, non-competition covenants, certain
inventories and property, plant and equipment. The purchase
consideration for the intangible assets acquired was HK$7,977,000
after taking into account of the sales guarantee (i.e. RMB12,000,000
(equivalent to HK$13,922,000) for the first year after completion of
the acquisition of the assets) provided by the Vendor in respect of the
revenue generated from these intangible assets will be achievable.

E o
FiEx
HK$'000
WEEE : Assets acquired:
ME - WEKEE Property, plant and equipment 220
FE Inventories 3,791
B EE Intangible assets 7,977
11,988
SHFR Satisfied by:
Be Cash 8,797
EARE Consideration payable 3,191
11,988

EAREBBEVBELEE(IEE &
MEMETBRBER) S ROELERES
3,191,000 7T + MR E FEURES B 18 — F 1
B %S B A E S R AR 1 H WS fR
BRI E

ERERAT2MEINELEENREW
o MENEEEENRECTRERW
BIRFEHBRREE -
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The consideration payable included an amount of HK$3,191,000 in
relation to the deferred consideration for the acquisition of intangible
assets (i.e. trademarks, technical knowhow and non-competition
covenants) subject to the revenue warranty adjustment in respect of
the revenue generated from these intangible assets for one year after
the date of acquisition.

The value of intangible assets is determined based on the assumption
that the revenue warranty will be fully achieved as the management
considers that it is highly achievable.
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36. X EHEA A 36. Principal Subsidiaries
ARARZEEMBAR ZFHBEAOT ¢ Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
SERREL
BEAIRA/ER
RE2EAL
BRIRE/ Proportion of
AL/ 2R HMER2EE nominal value of
Place of Nominal value issued share capital/
AR incorporation/ of issued capitall registered capital IEER
Name of company registration registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
R-B-BE R2E-%F
t2B=t-8 ZA=1-H
31.12.2010 31.3.2010
EERRARLT 3 EER-2En 100% 0%  W%RE
Base Rich Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary-HK$2 Property investment
LHTER(LE)ERLT hELAR - BrEM- 100% - HERES
Bahars 40,800,000%7 BHREH
Bauhinia Coatings Manufacturing Mainland China Capital Manufacturing of and trading
(Shanghai) Co., Limited - wholly owned contribution- in solvents and coatings
foreign enterprise USD40,800,000
Bauhinia Paints Limited ABRIES EBR-1,00087 100% 00%  REER
British Virgin Islands Ordinary-HK$1,000 Investment holding
ZHTRA(HE)ERAR hELAR - BRE8- 100% 100% BEREE
Bahars 28,000,000 A % BEREA
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing Mainland China Capital Manufacture of and trading in
(Chengdu) Company Limited - wholly owned contribution- solvents and coatings
foreign enterprise RMB28,000,000
REHARAR Bk LBk 0850
ELR-600000%7 100% 100%  EEREREH
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing Hong Kong Ordinary-HK$20 Kz (b) MizEb)  Trading in solvents and coatings
Limited Deferred-HK$600,000 note (b) note (b)
LATEAR(LE)ERLT hELAR - ErE8- 100% 100% BEREE
Bahars 6,100,000%7 AHREH
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing Mainland China Capital Manufacture of and trading
(Shanghai) Company Limited - wholly owned contribution- in solvents and coatings
foreign enterprise USDe, 100,000
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36. X EMBE AT @) 36. Principal Subsidiaries (continued)
SESRRE
BERARA /iR
RazAAM
BRARE/ Proportion of
A/ HMEkzER nominal value of
Place of Nominal value issued share capital/
AER incorporation/ of ssued capital/ registered capital TTER
Name of company registration registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
R-2-2F RZF-E%
t2A=t-B ZA=t-A
31.12.2010 3132010
SATEROIE) ERAT hEKE BrEH- 100% 100% BEREE
-BEELE 16,000,007 BEREH
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing Mainland China Capital Manufacture of and trading
(Shantou) Co., Ltd. - wholly owned contribution- in solvents and coatings
foreign enterprise HK$16,000,000
SHIERR(RERAA hEKE BREH- 100% 100% BEREE
-BaEL% 28,800, 00087 BEREH
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing Mainland China Capital Manufacture of and trading
(Shenzhen) Company Limited - wholly owned contribution- in solvents and coatings
foreign enterprise HK$28,800,000
Bauhinia Paints (Thailand) %6 K- 2500008 49% 9%  NERE
Manufacturing Limited Thaland Ordinary-Baht 250,000 Kz () MidH@  Property investment
note (a) note (3)
REIRE(TE)ERAA hEKE BREH- 100% 100%  HEREEEH
-BENELE 38,000,000 A K%
Bauhinia Variegata Ink & Mainland China Capital Manufacture of and trading in coatings
Chemical (Hebei) Limited - wholly owned contribution-
foreign enterprise RMB38,000,000
RIS ERAA hERE BREE- 100% 100% REREEEH
-BENELE 13,000,000%7%
Bauhinia Variegata Ink & Mainland China Capital Manufacture of and trading in coatings
Chemicals (Zhejiang) Limited - wholly owned contribution-
foreign enterprise USD11,000,000
LRSI ERAT hERE BREE- 100% 100%  HEREEEH
-BEMELE 120,000,000%7%
Bauhinia Variegata Ink & Mainland China Capital Manufacture of and trading in coatings
Chemicals (Zhongshan) Limited - wholly owned contribution-
foreign enterprise HK$120,000,000
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36. X EMBE AT @) 36. Principal Subsidiaries (continued)
SESREE
ERTRE/HR
RazAM
BRARE/ Proportion of
A/ HMEkzER nominal value of
Place of Nominal value issued share capital/
NS incorporation/ of issued capital/ registered capital IBER
Name of company registration registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
R=2-TF H-E-2F
tZR=t-B ZA=1-H
31.12.2010 313.2010
ETHERERAR 2 LER- 287 100% 00% EEERR
Best Lubricant Blending Limited Hong Kong Ordinary-HK$2 Trading in lubricants
REREERAE E# ZER- 10,0007 100% 00%  ¥RE
Big Youth Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary-HK$10,000 Property investment
Bt IRRERLR B ERR- 1600007 75% 5% REER
Concord Chemical Storaging Hong Kong Ordinary-HK$160,000 Investment holding
Limited
RERE (BN ARAA hERE BREE- 100% 100% REREEEH
-BEhELR 24,500,000%7
Da Chang Polymers (Huizhou) Mainland China Capital Manufacture of and trading in coatings
Limited - wholly owned contribution-
foreign enterprise HK$24,500,000
EALEERTARB(R) hERE BrEH- 100% 0%  LEEER
BRAT -BaMEL% 23,000,0008% SR
Dao Ming Business Mainland China Capital Corporate management and
Management Consultancy - wholly owned contribution- consultation services
Service (Shenzhen) Company Limited foreign enterprise HK$23,000,000
REEELIBRAR hERE BrEH- 100% 0% BEREE
-BEMELE 10,000,007 BHREN
Dongguan Hang Cheung Mainland China Capital Manufacture of and trading in
Petrochemical Limited - wholly owned contribution- solvents and coatings
foreign enterprise HK$10,000,000
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36. X EMBE AT @) 36. Principal Subsidiaries (continued)
SERAEE
BEARE/HR
RazEA
BRIRE/ Proportion of
AL/ 2R HMEkzER nominal value of
Place of Nominal value issued share capital/
AR incorporation/ of issued capitall registered capital TEER
Name of company registration registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
R-E-BF H-3-3F
t2A=t-A =A=t-A
31.12.2010 31.3.2010
REATABRERRERLT hERE BRER- 60% 0%  HEREEFEER
-BEhEkE 50,000,0007
Dongguan Pacoil Lubricant Mainland China Capital Manufacture of and trading in lubricants
Company Limited - wholly owned contribution-
foreign enterprise HK$50,000,000
EMERAE Bk LER- 250 100% 00%  Y¥RE
Goldchain Limited Hong Kong Ordinary-HK$2 Property investment
EFERAE EES LEk- %0 100% 00%  REZR
(Great Success Limited Samoa Ordinary-USD1 Investment holding
RECIRRERLT 3 EER- 600,000%7 100% 0%  REER
Handsome Chemical Hong Kong Ordinary-HK$600,000 Investment holding
Development Limited
RELIREERAR B LR - 6000087 100% 00%  REDERE
Handsome Chemical Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary-HK$60,000 Provision of treasury services
EERH(ER)BRAR HEARE BRER- 100% 100% HEREE
-BENELE 13900,000% 70 AHREH
Hang Cheung Coatings Mainland China Capital Manufacture of and trading in
(Hui Yang) Limited - wholly owned contribution- solvents and coatings
foreign enterprise USD13,900,000
EERH(ER)BRAR HEARE BRER- 100% 100% HEREE
-BENELE 2300000027 AHREH
Hang Cheung Coatings Mainland China Capital Manufacture of and trading in
(Zhejiang) Limited - wholly owned contribution- solvents and coatings
foreign enterprise USD23,000,000
Hang Cheung Petrochemical ABRIES LER- 1570 100% 00%  REBR
(International) Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary-USD1 Investment holding
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36. Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

SESHRE
BERARA /R
RazEal
BEARE/ Proportion of
AT/ HMEk2ER nominal value of
Place of Nominal value issued share capital/
e incorporation/ of issued capital/ registered capital IBER
Name of company registration registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
R-2-2F RNZF-E%
t2R=t-B ZA=1-H
31.12.2010 313.2010
BERRLIERAR 2 LR 80000057 100% 0%  BEREEREREH
Hang Cheung Petrochemical Limited Hong Kong Ordinary-HK$800,000 Manufacture of and trading in
solvents and coatings
EERERIAERAR B4 LER-2ER 100% 00%  FEAHREH
Hang Cheung Procurement & Hong Kong Ordinary-HK$2 Merchandising of solvents and coatings
Logistics Limited
Hang Cheung (W.S.) Limited BES EBR-1%1 100% 100%  REBR
Samoa Ordinary-USD1 Investment holding
BRZATHA(KTE)ERAT B4 LR - 14966587 100% 00%  REER
EER- 35T
Hong Kong Bauhinia Paints Hong Kong Ordinary-HK$ 149,665 Kzt (o) WD)  Investment holding
Manufacturing (Greater China) Deferred-HK§335 note (b) note (b)
Company Limited
BMEELIERAR hERE BrEH- 75% 7% BEREEAD
-BENELE 15,000,00AR#
Huizhou Shengda Chemical Mainland China Capital Manufacture of and trading in solvents
Company Limited - wholly owned contribution-
foreign enterprise RMB15,000,000
IMRECIRRERAA hERE BrEH- 75% 5% BEREEAH
-RERERR 90,800,007
Jiangmen Handsome Chemical Mainland China Capital Manufacture of and trading in solvents
Development Limited - equity joint venture contribution-
HK$90,800,000
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36. TEME AT @)

36. Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

SEARE
BERARA /R
RazAA
BEARA/ Proportion of
A/ HERERZEE nominal value of
Place of Nominal value issued share capital/
AAER incorporation/ of issued capitall registered capital TEER
Name of company registration registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
R=B-BF RZ%-%F
t2B=t-8 ZA=1-H
31.12.2010 3132010
IRRFALERERLT hERE BrEH- 75% 5% BEREEAY
-BehEts 53,000,007
Jiangmen Thansome Solvents Mainland China Capital Manufacture of and trading in solvents
Production Limited - wholly owned contribution-
foreign enterprise HK$53,000,000
AFEERERAR B LEkR-290,000%7 60% 60%  HEREERER
Pacific Oil & Chemical Hong Kong Ordinary-HK$290,000 Manufacture of and trading in lubricants
Company Limited
APHERRAERLR Bk ERBR-10,000%7 60% 0% HEREEWEA
Pacific Special-Lube Limited Hong Kong Ordinary-HK$10,000 Manufacture of and trading in lubricants
Primer Limited EEE LER-1%n 100% 100%  REER
Samoa Ordinary-USD1 Investment holding
Prophet Investments Limited ABRLES LER-1%0 100% 100%  REER
British Virgin Islands Ordinary-USD1 Investment holding
LEEsERERAR HEIRE BrEH- 100% - EEEER
-BehEt% 250,000% 7
Shanghai Pacoil Special Mainland China Capital Trading in lubricants
Lube Co., Limited - wholly owned contribution-
foreign enterprise USD250,000
MIEEERAERAR hEIRE BrEH- 100% 00% EEERR
-BEAELE 1,000,000A K%
Shenzhen Best Lubricant Mainland China Capital Trading in lubricants
Blending Limited - wholly owned contribution-
domestic enterprise RMB1,000,000
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36. TEMB AT @)

36. Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

SEHRE
BERARE /R
RazAA
BRARE/ Proportion of
AL/ HERER2EE nominal value of
Place of Nominal value issued share capital/
AER incorporation/ of issued capitall registered capital TEER
Name of company registration registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
R=B-BF R2B-%F
t2A=t-A ZA=t-A
31122010 31.3.2010
SRS TIETEERLT hERE BrEH- 75% 5% HEREEAY
-BehErR 42,000,007
Taixing Jinjiang Chemical Mainland China Capital contribution- Manufacture of and trading in solvents
Industry Company Limited - wholly owned HK$42,000,000
foreign enterprise
REETERAERAR HEIRE BREE- 100% 100% BEREEERHR
-BehEr% 8,400,087
Tianjin Best Lubricant Blending Mainland China Capital Manufacture of and trading in lubricants
Co., Limited - wholly owned contribution-
foreign enterprise HK$8,400,000
M Holding (Hong Kong) Limited B LER-250 100% 0% HEEE
Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 Holding of trade mark
™ Holding Limited ABERZES LER- 15T 100% 0%  HEEE
British Virgin Islands Ordinary - HK$1 Holding of trade mark
EBRBIRMEE il LER- 100% 100%  BERBRANGRE  BHEE
BERB)ERAE 100,000%PS% EBRAR
Totalle Procurement Logistics Macau Ordinary- Commercial and services
(Macao Commercial Offshore) MOP100,000 agents, overseas selling
Limited actvities and back offices
Yips Chemical (B Limited ABRLES LR S00ET 100% 00%  REER
British Virgin Islands Ordinary-HK$500 Investment holding
EREE(RE)ARAR Bk EBR- 999,500%7 100% 100%  REBRRREES
IR - 50087
Yip's H.C. (Holding) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary- Kzt (o) MizEb)  Investment holding and
HK$999,500 note (b) note (b) provision of services

Deferred-HK$500
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36. X EMBE AT @) 36. Principal Subsidiaries (continued)
SEEAEE
BEARE/HA
RAzEA
BEARE/ Proportion of
R/ HREREE nominal value of
Place of Nominal value issued share capital/
AR incorporation/ of issued capitall registered capital IEER
Name of company registration registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
R-B-BE R2B-%F
t2A=t-A =A=t-A
31122010 3132010
ERTRERERLR 3 EER-10000%7 100% 0%  REER
Yip$s Industrial Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$10,000 Investment holding
ERMEARLT 3 EER- 20057 100% 0%  EEZH
Yip$s Ink and Chemicals Hong Kong Ordinary-HK$200 Trading in coatings
Company Limited
ENhE(5E)ERAR B4 LER- 28 100% 100%  REBR
Yip$s Ink & Chemicals (Group) Hong Kong Ordinary-HK$2 Investment holding
Limited
SRAE(LE)ERAR G EAEH- 100% 0%  BEREEEH
-BEhEr% 4,340,000% 7
Yip’s Ink & Chemicals (Shanghai) Mainland China Capital Manufacture of and trading in coatings
Company Limited - wholly owned contribution-
foreign enterprise USD4,340,000
Yip's Pacifc Limited ABRIES LR~ 60% 60%  REER
36,251, 00087
British Virgin Islands Ordinary- Investment holding
HK$36,251,000
BIATERAERLR hERE EAEH- HaE(Q) Wil  HEREERRM
-RBRELE 3,800,000%7
Zhanjiang Best Lubricant Mainland China Capital note (¢) note () Manufacture of and trading in lubricants
Blending Limited (“ZBLB") - equity joint venture contribution-
USD3,800,000
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36. TEMB AT @)

MRE -

3 72X 23 T #2 #lBauhinia Paints (Thailand)
Manufacturing Limited E B g 2 AR R &
- MEARWRAERATZHMBATR

FHAEEFE ZIELR 7D EERER
EHEARQAFARRAGZBERHE
ERARAGABRRASHEELRE &
EFRE O MEERBEA(NEAEEH)
CEZHEERZERODINZELRH
100,000,000,00058 7t  BEER D EHE A
FERAAADRGEETREERER
ERELERD A ZER o

AR RETHEEMERQT(HEIED
AREEER R TELEZ80%K20% ° M
MR TIEzE—HERBEIESREZ—
#43 (R 2 E RO TE L R AT — AR
BEZDIK)  REFEESEEEERE
HF#1,190,000%8 T (R BELELERE
2 tiiES)  EDEEWEARATZ
ZEWBAT > MEDBIAZTHIET
BRAEEEE2 -5 °

BXYip's Chemical (BVI) Limited AN\ B EL$2
BN FEHEHCHBARMYABER

ﬁo

o

HRERRBLEXRHBH 2REEZRAT
FRELAWB AR 2 ERE XY

AESBENL EfztE -

ERAIAEBZHBLARNDESAAS

=%

s

EI°

FEEXEREERB2TEWER
ESARIEEMMBL R 2 HEH

BRARRE -

EMBARANR-_BE—ZE+=-A=+—8
RFERNEARREBERIAEEERES o

36. Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

Notes:

(a)

As the Company controls the composition and appointment of the board
of directors of Bauhinia Paints (Thailand) Manufacturing Limited, this
company is treated as a subsidiary of the Company.

The deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, carry no right
to dividend or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general
meeting of the company. On a winding-up, the holders of the deferred
shares are entitled out of the surplus assets of the company to a return
of capital paid up on the non-voting deferred shares but only when
holders of ordinary shares, namely, the Group, have received in full
the return of capital paid on them and, in aggregate, a total sum of
HK$100,000,000,000.

ZBLB is owned legally as to 80% by the Group and 20% by Zhanjiang Port
Group Company Limited (“Zhanjiang Port”). Since the only contribution
by Zhanjiang Port is a piece of land where ZBLB locates (which is also
the only distribution it entitles upon dissolution of ZBLB) and it is only
entitled to receive a fixed rate of dividend of approximately HK$1.19
million (deemed lease payment for the piece of land where ZBLB locates)
per annum, ZBLB is deemed to be a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and the land injected by Zhanjiang Port does not form part of
the assets of the Group.

Except for Yip's Chemical (BVI) Ltd. which is held directly by the
Company, all other subsidiaries are indirectly held. Except for the
investment holding companies which have no specific place of
operation, all the above subsidiaries operate principally in their
respective place of incorporation/registration.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets or
liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None

of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at 31

December 2010 or at any time during the period.
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